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Securities and Exchange Commission 0CT
450 Fifth Street, N.W. 14 ZHUB
Washington, D.C. 20549
“Washington, po
107

Dear SirfMadam

BILLABONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED - INFORMATION FURNISHED
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 12G3-2(B)(1)(I) - FILE NO, 82-34921

On behalf of Billabong International Limited, an Australian corporation (the
“Company”), and fumnished pursuant to Rule 12¢3-2(b)(1) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), enclosed please find copies of
certain information that the Company has either recently (i} made public pursuant to
the laws of Australia, the country of its domicile, (ii) filed with the Australian Stock
Exchange (*ASX") and which was made public by the ASX, and (iii) distributed to its
security holders. Such information is described on the list attached to this letter,
which list also sets forth when and by whom such information was required to be
made public, filed with the exchange or distributed to security holders.

Please stamp the enclosed copy of this letter and retum to us in the enclosed self-
addressed postage paid envelope.

If you have any questions or require further information, please call the undersigned
on +61 7 5589 9805.

Yours faithfully
BILLABONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

PROCESSED

j (; gCT 2 22008

MARIA MANNING

Company Secretary '“.\OMSON REVT RY

ol



Information Submitted Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 12g3-2(b){(1)(i)

BILLABONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED {BBG)

Document / Information Submitted Date Issued | Required By
Information Update 22/08/2008 ASX
Dividend Reinvestment Plan information — despatch to | 28/08/2008 ASX
shareholders
Change of Director's Interest Notice {(Appendix 3Y) 12/09/2008 - ASX
Change of Director's Interest Notice (Appendix 3Y) 17/09/2008 ASX
Change of Director’s Interest Notice (Appendix 3Y) 17/09/2008 ASX
Change of Director’s Interest Notice (Appendix 3Y) 17/09/2008 ASX
Notice of AGM/Proxy Form and Annual Reports 26/09/2008 ASX
Dividend Reinvestment Plan update 30/09/2008 ASX
Billabong Acquisition Completion 01/10/2008 ASX




Billabong

international
Limited

ABN 17 004 923 940

PO B 283
Burioigh Hesuts
OLD 4220 Australis

Tel: #61 7 5509 8899
Frx: «61 7 3509 8634

wrn U nbongtle pom

ASX ANNOUNCEMENT

INFORMATION UPDATE

GOLD COAST, 22 August 2008: Following the release earlier today of Billabong
International Limited's results for the financial year to 30 June 2008, a teleconference
was held with analysts and investors. The following supplementary information, not
contained in the Group’s earlier announcements to the Australian Securities
Exchange, was discussed and is provided herein in the interests of continuous
disclosure.

Pacific Sunwear, the Company's largest US-based customer, accounted for less than
15% of the Group’s Americas sales revenues in the 2007-08 financial year. In relation
to global sales, Pacific Sunwear accounted for less than 7% of the Group's sales
revenues. It is anticipated that sales to Pacific Sunwear will continue to reduce as a
percentage of the Group’s global sales revenues over time.

Information on the share of the Group's individual brands in the 2007-08 financial
year was also provided on the teleconference. This additional disclosure included:

- Billabong: contributed slightly less than 60% of the Group’s sales revenues;

- Element: contributed approximately 13% of the Group’s sales revenues;

- Nixon: contributed approximately 6% of the Group's sales revenues;

- Kustom: contributed approximately 2% of the Group’s sales revenues;

- Von Zipper: contributed approximately 2% of the Group's sales revenues;

- Xcel: contributed less than 1% of the Group's sales revenues;

- Tigerlily: contributed less than 1% of the Group’s sales revenues;

- Company-owned retail: contributed approximately 18% of the Group’s sales
revenues

All other information discussed on the teleconference was either of a general nature
or already covered in the Group's previously disclosed documents,

MARIA MANNING
COMPANY SECRETARY
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ASX ANNOUNCEMENT

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

GOLD COAST, 28 August 2008: The following documents will be despatched to
shareholders today in relation to the Dividend Reinvestment Plan adopted by
Billabong International Limited on 21 August 2008:

- Chairman & CEQ letter to shareholders;
- Dividend Reinvestment Plan Q & A's booklet; and
- Dividend Reinvestment Plan Election Form.

Also attached are the Dividend Reinvestment Plan Rules which are available online at
www, computershare.com.au/easyupdate/bbg.

Participation in the DRP will first be available to shareholders for the final dividend
payable for the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Directors have declared a fully franked final ordinary dividend of 28.5 cents per share,
payable on 24 October 2008 to holders of crdinary shares on the recerd date of
26 September 2008.

The shares to be provided to participants in the DRP for this dividend will be provided
entirely through an issue of new shares. The DRP for this dividend will be 50%
underwritten by Goldman Sachs JBWere.

MARIA MANNING
COMPANY SECRETARY
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28 August 2008

Dear Shareholder
BILLABONG INTRODUCES A DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN
Key Features

Participation is optional

No brokerage or other costs

Initial discount is set at 2.50%

Applies to dividends commencing with the final dividend payable for the financial
year ended 30 June 2008

« Dividend reinvestment plan ("DRP") may be satisfied by on-market acquisition of
shares or the issue of new shares

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Board of Billabong International Limited (ASX Code: BBG) is pleased to advise
that it has approved the introduction of a dividend reinvestment plan. Billabong is
providing this facility as an additional option available to shareholders and in
response to requests from Billabong's shareholders.

The DRP will provide shareholders with a convenient and cost efficient means of
increasing their shareholding in Billabong by reinvesting part or all of their dividends
in additional shares over time. By participating in the DRP, shareholders will not incur
any brokerage, commission, stamp duty or other transaction costs in increasing their
shareholding.

Participation in the DRP is completely optional. Billabong's shareholders are free to
choose the proportion of their dividends that will participate in the DRP. You may
alter or cancel your participation at any time.

If you choose nof to participate in the DRP you will continue to be entitled to receive
dividends in cash in the usual manner. .

The DRP price will initially be set at a 2.50% discount to the average of the daily
volume weighted average market price of all Billabong shares sold in the ordinary
course of trading on the ASX for the 10 ASX trading days commencing on and
including the second trading day after the dividend record date. Billabong may in the
future cease to offer any discount on the DRP or may determine that the DRP price
be set by reference to a different trading period or by some other method. Billabong
will give notice of any such variation to the ASX.

Participation in the DRP will first be available to shareholders for the final dividend
payable for the financial year ended 30 June 2008. Directors have declared a fully
franked final ordinary dividend of 28.5 cents per share, payabie on 24 October 2008.

Cash dividends used to acquire shares under the DRP should be taxed in the same
manner as cash dividends paid to shareholders. Shareholders are advised to seek
their own financial and/or taxation advice when determining whether or not to
participate in the DRP. Billabong does not take responsibility for the taxation liability
of shareholders.



The DRP is not available to shareholders outside Australia and New Zealand. Billabong
may in the future cease to offer the DRP. In this case you will receive only cash dividends.

Action Required

Some answers to frequently asked questions and a Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Election Form are enclosed. A copy of Billabong's DRP Rules is available online
through our Registry, at www.computershare com.au/easyupdate/bbg. Alternatively, a
copy will be provided to you free of charge by contacting Billabong's Registry,
Computershare Investor Services on 1300 850 505. These documents do not
constitute investment advice and do not take into account the investment objectives,
financial situation and particular needs of an investor. This document ddes not
constitute an offer of shares.

If you wish fo participate in the DRP you can do so online through our Registry, at

www.computershare.com au/easyupdate/bbg and you must make your online efection
by no later than 5:00 pm (Brisbane, Queensiand time) on 26 September 2008 if

you wish to be eligible to participate in the DRP in respect of the final dividend
payable for the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Alternatively, you will need to lodge the enclosed DRP Election Form with Billabong's
Registry, Computershare Investor Services, no later than 5:00 pm (Brisbane,
Queensland time) on 26 September 2008. An envelope is enclosed for that
purpose. DRP Election Forms received after that date will not be eligible to
participate in the DRP in respect of the final dividend payable for the financial year
ended 30 June 2008.

If you do nothing you will continue to receive dividends in the usual manner.
Capital Management
Shares for the DRP can be supplied either through the:

+ on-market purchase of existing shares (no new capital is raised); and/or
s issue of further shares (new capital is raised}.

The above options for supplying the shares for the DRP will be evaluated by the
Billabong Board before the payment of each future interim or final dividend having
regard to a range of matters including:

¢ Billabong's capital and liquidity position; and
¢ prevailing and future expectations for Billabong's share price.

For the final dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2008, it is the Board's current
intention to supply the shares for the DRP entirely through an issue of new shares. From
the date of allotment, these shares will rank equally in all respects with existing shares.

Thank you for your continued support of Billabong International Limited.

TED KUNKEL DEREK O'NEILL
CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE CFFICER
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Introduced on 21 August 2008

ESTIMEN I

2L A

Key Features of Billabong
International Limited’s Dividend
Reinvestment Plan |

M No brokerage or other
transaction costs payable

M Automatic reinvestment of dividends

B Optional participation in full or in part and
may be varied from time to time

B Shares may be issued or transferred
at a discount as determined by Billabong

BILLABONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ABN 17 084 923 946

For further information, please telephone
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited

on 1300 552 270 {ocal cail cost within Australia) or
+61 7 94715 4000 (outside Australia) or visit
www.computershare.com.au/easyupdale/bbg




IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE
OPERATION OF THE PLAN, ITS IMPACT ON YOU OR YOUR
DECISION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PLAN. PLEASE CONTACT
YOUR INVESTMENT. FINANCIAL OR OTHER ADVISOR.

WHAT IS THE
-PLAN?

Billabong International Limited’s ("Billabong™) dividend reinvestiment plan ("Plan”) provides holders
of Billabong ordinary shares ("Shares”) with an optional and convenient method of reinvesting all or
part of their dividends ("Dividends™) into additional Shares,

If a holder of 3hares (“Shareholder”) chooses to parficipate in the Plan, Dividends the Shareholder
would otherwise receive are used to fund the issue of new Shares or to fund the acquisition on-market
of existing Shares (or a combingation of both) at a price calculated on the basis outlined below.

The Plan will be administered by the directors of Billabong ("Board”). Billabong has the right to
modify, vary, suspend or terminate the Plan at any time subject to the rules of the Plan or to modify
or vary the rules of the Plan at any time.

The full rules of the Plan can be accessed at the following website:
www.computershare.com.gu/easyupdate /bbg

Alternatively, you can request that a copy of the rules of the Plan be maited to you by calling
1300 552 270 (in Australia) or +61 7 9415 4000 (outside Australia).

WHO MAY PARTICIPATE
IN THE PLAN?

Al Shareholders whose registered address is in Australia or New Zealand are eligible to participate
in the Plan. The laws of some other countries may prohibit participation by Shareholders resident
in those countries. Accordingly, the Board has decided that gt this ime Shareholders who are not
resident in Australia or New Zecaland may not participate In the Plan.

The Board also has discretion to suspend participation in the Plan of any Shareholder where their
participation may prejudice the effective operation of the Plan or is otherwise undesirable or
impractical.

ZZDIVIDEND REINVESTM




HOW DO | JOIN
-THE PLAN?

There are two ways you can participate in the Plan:

1. Complete the election form (“Election Form*) and return it fo Billabong's Share Registrar (*Share
Registrar”) before 5.00pm (Brisbane, Queensland time) on the record date: or

2. Register online for the Plan of www.computershare.com.au/easyupdate/bbg.

The record date is the date used to identify Shareholders entitted to participate in the Dividend, and
normally cccurs in fate March (for the interim Dividend for the six months to 31 December) and late
September (for the final Dividend for the six months to 30 June) as the case may be.

You may join the Plan at any time, but if you wish to participate in the Plan for a particular Dividend,
your completed Election Form must be received by the Share Reglstrar or you must register online
prior to 5.00pm (Brisbane, Queensland time) on the record date of thal Dividend.

WHAT LEVELS OF PARTICIPATION
-ARE AVAILABLE?

Participation in the Plan is optional. If you do nothing you will continue to receive Dividends in the
usual manner. If you wish to participate in the Plan, you have two options:

a. Full participation, under which all Dividends on all Shares you hold from fime to time are
automatically reinvested into Shares under the Plan,

b. Part participation. under which Dividends on the number of Shares you nominate will be
automatically reinvested into Shares under the Plan. Dividend payments wlll continue to be
made in the usual manner for Shares you deo net nominate for participation in the Plan,

Please note that a separate election form or separate online reglstration must be completed for each
HIN or SRN.

IS THERE ANY LIMIT
-ON MY PARTICIPATION?

Blllabong may, for a Dividend, specify a minimum and/or maximum limit on the number of Shares or
amount for participation in the Plan.

If a maximum mit is set and if that limit is exceeded, Billabong may scale back on a pro-rata basis
each Participant’s parficipation in the Plan in respect of that Dividend, Where a scale back applies,
any amount of a Participant’s Dividend which is not reinvested will be paid to that Participant,
If o minimum participation is set and that limit is not reached then each relevant Participant’s
participation in the Plan will be of no effect and dividends will be pald in the usual way.

Bitabong will advise any such limits to the ASX.




HOW CAN | VARY
- MY PARTICIPATION?

You may vary your participation in the Plan online af www.computershare.com.au/eqasyupdate/bhg.
If you do not wish to effect your varlation online, notice of variation forms are available on request
from the Share Registrar by calling 1300 552 270 (In Australia) or +61 7 9415 4000 (outside Australia).
Avariation of your participatton will take effect for the next Dividend after you vary your participation.
Please note that variations made after the record date for a particular Dividend will not take effect
until the following Dividend.

HOW CAN MY PARTICIPATION
- BE WITHDRAWN?

You may withdraw your participation in the Plan in the same way as varying your participation (see
item 6 above).

CAN | SELL OR TRADE MY
= PARTICIPATING SHARES?

Shares issued or transferred under the Plan will be listed on the ASX and may generally be traded
in the same manner as your existing Shares. Shares will trade with the ASX code of "BBG” and rank
equally for future Dividends.

Note: Participating Shares sold after the record date for a relevant Dividend will remain subject to
the Plan for that Dividend.

AT WHAT PRICE ARE SECURITIES
. ISSUED OR TRANSFERRED?

Shares will be issued or transferred at the price set by the Board. The price is the arithmetic &verage
{rounded to the nearest cent) of the daily volume weighted average market price of all Shares sold
in the ordinary course of trading on the ASX automated frading system during the 10 ASX trading
days commencing on and from the second ASX trading day after the record date of the refevant
Dividend {or such other frading period as may be defermined by the Board) less any applicable
discount as deftermined by the Board and nofified to Shareholders. For the final dividend for the
financial year ended 30 June 2008 the directors have determined the discount will be 2.5%. If the
Board believes the price so calculated is not fairly reflective of the market price it may appoint an
expert to determine the market price.

ZOMIDEND REINVES TMENT PLAN:




1 0 HOW MANY SHARES ARE
- ISSUED OR TRANSFERRED?

Dividends will be applied in subscribing for the maximum whole number of new Shares or
acquiring on-market the maximum whole number of existing Shares for transfer o Participants (or a
combination of both options).

if any cash balance exists, it will be retained in the Parficipant’'s account for the Plan.
without interest.

1 1 - WHAT ARE THE COSTS?

Participants will pay no brokerage charges, commissions or other transaction costs in relation to the
issue or transfer of Shares under the Plan. Shares will be issued or transferred at the price calculated
on the basis outlined above.

‘l 2 WHAT STATEMENTS
- WILL | RECEIVE?

Following the issue or tfransfer of Shares under the Plan, Shareholders who received Shares will
receive a statement which gives details of the Participant’s participation in the Plan,

‘I 3 WHAT IS THE TAX POSITION
- OF SHARES ISSUED OR
TRANSFERRED UNDER THE PLAN?

Dividends reinvested in Shares under the Plan should be taxed in the same manner as cash dividends
paid to Shareholders, although each Shareholder's faxation position may differ and Shareholders
are advised to make enquiries about their own taxation position.

Billabong does not take responsibility for the taxation liability of Shareholders.

Please contact your taxation adviser it you have any questions concerning the taxation consequences
of participating in the Plan. We recommend that you obtain professional taxation advice on
these matters.




1 4 ARE SHARES ISSUED OR
- ACQUIRED ON-MARKET?

As stated above, under the Plan the Directors can resolve to either issue new Shares or deliver Shares
which have been acquired on-market (or a combination of both) for the purposes of this Plan.

For the final dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2008 shares will be issued to participants
in the Plan.

WHAT HAPPENS IF THE
- PLAN IS UNDERWRITTEN?

If Billabong decides to have the issue of Shares under the Plan underwritten, to the extent that the
level of Shareholder participation in the Plan by reference to the total cash dividend that is payable
is less than the amount agreed to be underwritten, Billabong will issue Shares 1o the underwriter or
its nominee.

That issue of Shares to the underwriter or its nominee will result in some dilution for Shareholders
who do not participate in the Plan (or partially participate to a level less than the amount being
underwritten).

For the final dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2008 the Plan will be underwritten 50%
by Goldman Sachs JBWere.

1 6 WHERE CAN | OBTAIN
- FURTHER INFORMATION?

You may obtain further information concerning the operation of the Plan from:

the Share Registrar by calling 1300 552 270 {local call cost within Australia) or

A copy of the most recent annual report and financial statements are available free of charge
from hitp:f/www.billabongbiz.com or by conftacting the Share Registrar at the address noted in the

corporate directory on the inside back cover of this booklet.




CORPORATE DIRECTORY

PRINCIPAL AND REGISTERED OFFICE

POSTAL ADDRESS

WEBSITE

SHARE REGISTRAR

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Billabong International Limited

1 Billabong Place, Burleigh Heads
QLD 4420 AUSTRALIA

Telephone: + 61 7 5589 9899
Facsimile: +61 7 5589 9800

PO Box 283 Burleigh Heads QLD 4420 Australia

http: //www. billabongbiz.com

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
GPO Box 523 Brisbane QLD 4001

Telephone Australia: + 1300 552 270
Telephone International: + 61 7 9415 4000
Facsimile: + 61 7 3237 2152

Email: web.queries@computershare.com.qu

www.computershare.com.au/edsyupdate/bbg

Billabong International Limited shares are listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange. The home branch is
Brisbane. Ticker: BBG




DISCLAIMER

This booklet has been prepared by Billabong International Limited (ABN 17 084 923 946). The information
in this booklet is general information only and is not intended as investment or financial advice and
must not be relled upon as such. You should obtain Independent professional advice prior to makinig
any decision relating 1o your investment or financlal neaeds. This booklet Is not an offer or Invitation for
subscription or purchase of securities or other financial products. Past performance is.no, mdncohon of
future performonce All values are expressed in Australian currency uniess otherWIse sfofed ’
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All correspondence to:

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited

GPQ Box 2975 Melbourne
Victoria 3001 Australia

Enquirigs {within Australia) 1300 850 505

(outside Australia} 61 3 9415 4000

Facsimile 61 3 9473 2500

web.queries@computershare.com.au

www computershare.com

Holder Identification Number {HIN)

JARERATTAY

i

Where a cholce is required,
mark the box with an ‘X’

Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP)

PART :

AllL Please mark this box with an X if you wish all of your holding to participate in the company’s DRP.

Show the number of securities you wish 1o
participate in the company's DRP.

Conditions of the Dividend Reinvestmenl Plan,

Individual or Securityholdar 1 Securityhofder 2

B Sign Here - This section must be signed for your instructions to be executed.

We authorise you to ad in accordance with myfour instructions set out above. We acknowledge that these Instructions supersede and have prionily over all previous
instructions in rspect to mylour securites. Where Uwe have indicated participation in the Dividend Revestment Plan, liwe hereby agree lo be bound by he Terms and

Securityholder 3

Director Director/Company Secretary

Mote: When signed under Power of Atformey, the afiomey siates that
they have not received a notice of revocation. Computershare Investor
Servicas Ply Limited needs o sigh! a centified copy of the Power of Attomey.

Sole Director and Sole Company Secratary

Month Year

D100

B &sc 01D |

BBG



How to complete this form

Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP)
Complete this section if you wish to have your cash dividends reinvested in the form of more company securities.

if you wish to reinvest all of your securities in the company's DRP, please cross the box marked ALL.

If you wish to reinvest part of your securities in the company's DRP, please show the number of securities that you wish to
participate.

Please note that an election to participate fully in the Dividend Reinvestment Plan will override any instruction on the
regisiry record regarding direct payment of cash dividends into a nominated account.

This instruction only applies to the specific holding identified by the SRN/HIN and the name appearing on the front of this form.

Signature(s)

If you have chosen to have your cash dividends fully or partially reinvested into company securities and you have
completed Section A, you must sign this form as follows in the spaces provided:-

Joint Hoiding: where the holding is in more than one name, ali of the securitynolders must sign.

Power of Atomey: to sign under Power of Attomey, you must have already lodged this document with the
registry. If you have not previously lodged this document for notation, please attach a
ceriified photocopy of the Power of Attorney fo this form when you refum it.

Companies: where the company has a Sole Director who is also the Sole Company Secretary, this form
must be signed by that person. If the Company (pursuant to section 204A of the
Carparations Act 2001) does not have a Company Secrefary, a Sole Director can also sign
alone. Otherwise this form must be signed by a Director jointly with either ancther Director or
a Company Secretary. Please indicate the office held by signing in the appropriate place.

D001

BBG

Please return the completed form in the envelope Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
. . GPO Box 2975
provided, or to the address opposite: Melboume VIC 3001
Australia
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Definitions

Participation in the DRP

Application fo pariicipate

Degree of particlpation

Cperation of the DRP

Shares allotted under the DRP

DRP statements

Stock exchange listing

Costs to participants

Variation or termination of participation

Reduction or termination of participation
where no notice is given

Variation, 'suspension and termination
Application and notices

General

1
2
2
3
4
5
5
6
6
6
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In the Rules, unless the context otherwise requires, the following definitions apply:
ASX means ASX Limited (ABN 98 008 624 691),

Board means the board of directors of the Company.

Company means Billabong International Limited (ABN 17 084 923 946).

Constitution means the constitution of the Company. as amended from time to time.

Discount means the percentage discount (if any) used to calculate the Price, as determined by the
Board from time to time.

DRP means the dividend reinvestment plan established under these Rules, as amended from time
10 fime.

Holding means a registered holding of Shares for a Shareholder,
Listing Rules means the official listing rutes of ASX, as amended from fime to time.

Notice of Election means a natice to participate some or all of a Shareholder’s Shares In the DRP. in
the form that the Board approves from fime o time.

Notice of Variation means a notice to increase or decrease the number of a Participant’s Plan
Shares, or to terminate participation in the DRP, In the form that the Board approves from time to
time.

Participant means a Shareholder some or all of whose Shares are participating in the DRP.

Plan Shares means the Shares comprised in a particular Holding which are designated (subject to
these Rules) by a Participant as Shares the dividend on which is to be applied in subscribing for or
acquiring Sharas under the DRP.

Price means the number calculated as:

(@) the arithmetic average (rounded to the nearest cent) of the daily volume welghted average
market price of all Shares sold in the ordinary course of trading on the ASX automated trading
system during the Pricing Period; or

() if the Board believes that the number determined pursuant to paragraph (a) does not provide
a fair reflection of the market price of the Shares during the Pricing Period, the number
determined by an independent expert whose identity and instructions will be determined by
the Board; or

{c) the Share price, of formula used to calculate the Share price, determined by the Board from
time to fime,

in each case, multiplied by (1 - Discount).

Pricing Period means the ten trading day perlod starting on (and including) the second business
day after the Record Date for the relevant dividend and ending on (and including) the eleventh
business day after that Record Date (or such other trading pericd as may be determined by the
Board from time fo time).

Record Date has the meaning given 1o it in the Listing Ruies.
Rules mean these rules, as amended from time to fime.

Shares means fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of the Company.

Shareholder means a registered holder of Shares within the meaning of the Constitution of the Company.
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2.6

27

PARTICIPATION
- IN THE DRP

Parficipation in the DRP is subject to these Rules.
Participation Is optional and open to each Shareholder unless excluded under these Rules.

A Shareholder who is subject to the laws of a country or place other than Australia and New
Zealand may not participate in the DRP, unless the Board allows such participation after being
satisflied that such participation will not constitute a breach of the laws of that country or
place, whether or not that Shareholder has received an invitation to participate in the DRP or
has completed a Notice of Election.

The Board may on any occasion determine that the right to participate in the DRP is not
avaiiable to a Shareholder having a registered address or being resident in a country or place
where. in the absence of a prospectus, disclosure document, reglstration statement or other
prerequisite, the offer of a right of election, or participation, would or might be unlawful.

If, in the opinion of the Board, the issue of Shares under the DRP to, or the acquisition of
Shares under the DRP by, a Participant or the holding of those Shares by a Participant may
breach a provision of the Constitution or be contrary to the law of any country, may prejudice
the effective operation of the DRP or is otherwise In the opinion of the Board undesirable or
impractical, then the Board may:

(a) decline to issue or transfer those Shares;
(b) reduce the issue or transfer of those Shares on a propoertionate basis. or
(c) reduce orsuspend the participation of that Participant in the DRP.

The Board may refuse to permit any Shareholder to parficipate in the DRP where that
Shareholder elects to participate for less than 100 Shares or such other number as the Board
may determine from time to fime.

The Company may. from time to time, establish an online application process for Shareholders
to participate in the DRP.

APPLICATION
- 10 PARTICIPATE

Application to participate in the DRP must be made on the Notice of Election (or such other form
as the Board may prescribe or accept from time to time). Upon receipt by the Company of a duly
completed and executed Notice of Election, participation by that applicant in the DRP will, subject
o these Rules, commence from the next Record Date for determining entitiements to payment of a
dividend pavyable upon Shares.

ZDIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN




4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

DEGREE OF
« PARTICIPATION

Participation in the DRP may be either full or partial. A Shareholder must (subject to clause 4.4)
specify in the Notice of Election the extent o which the Shareholder wishes to participate in
the DRP.

Under full participation, all Shares registered from fime to time in the Participant’s name,
inciuding Shares issued or acquired pursuant 1o the DRP. will participate in the DRP.

Under partial participation, only that number of Shares as specified in the Notice of Election
by the Shareholder will participate in the DRP. Where a Shareholder Is g partial Participant,
all Shares subsequently issued to or acquired by the Shareholder, whether under the DRP
or otherwise, will only participate in the DRP to the extent that the Shareholder alters the
participation level in accordance with clause 10. However, if at the relevant Record Date the
number of Shares held by the Participant is less than the specified number of participating
Shares. then the provisions of the DRP for that dividend payment will apply to the tesser number
of Shares,

if a Notice of Election does not indicate the level of participation in the DRP then it will be
deemed to be an application for full participation.

_[f a Noftice of Election purports o nominate a Holding for both full participation and partial

parficipation then the Notice of Election will be deemed to be an application for partial
participation,

The Board may determine a maximum number of Plan Shares per Participant (whether
concerning a particular dividend or dividends generally) from time to time. To the extent that
a Nofice of Election or Notice of Variation has specified a number of Plan Shares in excess of
any such maximurn that the Board has specified (Including an election of full participation
where the number of Plan Shares would otherwise exceed that limit), for so long as that limit
applles:

(@) the number of Plan Shares for the Participant for the purposes of these Rules is deemed to
be that limit; and

(b) anyShares specifiedin the Notice of Election or Notice of Variation as Pian Shares in excess
of that limit {including an election of full participation where the number of Plan Shares
would ctherwise exceed that limit) are deemed not to be Plan Shares, and any dividend
payable on them will be paid by the Company in accordance with usual arrangements
for the payment of dividends.




53

54

5.5

5.6
57

OPERATION
- OF THE DRP

The Board will determine if the DRP is available for any dividend.

Each dividend for which the DRP operates and which is payable te a Participant for Plan
Shares and which is available for payment to the Participant will be applied by the Company
on the Participant’s behaif in subscribing for or acquiring additional Shares.

The Board will determine for any dividend for which the DRP operates whether to issue new
Shares or to cause the transfer of Shares to a Participant, or to apply a combination of both
options, 1o satisfy the obligations of the Company under thase Rules.

The Board may have any issue of Shares under the DRP underwritten in such manner as
the Board considers appropriate. i the Board determines to cause the transfer of Shares to
Participants, the Shares may be acquired in the market conducted by ASX in such manner as
the Board considers appropriate.

The Company will establish and maintain a DRP account for each Participant. The Company
will for each dividend payable to a Participant:

{a) determine the amount of the dividend payable for the Plan Shares;

(b) determine the withholding payments (if any) deductible by the Company for the dividend
payable on the Plan Shares, and any other sum the Company is entitled to retain for the
Plan Shares:

(c) credit the amount in clause 5.5(a) and debit any amount in clause 5.5(b) to the
Participant's DRP account;

{(d) determine the maximum whole number of additional Shares which may be acquired
under the DRP at the Price by using the amount in the Participant’s DRP account;

(e) on behalf and in the name of the Participant, subscribe for or cause the transfer of that
nurber of additional Shares determined under clause 5.5(d) and debit the Participant’s
DRP account with the total of the subscription price or the acquisition amount (as the case
rmay be) for the additional Shares;

(f) allot the additional Shares to the Participant (if applicable), and add the number of
Shares allotted or transferred fo the total number of Shares comprised in the relevant
Holding. and

(g) retainin the Participant’s DRP account, without interest, any cash balance remaining.
The Shares will be issued or transferred under the DRP ot the Price.

The Price (including decisions as to whether any sale of Shares was in the ordinary course of
trading) will be calculated or determined by the Board, or another suitable person nominated
by the Board, by reference to information the Board approves from time to time. The
determingtion of the Price by the Board or some other person nominated by the Board will be
binding on all Participants.
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6.2

63

SHARES ALLOTTED
- UNDER THE DRP

Shares allotted under the DRP will be allotted in accordance with the Constitution and in the
manner required under the law and, from the date of allotment, will rank equally in all respects
with existing Shares.

Shares allotted under the DRP will be allotted on, or as soon as practicable after, the relevant
dividend payment date and will be reglstered on the register where the Participant’s holding
of Shares is currently registered. If the Participant holds Shares on more than one register {one
of which is the Company’s principal share register), the Shares allotted under the DRP will be
registered on the principal share register unless and until the Participant requests otherwise.

If a Participant holds shares in certificated form, one or more share certificates will be issued
for the total number of Shares allotted or acquired under the DRP. if a Participant holds Shares
in uncertificated form, one or more statements showing the total number of Shares allotted
or acquired under the DRP will be issued. The certificate or statement will be forwarded to
Participants as soon as practicable after allotment or fransfer to G Participant,

DRP
- STATEMENTS

On, or as soon as practicable after, each dividend payment date, the Company will send to each
Participant a statement setting out:

(@) the number of the Participant’s Plan Shares as at the relevant Record Date;

(b) the amount of dividend payable to the Participant (less any amounts referred to in clause
5.5(b)) for the Participant’s Plan Shares;

(c) the amount in the Participant’'s DRP account immediately prior to the payment of the
relevant dividend;

(d) the number of Shares transferred or allocated to the Participant under the DRP and the
Price of those Shares;

(e the cash balance (if any) retained in the Participant’s DRP account affer deduction of the
amount paid for the additional Shares allotted or transferred to that Participant; and

(fy the number of Shares comprised in the Holding after transfer and/or allotment.



STOCK EXCHANGE
= LISTING

The Company will apply for Shares allotted under the DRP to be listed for quotation on the official list
of ASX as soon as practicable after the date of allotment,

COSTSTO
- PARTICIPANTS

No brokerage. commission or other fransaction costs will be payable by Participants for Shares
transferred or allotted under the DRP ang, subject to any ¢change in law, no stamp duty or other
duties will be payable for Shares transferred or allotted under the DRP.

1 0 VARIATION OR TERMINATION
- OF PARTICIPATION

10.1  Any variation or termination of participation in the DRP must be made on the Notice of
Variation (or such other form as the Board may prescribe or accept from time to time).

10.2 Subject to clause 13, a Participant may at any time give a Notfice of Variation to the Company
1o

(@) increase or decrease the number of the Participant’s Shares participating in the DRP; or
(b) terminate the Participant’s participation In the DRP.
The alteration or termination takes effect from the next Record Date.

10.3 If a Notice of Variation from a Shareholder regarding a particuilar Holding is received by the
Company before the Company has received any Notice of Election from that Shareholder for
that Holding, the Notice of Variation will be invalid and of no effect whatsoever.

10.4 If a Participant Increases the level of participation in the DRP to full participation, all of the
Participant’s Shares as at the date of the Notice of Variation and all Shares subsequently
acquired by the Participant (ncluding Shares issued or transferred under the DRP) will
participate in the DRP.

10.5 M. In completing a Notice of Variation, a Participant purports to nominate a Holding for both full
participation and partial participation at the same time, the Notice of Variation wiil be invalid
and of no effect whatsoever.

continued...
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10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

1.2

1.3

if a Participant increases or decreases the level of participation in the DRP to below full
participation, only that number of Shares specified in the Notice of Variation will participate in
the DRP and no Shares subsequently acquired by the Participant (including shares transferred
or allotted under the DRP) will participate in the DRP.

The Company may. from time to time, establish an online process for Shareholders to vary their
participation in the DRP.

If a Participant dies. participation in the DRP will be terminated upon receipt by the Company
of wrltten notice of the death. If a Participant is declared bankrupt oris wound up, participation
in the DRP will be terminated upon receipt by the Company of a notification of bankruptcy
or winding up from the Participant or the Participant’s frustee in bankruptcy or liquidator, as
the case may be. The death, bankruptcy or winding up of one or more joint holders will not
autcematically terminate participation.

Upon termination of participation in the DRP for whatever reason. including upon the
Participant ceasing to hold any Shares, the Company will forward, unless otherwise directed,
to the Participant or the Participant’s legal representative; '

{(a) astatement of the Participant’s DRP occoun‘r'mode to the date of termination; and

() the cash balance (f any). less any withholding payments (if any) deductible by the
Company for the dividend payable on the Plan Shares, and any other sum the Company
is enfitled to refain for the Plan Shares, shown in the Participant’s DRP account as at the
date of termination,

REDUCTION OR TERMINATION
- OF PARTICIPATION WHERE NO
NOTICE IS GIVEN

Where all of a Participant’s Shares are subject to the DRP and the Participant disposes of some
of those Shares then, unless the Participant advises the Company otherwise pursuant to a
Notice of Variation, the remaining Shares held by the Participant will continue to participate in
the DRP.,

Where some of a Participant’s Shares are subject to the DRP and the Parficipant disposes of
part of that Holding. then unless the Participant advises the Company otherwise pursuant to
a Notlce of Varlation, the Shares disposed of will, to the extent possible, be deemed fo be
Shares other than Plon Shares. If the number of Shares disposed of exceeds the number of the
Participant's Shares which are not Plan Shares, the disposal will be deemed to include all of the
Participont’s Shares which are not Plan Shares, and the balance (if any) of the Shares disposed
of will be attributed to Plan Shares.

Where a Participant disposes of all Shares without giving the Company notice of termination
of participation, the Participant will be deemed to have terminated participation in the DRP
on the lost date on which the Company registered a transfer or instrument of disposal of the
Participant’s Holding.




’I 2 VARIATION, SUSPENSION
- AND TERMINATION

12,1 The Board may vary, suspend or terminate this DRP and may vary the Rules at any time. The
variation, suspension or termination will take effect upon the date specified by the Board.

12.2 The Board may give notice of any such variation, suspension or termination as it considers
appropriate (including, without limitation, by way of public announcement lodged with ASX).
A variation, suspension or termination of the DRP or variation of these Rules is valid irespective
of whether or not such variation, suspension or termination is announced to the market, is
notified directly to a Shareholder, or the non-receipt of any such notice by any Shareholder,
and will not give rise fo any llability on the part of, or right of action against, the Board or the
Company.

12.3 Any suspension of the DRP will continue until such time as the Board resolves either to
recommence or terminate the DRP, If the DRP is recommenced then elections to participate
in the previously operative DRP will be valid and have full force and effect in accordance with
these Rules for the purposes of the recommenced DRP.

12.4 If the DRP is terminated then clause 10.9 applies.

APPLICATION
- AND NOTICES

13.1 If Shares are held joinfly by two or more persens, all notices relating to participation in the
DRP, including any Noftice of Election and Notfice of Variation, must be signed by each joint
holder.

13.2 Applications and notices, including the Notice of Election and Noftice of Variation, will be
effective upon receipt by the Company subject to;

(@) these Rules;
(b) acceptance by the Company: and

(c) receipt by the Company before the relevant Record Date for determining entitlements to
that dividend.

13.3 Applications or notices received on or after the relevant cut-off time on a particular Record
Date will not be effective for that dividend payment but will be effective for the next Record
Date, i
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14.1
14.2

14.3

14.4
14.5

14.6

4.7

14.8

The DRP will commence on the date the Board approves these Rules.

Each Holding which a Shareholder has from fime to time will be regarded as separate for
the purposes of the DRP and the DRP will operate as if each such Holding was held by a
separate person, unless the Board determines otherwise. Consequently, a separate Notice of
Election must be delivered to the Company for each Holding which a Shareholder wishes to
nominate for full or partial DRP participation, and the Shareholder will be treated as a separate
Participant for each Holding nominated for participation (and a reference to Shares held or
acquired by a Shareholder or Participant is a reference to Shares held or acquired on account
of the relevant Holding).

Any dividend payable on Shares which a Participant has nominated to participate in the DRP
and which dividend the Company is entitled to retain as a result of a charge, lien or similar right
in favour of the Company in accordance with the Constitution or other requirement of law will
not be available for the purpose of participating in the DRP.

These Rules will be binding upon each person who is or becomes a Shareholder.

Subject to the Constitution, the Board may implement the DRP in the manner as the Board
thinks fit, and may settle any difficulty which may arise either generally or in a particular case in
connection with the DRP as the Board thinks fif. Without prejudice to the general powers of the
Board under the Constitution and these Rules, the Board may seftle in the manner as the Board
thinks fit any difficulty, anomaly or dispute which may arise in connaction with, or by reason
of, the operation of the DRP, whether generally or in relation to any Shareholder or Holding o
any Share or Shares and the determination of the Board will be conclusive and binding on ail
Shareholders and other persons to whom the determination relates.

Neither the Company nor any offlcer of the Company will be liable or responsible to any
Participant for any loss or alleged loss or disadvantage suffered or incurred by a Participant as
a result, directly or indirectly, of the establishment or operation of the DRP or participation in
the DRP or for any advice gliven about participating in the DRP.

The DRP, its operation and these Rules will be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of Queensiand, Australia.

Any decision to be made, or discretion to be exercised, by the Board may be done in iifs
absolute discretion.







Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

g Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information und documents given to ASX become
ASX's property and may be made public.,

Introduced 34/9/2001.

Name of entity BILLABONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BN 17084 923 946

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director for the purposes of
section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Paul Naude

Date of last notice 30 November 2007

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made availabie by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of "notifiable interest of a director™ should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct

Nature of indirect interest

(including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the refevant
interest.

Date of change 8 September 2008

No. of securities held prior to change 1,821,179  (Paul Naude)

45,496  (Paul Naude - shares will vest after the three year
petformance period end date of 30 June 2008,
provided the performance hurdles have
been met)

41917  (Paul Naude — shares will vest after the three year
performance period end date of 30 June 2009,
provided the performance hurdles have
been met)

48,745  {(Paul Naude — shares will vest after the three year
performance period end date of 30 June 2010,
provided the performance hurdles have
been met)

1,957,337 TOTAL FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES

Class Fully paid ordinary listed shares

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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valuation

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide dctails and cstimated

Number acquired N/A
Number disposed 250,000
Value/Consideration $3,338,530.85

No. of securities held after change

1,571,179
45,496

41,917

48,745

1,707,337

{Paul Naude)

{Paul Naude — shares will vest after the three year
performance period end date of 30 June 2008,
provided the performance hurdles have

been met)

{Paul Naude — shares will vest after the three year
performance period end date of 30 June 2009,
provided the performance hurdles have

been met)

(Paul Naude — shares will vest after the three year
performance pericd end date of 30 June 2010,
provided the performance hurdles have

been met)

TOTAL FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES

Nature of change

securitics under dividend reinvestmient plan, participation in buy-back

Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of wptions, issue of

On-market trade.

Part 2 — Change of director’s interesis in contracts — N/A

Note: In the case of a company, interests which cotne within parugraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which

interest related prior to change
Note: Details are only required for a contract in relation
te which the intcrest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is nen-cash, provide details and
an cstimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rufe 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

)

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as available. [nformation and documents given to ASX
become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/972001,

[Name of entity BILLABONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ABN 17 084 923 946

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director for the
purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Derek O'Neill

Date of last notice 15 September 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Nate: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of *notifiable interest of 2 director™ should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct
Nature of indirect interest
(including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant
interest.
Date of change 16 Scptember 2008
No. of securities held prior to change 469,049 (ANZ Nominees Limited)
597,581 (Derck O’ Neill)
44123 (Derek O Neill — shares will vest after the three
year performance period end date of 30 June
2009, provided the performance hurdles have
been met}
56,363 {Derek O’ Neill — shares will vest after the three
year performance period end date of 30 June
2010, provided the performance hurdles have
been met)
1,167,116 TOTAL FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES
Class Fully paid ordinary listed shares
Number acquired 41,745
Number disposed

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms,
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Value/Consideration

valuation

Note: If considcmtion is non-cash, provide details and cstimated

$550,199.10

No. of securities held after change

469,049
639,326
44,123

56,363

1,208,861

(ANZ Nominces Limited)

(Derek O'Neill)

{Derek O’ Neill — shares will vest after the three
year performance period end date of 30 June
2009, provided the performance hurdles have
been met)

(Derek O'Neill - shares will vest after the three
vear performance period end date of 30 June
2010, provided the performance hurdles have
been met)

TOTAL FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES

Nature of change

securitics under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Exnmple; on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of options, issue of

Purchase of shares under the Billabong Tax Deferred Plan.

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts — N/A

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within parngraph (ii) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a dircctor™ should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to

change
Note: Details nre only required for a contruct in relation
to which the intcrest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is non~cash, provide details and
an cstimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX us soon as available. Information and documents given to ASX
become ASX's properly and may be made public.

Intraduced 30/972001,

[Name of entity BILLABONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ABN 17 084 923 946

We (the cntity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director for the
purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Derck O'Neill

Date of last notice 30 November 2007

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available by the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of n company, interests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct

Nature of indirect interest

(including registered holder)
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant
interest.

Date of change 15 September 2008

No. of securities held prior to change 469,049 (ANZ Nominees Limited}
557,772 {Derek O’ Neill)
45,496 {Derek O’ Neill — shares will vest after the three
year petformance period end date of 30 June
2008, provided the performance hurdles have
been met)
44,123 (Dcrek O’ Neill — shares will vest after the three
year performance period end date of 30 June
2009, provided the performance hurdles have
been met)
56,363 (Derek O'Neill — shares will vest after the three
year performance period end date of 30 June
2010, provided the performance hurdles have
been met)

1,172,803 TOTAL FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES

Class Fully paid ordinary listed shares

Number acquired

+ See chapier 19 for defined terms.
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Number disposed

Value/Consideration NIL
Note; [f consideration is non-cash, provide details and estimated
valuaticn
No. of securities held after change 469,049 (ANZ Nominees Limited)
597,581 (Derck O’ Neill)
44,123 (Derek O'Netll — shares will vest after the three
year performance period end date of 30 June
2009, provided the performance hurdles have
been met)
56,363 {Derek O'Neill - shares will vest after the three
year performance period end date of 30 June
2010, provided the performance hurdles have
been met)
LL167,116  TOTAL FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES

Nature of change

securitics under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Example; on-market trade, off-market trde, exercise of options, issue of

Vesting of 39,809 shares awarded under the Billabong
Executive Performance Share Plan (as approved by
shareholders on 21 October 2005) upon achievement of
performance hurdles as at 30 June 2008,

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts — N/A

Note: In the case of a company, intcrests which come within paragraph (ii) of the definition of “notifiable interest of & director” should be disclosed in this part,

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to
change

Nate: Details are only required for a contract in relation
to which the intcrest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Nede: [ consideration is non-cash, provide details and
an estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 3.194,2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not availuble now must be given to ASX as soon as available. Information und documents given to ASX become
ASX'’s property and may be made public.

Introduced 30/9/2001.

[Name of entity BILLABONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ABN 17 084 923 946

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the director for the purposes of
section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Paul Naude

Date of last notice 8 September 2008

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this includes interests in the trust made available hy the responsible entity of the trust

Note: In the case of @ campany, interests which come within paragraph (3) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a dircctor” should be disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest Direct
Nature of indirect interest
(including registered holder)
Nolc: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise to the relevant
mntercsl.
Date of change 15 September 2008
No. of securities held prior to change 1,571,179 (Paul Naude)
45,496  (Paul Naude - shares will vest after the three year
performance period end date of 30 June 2008,
provided the performance hurdles have
been met)
41,917  (Paul Naude — shares will vest after the three year
performance period end date of 30 June 2009,
provided the performance hurdles have
been mct)
48,745  (Paul Naude — shares will vest after the three year
performance peried end date of 30 June 2010,
provided the performance hurdies have
been met)
1,707,337 TOTAL FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES
Class Fully paid ordinary listed shares

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Number acquired

Number disposed

Value/Consideration

Note; If consideration is non-cash, provide details wnd estimated
valuation

NIL

No. of securities held after change

1,610,988  (Paul Naude)

41,917  (Paul Naude — shares will vest after the three year
performance period end date of 30 June 2009,
provided the performance hurdles have
been met)

48,745  {(Paul Naude - shares will vest after the three year
performance period end date of 30 June 2010,
provided the performance hurdles have
been met)

1,701,650  TOTAL FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES

Nature of change
Example: on-market trade, off-market trade, exercise of options, issuc of
securitics under dividend reinvestment plan, participation in buy-back

Vesting of 39,809 shares awarded under the Billabong
Executive Performance Share Plan (as approved by
shareholders on 21 October 2005) upon achievement of
performance hurdles as at 30 June 2008,

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts — N/A

Nate: In the case of a company, interests which come within paragraph (ii) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director” should be disclosed in this part.

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to which

intercst related prior to change
Note: Details are only requiced for a contrace in relation
to which the intcrest has changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration

Note: If consideration is non-cash, provide details znd
an estimated valuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms,
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26 September 2008

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board. | am pleased to invite you to the 2008 Annual General
Meeting of Billabong International Limited.

The meeting will commence at 10.00am on Tuesday, 28 October 2008 and will be
held in the Surfers Paradise | & I Rooms af Conrad Jupiters, Broadbeach Island,
Broadbeach, Queensland.

A Notice of Meeting, Explanatory Memorandum and Proxy Form are enclosed
with this invitation. These documents, together with Billadbong International
Limited’s 2007/08 Full Financial Report and Shareholder Review, are available
on the Billabong corporate website www.billgbongbiz.com. In accordance with
recent legislative changes. only those shareholders who have elected to receive
a Full Financial Report or Shareholder Review will receive a copy by mail.

If you are attending the meeting, please bring this letter with you to assist us to
process your registration efficiently. If you are unable to aftend, you may appoint
Q proxy to vote for you at the meeting by compteting the attached Proxy Form.
If you intend to appoint a proxy. please return the completed proxy form in
accordance with the directions on the form by 10.00am on Sunday, 26 October
2008.

Your Directors look forward to seeing you at this meefing.

Yours sincerely

ot

1 Bikabeng Place

Surleigh Heacls

QLD 4220 Australia TED KUNKEL
PO Box 283 Chairman

Burleigh Heads
QLD 4220 Australia

Tal +617 55899899
Fax +&1 7 5589 9654

www.blllabongbiz.com

AGM REGISTRATION The 2008 Annucl General Meeting of Bilabong Intarmnational Limited
is to bbe held on Tuesday, 28 October 2008 at 10.00am in the Surfers
Paradise | & Il Rooms at Conrad Jupiters, Broadbeach island,
Broadbeoch, with registration commencing af 9.00am.
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The Billabong International Limited 2008 Annual General Meeting will be held in the
Surfers Paradise Rooms | & It at Conrad Jupiters
Broadbeach lsland, Broadbeach, Qld
Tuesday, 28 October 2008 at 10:00am

- S¥alidnr AVHNGD

T3A3T ONISVD 'NVId 300W 13L0H

aGvENOGD

SWILIAT

WILAR] T4 1

Parking Is available on site at Conrad Jupiters.



Billabong
Intemational
Limited

ABN 17 D84 923 946

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notlce Is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of shareholders of Billabong Infermational
Limited will be held at Conrad Juplters, Surfers Paradise Rooms | and |l, Broadbeach ksland,
Broadbeach. Queensiond at 10.00 a.m. on Tuesday 28 October 2008,

ORDINARY BUSINESS
Financial Report and Directors' and Audit Reports

To receive and consider the Financlal Report, including the Directors’ Declaration, for the year ended
30 June 2008 and the related Directors’ Report and Audit Report.

Re-olection of Direclors

1 Mrs. Margaret Jackson retires by rotatlon in accordance with Article 6.3 (b) of the Company’s
Constitution and. being eliglble, offers herself for re-election.

2. Mr. Anthony Froggott having been appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 21 February
2008, retires In accordance with Article 6.3 (i) of the Company's Constitution and, being
ellgible, offers himself for re-election.

Remuneration Report

3. That the Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 June 2008 be adopted,
(Note: the vote on this resolution is advisory only and does not bind the Directors or the
Company).

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Apptoval and Adoption of Executive Performance and Retention Plan (EPRP)

4, To approve and adopt the Executive Performance and Retention Plan, the terms and
conditions of which are summarised in the Explanatory Memorandum accompanying this
Notice of Meeting, and to approve the issue of equity securitles under the Executive
Performance and Retention Plan for all purposes, including ASX Listing Rule 7.2, Exception 9.

Award of Share Options to Execulive Directors under the Executive Performance and Retention Plan

5. To approve the grant of up to 629.007 options to My, Derek O'Neill pursuant 1o the Billabong
International Limited Executive Performance and Retentlon Plan and the issue of shares on
the exerclse of those options for the purposes of ASX Listing Rule 10.14.

6. Te approve the grant of up to 524,170 opfions to Mr. Paul Naude pursuant to the Billabong
international Limited Executive Performance and Retention Plan and the lssus of shares on
the exercise of those options for the purposes of ASX Listing Rute 10.14.
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Awards to Executive Directors under the Execufive Performance Share Plan

7. That the award of up to 71,704 fully paid ordinary shares, for no conslideration, to
Mr. Berek O'Nelll pursuant to the Billabong International Limited Executive Performance
Share Plan for the financlal year ended 30 June 2009 be approved for the purposes of ASX
Listing Rule 10.14,

8. That the award of up to 62,020 fully paid ordinary shares, for no consideration, to

Mr. Paul Naude pursuant to the Billabong International Limited Executive Performance Share
Plan for the financiol year ended 30 June 2009 be approved for the purposes of ASX Listing
Rule 10.14.

By Order of the Board
MARIA MANNING
COMPANY SECRETARY

Voting Exclusion Statement

In accordance with the ASX Listing Rules, the Company will disregard any votes cast by any director
of the entity (except those directors who are ineligible to participate in any employee Incenfive
scheme in relation to the entity) and any of their associales in relafion to resolutions 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8.

However the Company need not disregard a vote if it is cast by a person as proxy for a person who is
entitled to vole, in accordance with the direction on the proxy form or it is cast by a person chairing
the meeling as proxy for a person who is enfitied fo vore, in accordance with a direction on the proxy
form fo vote as the proxy decides.

Proxies

If you are unable to atfend and vote at the meeting and you wish 1o appoint a person who Is
attending as your proxy, please complete the enctosed form of proxy, This forrn must be recelved by
the Company or the Company’s share registry, Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd, by 10:00 a.m.
on Sunday 26 October 2008.

The completed form of proxy may be:

. Malled to the Company at PO Box 283, Burleigh Heads, Queensland, 4220; or
Faxed to the Company at +61 7 5589 9654, or
E-malled to secretary@blllabong.com.au; or

. Mailed to the Company's share registry, Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd, at Level 19,
CPA Building, 307 Queen Street, Brishane, Queensiand, 4000; or
Faxed to Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd on + 61 7 3237 2152; or

* Submifted online to the Company’s share registry by visiting the website,
www.investorvote.com.ay. You will need your Securltyholder Reference Number (SRN) or
Holder ldentification Number (HIN) and PIN as shown on your proxy form. You will be taken to
have signed the proxy form if you lodge it In accordance with the insfructions on the website.

Further details in respect of the resolutions to be put to the meseting are set out in the accompanying
Explanaiory Memorandum.

The time for the purposes of determining voting entitlements pursuant to regulation 7.11.37 of the
Corporations Regulations will be 7:00 p.m. on Sunday 26 October 2008.
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EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM

financial Report and Directors’ and Audit Reports

As required by Section 317 of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). the Finoncicl Statements for the
financial year ended 30 June 2008 together with the statement and report by the Directors and the
report by the cuditor will be iaid before the meeting. Members will be provided with the opportunity
to ask questions about the reports and the management of the Company. However, there will be no
formal resolution put to the meeting In relation to this matter.

Resolutions 1 and 2 - Re-election of Directors

Mrs. Margaret Jackson retires by rotation In cccordance with Article 6.3 (b) of the Company's
Constitution. Mrs. Jackson has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 4 July 2000,
Belng eligible, Mrs. Jackson offers hersalf for re-election.

Mr. Anthony Froggatt having been appolnted as a Non-Executive Director on 21 February 2008, retires
In accordance with Article 6.3 (i) of the Company’s Constitution and being eligible, Mr. Froggatt
offers himself for re-etection.

The Board {In each case. in the absence of the relevant director) unankmously recommends that
shaireholders vote in favour of the re-election of Mrs. Jacksqn and Mr. Froggatt,

Resolution 3 - Remuneration Report

Section 250R of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) requires that the Company's members vote on
whether or not the Remuneration Report should be adopted. This vote Is advisory only and the
outcome will not be binding on the Board.

The Remuneratlon Report Is set out on pages 9 to 21 of the Directors’ Report in the Company’s 2007/08
Full Financlal Report. The report:

. explains the Company's remuneration reward framework for its senior managers:

. discusses how the remuneration reward framework aligns reward with achievernent of
strateglc and financial objectives and creation of value for shareholders;

i sets out remuneration details for each director and for the Company’s senlor management
team;

. provldes details on alt eguity Instruments provided as remuneration to each director of the
Company and its senior managers: and

. details mgjor provisions of service agreements between the Company and the senior

management team.
A reasonable opportunity will be provided for discussion of the Remuneration Report at the meeting.

The Board unanimously recommends that shareholders vote In favour of resolution 3.
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Resolutions 4, 5 and é - Executive Performance and Retention Plan (EPRP)

The Company recently established the 8lllabong International Limited Executive Performance and
Retention Plan (EPRP). which is designed to facliitate the retentlon of key executives of the Company.

{a}) Ovearview of Listing Rules and approvals sought

In summary, ASX Listing Rule 7.1 prohlbits an entity from issuing more than 15% of its securlties in any
twelve (12) month perlod without obtaining shareholder approval. unless an exception applies.

ASX Listing Rule 7.2, Exception 9, provides that securityholder approval is not required for an Issue
under an employee Incentive scheme if, within three (3) years before the date of issue, holders of
ordinary securifles have approved the issue of securities under the scheme as an exception to Listing
Rule 7.1.

ASX Listing Rule 10.14 provides that an entity must not permit a director to acquire securities under an
employee incentive scheme without shareholder approval,

Accordingly:

. Resolution 4 seeks shareholder approval, pursuont to Listing Rule 7.2, Exception ¢ 1o grants
of options and the issue of the underlying shares on exerclse of those options under the EPRP
as an exception to Listing Rule 7.1; and

. Resolutions 5 and 6 seek shareholder approval for grants of options {and the Issue of shares
on the exerclse of those options) to the Company's Executive Directors, Mr. Derek O'Neill and
Mr. Paui Naude.

Separately. resclution 4 also seeks approval for the adoption of the EPRP liself. While such approval

is not required under Austrglian law (as the Board has power to implement employee ond executive
equity plans from time to time) it Is necessary to ensure that the Company complies with all
opplicable requirements under Californian securities law (where a relevant participating executive is
located),

{b) Components of executive remuneration
Billabong's current executive reward framework comprises the following remuneration components:

0] Fixed remuneration - guaranteed annual payments, which reward individuals for perfarming
thelr day-to-cay duties.

(iny Short-term Incentives (§T1) - rewards individuals for the achievement of short-term goals over a
twelve (12) month period. Part of the 5Tl is linked o Individual performance. taking Into
conslderation factors such as divislonalfregional budgets, personal objectives and other
key performance indicators (KPI's). The remalning part Is inked to the finencial performance
of the Company.

{liiy Long-term incentives (LTI} - aims to align the interests of executives and shareholders. LTI
is delivered in the form of performance shares (or rights in some jurisdictions) under the
Executive Performance Share Plan (EPSP) and Is linked to the achievement of specific
Earnings Per Share (EPS) targets over a performance period of three (3) years.
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While the execuilve reward framework has assisted in the retention, reward and motlvatton of
executives, the Board identifted a need to retain a select group of executives who they consider to be
Instrumantal in the growth of Billabong over the next five (b) years. Over the past twelve (12) months a
review of the executive reward framework was conducted with the assistance of external consulfants,
The EPRP was implemented as a result of that review. The EPRP Is designed to facllitate the retention of
five {5) key executives;

« Derek O'Neill - Chief Executive Officer

* Paul Naude - General Manager North Ametica
« Craig White - Chief Financial Officer

* Franco Fogliato - General Manager Europe

« Shannan North - General Manager Australasia

The Board has identified these tive {5) key executives to parficipate in the EPRP s it belleves retention
of these individuals will be crucial in achleving the challenging growth targets set by the Company,
over the coming flve (5) year perlod.

It Is proposed that in order to lock-In and effectively reword these five (5) executives, and fo focus the
executives on sustained share price growth through the introduction of a stretch TSR target, a one-off
tailored plan is required that provides high potentlal reward but with a retention focus.

(c) Overview of the EPRF and proposed terms of grant

The below diagram provides an overview of the EPRP:

1 Juty 2008
{commencement
of performance Tttt Vo Tt o T ot TTTTT 7 Options vest
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The key features of the EPRP are summarlsed below:
1. Eligibility: Five (5) key executives as determined by the Board: Derek O’Neill, Paul Naude,

Craig White, Franco Fogliato and Shannan North. Eligibility will be in addition to thelr current
participation in the EPSP and the STl plans.

2. Awaord Structure: Parficipants will be offered an award of options, which on exercise, wlill
entitle them to receive an ordinary Blllabong share, provided the specifled performance
hurdies are met. The exercise price is o be set at the time of grant,
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Exercise Price: The exercise price for the options will be the five (8) day volume weighted
average price of the Company’s shares up o the date of grani.

Vesting Period: Options wlll vest af the fifth anniversary of grant subject to meeting absolute
and relative TSR performance hurdies.

Performance Period (Date of commencement and length of period): Proposed date of
commencement of the performance period Is 1 July 2008 and the performance hurdles will
be measured at each respective testing daie.

Performance Hurdles:

. A gateway' relative TSR hurdle of above median of a custom comparator group of
companies over the five (5) year performance period, measured from start of
pearformance peried to end of year five (5), using a sfart share price averaged over a
twenty-one (21) day trading period (ten {10) trading days either slde and including
1 July 2008} and end average share price over a twenty (20) trading day period.

. Absolute TSR hurdle with a 120% target to be achieved at any point over the
five (5) year performance perlod, using a start share price averaged over a
twenty-one (21) day frading period (ten (10) trading days either side and including
1 July 2008) and end average share price over a twenty (20) trading day perlod.

Relative TSR Comparator Group: ASX 100 companies at the start of the performance period
(excluding companies that fall under the GICS industry name codes: "Oll, Gas and
Consumable Fuels’ and "Metals and Mining”). The Boaird has the discretlon to adjust this
comparator group to fake inte account events including, but not fimited to, fakeovers or
mergers that might occur during the performance petiod.

Earty Banking Oppeortunity: One third of total options gronted can be banked (1.e. satisfy the
approprate performance hurdles, although the continued employment condition must stifl
be satisfied) at the third anniversary of grant:

. if the Company TSR is above median against the comparator group of companies
when measured from the start of the performance pefiod to end of year three (3): and
. if a TSR target of BO% is achieved, at any point between the start of the performance

period and the end of year three (3).

Two thirds of total options granted can be banked at the fourth anniversary of grant:

. if the Company TSR is above median against the comparator group of companles
when measured from the start of the performance period 1o end of year four (4); and
. if a TSR target of 100% is achieved, at any point between the start of the performonce

period and the end of year four (4).

TSR will be measured using a start share price averaged over a twenty-one (21) day irading
perlod (fen (10) trading days elther side and Including 1 July 2008) and a twenty (205 frading
day end average share price.

Cessation of Employment: Options lopse If the participant ceases employment prior to the
end of the performance period, unless they cease employment due to death. permonent
disability or other such special circumstances that the Board may determing. In such cases
awards would vest subject to performance measured against the applicable hurdles and be
pro-rated o the portion of the performance period elapsed.

Term of Options and Disposal Restrictions: Any options that have not vested at the fifth
anniversary of grant will lapse, Vested options expire seven (7) years after grant (i.e. there is
a two (2) year exercise window).

Share Disposal Restrictions: Disposal restrictions will not apply to shares allocated on exerclse
of the options. However. shares may only be sold during a trading window, In accordance
with the Blllabong Securities Trading Policy.
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12,

14.

16.

17.

Change of Contiol, Participation in Capltal Restructures, Rights and Bonus Issues; In the

event of a change of control or takeover, TSR performance will be tested at the point change
of control or takeover occurs and one third, two thirds or all of the grant will vest if both the
absolute TSR performance and the relative TSR performance target have been achieved
within the respective fime frame.

In the event of a bonus Issue. reorganisation of capital or other corporate action, the Board
may adjust the number of options to which each participont is entitied, or any amount
payable on exercise of an option, or both as appropriate, in the manner determined by the
Board to ensure that no advantage or disadvantage occurs for the participant as a result of
such corporate action.

Satisfaction of Awards, Source of Shares: The Board will have discretlon to allow options to be
setfled with newly issued shares or shares purchased on market, A trust may be used to assist
in this process.

Dividends and Voting Rights: Options will not aftract dividends and voting righis until the
options vest and are exerclsed, and shares are allocated.

Lite of Plan: The EPRP will terminate ten (10) years after It s adopted by shareholders.

Non-Australian Residents: The Board has the discretion to alter the terms of the EPRP to have
regard to the overseas laws. Accordingly, the Board Is proposing to implement a speclfic
French subplan for awards made In France, with the same performance hurdles ond award
structure, to address issues raised by the French Commerciat Code,

Award Quantum: Awards will be expressed as a number of options (rather than a dollar value
of shares). The number of options to be granted in total fo the five (5) key executives will

be equivalent to 1% of the issued share capital at the date of grant. That number of options
will be divided as follows: 30% to Derek O'Nelll, 25% to Paul Naude, and 15% each to Craig
White. Shannan North and Franco Fogliato. While the actual number of optlons to be granted
will be determined as a result of this formula, the maximum number of options that may be
granted to Derek O'Neill Is 629,007 options and the maximum number of optlons that may be
granted o Paul Naude is 524,170 options.

Proposed Timing of Grants: All gronts will be made following approval of shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting.

Design Rationale

The rationale for the above design is as follows:

The five () year vesting perlod encourages retention of key executives, over the period of the
five (5) vear strategic plan.

The strefch absolute TSR performance target should focus executives on signlficantly growing
the business in line with the strategic plan and generating strong returns for shareholders.

The relative TSR gateway ensuras that executives are only rewarded for the absolute TSR
performance it they are alse In the “top half” of ASX 100 {(exciuding companles thot fall under
the GICS industry name codes: "Qll. Gas and Consumable Fuels’ and "Metals and Mining'}
performers at the fime performance is tested.

Although vesting occurs at the fifth anniversary from the date of grant, participants have the
opportunity to “bank” early. The banking approach has the following benefits:

° The possibility that executives will have “skin in the game” from year three (3) which
will resuit in a substantially increased retentlon impact: and
° Rewards for "early” high TSR performance but, due o the continued employment

requirement and the dellvery vehicle belng share options, this encourages sustained
share price performance throughout the five (8) year period.
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os follows:
. 629007 options would be granted to Derek O'Neill;
. 524170 optlons would be granted to Paul Naude: and
. 314,503 options would be granted to each of Craig White, Shannan North and

Franco Fogliato.

This maximum number has been determined by assuming an issued share caplial of 209,668,563 as at
the grant date calculated as follows:

Issued share capital as at 26 September 2008 207,437,563
Estimated number of new shares to be Issued as at 24 October 2008

pursuant to a 50% underwritten Dividend Reinvestment Plan 2,231,000
TOTAL 209.668.563

The actual number of options granted wili be based on the Company’s issued share capital at the
date of grant (as described in polnt 17 above) and may be less than the numbers above.

As each option represents an entitlement 1o one share (subject to satisfaction of the performance
conditions) the number of shares which rmay be acquired by the Executive Directors Is equal fo the
number of options granted.

Of the tive (5) executives only Mr. Derek O'Neill and Mr. Paul Naude are the subject of resolutions
Sandé.

Mr. Derek O'Nelll and Mr. Paul Noude are the only directors entitied o parficipate in the EPRP.

The EPRP is a new plan and no options have been granted yet. It is intended that the options will be
granted shortly ofter the Annual General Meeting and no later than twelve (12) months after the
Annual General Meeting.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company recommends that shareholders vote in favour of
these resolutions.

Resolutions 7 and 8 - Awards to Executive Directors under the Executive Performance Share Plan (EPSP)

The establishment of the Billabong International Limlited Executive Performance Share Plan was
approved by shareholders at the Company’s Annuat General Meseting on 22 October 2004. The Plan
Is designed to provide an Incentlve for executives 1o achieve above average performance over the
medium term In the Company's businesses. Under the Plan, Directors of the Company ara able io
make an award of fully pald ordinary shares In the Company o selected Billabong executlves. The
shares remain In the possession of the trustee of the Plan pursuant fo the provlsions of the Bilabong
Executive Performance Share Plan Trust Deeds and will not vest in the executive until the performance
criteria specifled by the Board af the time of the award of the shares have been achleved.
Participants are not required to pay for the performance shares.

As advised o shareholders at previous Annual General Meetings the Directors expect to make annual
awards of performance shares under the Plan to the Executlve Directors. Any performance shares
issued to Executive Directors requires approval of shareholders under ASX Listing Rule 10.14 including
shares issued under the Plan.

The Board proposes to make an award of performance shares 1o each of Mr. Derek O'Neill, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Mr. Paul Naude, the General Manager, Blllabong North
America. 1t Is proposed that the relevant performance shares be issued within three (3) months of
shareholder approval,
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The performance shares will be Issued in two (2} franches to each of Mr. O'Neill and Mr. Naude. The
following critera will apply to each tranche:

Tranche 1:

) if annual compound earmings per share (EPS) growth is less than 10%, no performance shares
will vest:

D) if annual compound EPS growth is equal to 10%, 50% of the shares awarded will vest. if annuai

compound EPS growth Is greater than 10% but less than 12.5%, the proportlon of performance
shares vesting will be Increased on a pro-rata basis between 50% and 100%:

c) it annual compound EPS growth Is equal to or greater than 12.5%. 100% of the shares
awarded will vest.

Tranche 2:
a) if annual compound EPS growth is less than or equal to 12.5%. no performance shares will vest:
b) if the annual compound EPS growth Is greater than 12.5% but less than 15.0%, the proportion

of performance shares vesting wlll be increased on a pro-rata basis between 1% and 100%:

c) if the annual compound EPS growth is equal to or greater than 15.0%, 100% of the
performance shares awarded will vest.

Tranche 2 as identified above is iIntended fo reward supeiior performance against the performance
criteria. The performance criteria for both franches apply to Billabong's EPS growth for the three (3)
financial years from 1 July 2008 to 30 June 2011 compared t¢ the financlal year ended 30 June 2008.

The number of performance shares available to each of Mr. O’Nellt and Mr. Naude is as follows:

Mr. O'Neill:
Tranche 59,753 shares
Tranche 2: 11,951 shares
Mr. Naude:
Tranche 1: 51,683 shares
Tranche 2: 10,337 shares

A summary of the malor provislons of the rules of the Executlve Performance Share Plan can be

viewed on the Company’s website www.billabongbiz.com.

Mr. O'Neill and Mr. Naude are the only directors entitled to partlcipate in the EPSP.

At the 2007 Annual General Meating shareholders approved a grant of 56,363 perforrmance shares to
Mr. O'Neill and a grant of 48,745 performance shares to Mr. Naude. Those performance shares were
granted on 30 Novernber 2007, at no cost fo either Executive Director, In accordance with the terms
approved by shareholders.

It is intended that the relevant performance shares wlll be Issued within three (3) months of the Annual
General Meeting, and no later than twelve (12) months after the Annual General Meeting.

The Company will bear the full cost of the grant of performance shares. There is no loan or other
repayment required in respect of the grant of the performance shares. That is, as noted above.
Mr. O'Neilt and Mr. Naude will not be required to pay for the performance shares granted fo them.
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Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company recommends that shareholders vote in favour of
these resolutlons.

In accordance with the ASX Listing Rules, the Company will disregard any votes cast by any director
of the entity (except those directors who are ineligible to participate in any employee Incentive
scheme In relation to the entity) and any of their associates in relation to resolutions 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8.

However, the Company need not disregard o vote if it is cast by a person as proxy for a person who

Is entitled to vote, In accordance with the direction of the proxy form or it is cast by a person chairing
the meeting as proxy for a parson who Is entitied to vote, in accordance with a direction on the proxy
form to vote as the proxy decides.
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How to Vote on Items of Business
All your securities will be voted in accordance with your directions.

Appcintment of Proxy

If you wish to appoint the Chairman of the Meeting as your proxy,
please mark the box. If the individual or body corporate you wish to
appoint as your proxy is somaong other than the Chairman of the
Meeting, please write the full name of that individual or body corporate
in the space provided. If you leave this section blank, or your named
proxy does not attend the meeting, the Chairman of the Meeting will be
your proxy. Do not writa the name of the issuer company or the
registered securityholder in the space.

Voting 100% of your holding: Direct your proxy how to vote by
marking one of the boxes opposite each item of business, If you do not
mark a box your proxy may vote as they choose. If you mark more than
one box on an item without specifying the portion of your voting rights to
he voted on each (see instructions below}, then your vote will be invalid
on that item.

Voting a portion of your holding: Indicate a portion of your voting
rights by inserting the percentage or nurnber of securities you wish to
vote in the For, Against or Abstain box or boxes. The sum of the votes
cast must not exceed your voting entitlement or 100%.

Appointing a second proxy: You are entitled {o appeint up to two
proxies to attend the meeting and vote on a poll. If you appoint two
proxias you must specify the percentage of votes or number of
securities for each proxy, otherwise each proxy may exercise half of the
votes. When appointing a second proxy writa both names and the
percentage of votes or number of securities for each in Step 1 overleal.

A proxy need not be a securityholder of the Company.

Signing Instructions

Individual: Where the holding is in one name, the securityholdar
must sign.

Joint Holding: Where the holding is in more than one name, all of
the securityholders should sign.

Power of Attorney: If you have not already lodged the Power of
Attorney with the registry, please attach a certified photocopy of the
Power of Attorney to this form when you retum it.

Companies: This form must be signed in accordance with section
127 of the Corporations Act 2001 or the company’s constitution.

Attending the Meeting

Bring this form to assist registration. If a representative of a corporate
securityholder or proxy is to attend the meeting you will need to
provide the appropriate "Certificate of Appointment of Corporate
Representative™ prior to admission. A form of the certificate may be
obtained from Computershare or online at www.computershare.com,

Comments & Questions: If you have any comments or questions
for the company, please write them on a separate sheet of paper and
return with this form,
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SAMPLEVILLE VIC 3030 broker (referance number
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. Proxy Form Please mark X to indicate your directions
Appoint a Proxy to Vote on Your Behalf XX

I/We being a member/s of Billabong International Limited hereby appoint

ﬁ PLEASE NOTE: Leave this box blank if
you have selected the Chairman of the
OR Meeting. Do not insert your own name(s}.

the Chairman
of the meeting

or failing the individual or body corporate named, or if no individual or body corporate is named, the Chairman of the Meaeting, as my/our proxy
to act generally at the meeting on my/our behalf and to vote in accordance with the following directions {or if no directions have been given, as
the proxy sees fit} at the Annual General Meeting of Billabong International Limited to be held at Conrad Jupiters, Surfers Paradise Rooms | & I,
Broadbeach Island, Broadbeach, Queensland at 10.00am Tuesday, 28 October 2008 and at any adjournment of that meeting.

STEP 2 Items of Business 25 PLEASE NOTE: If you mark the Abataln box for an item, you ara directing your proxy not to vote on your
bahalf on a show of hands or a poll and your votes will not be counted in computing the required majority.

2
ORDINARY BUSINESS (-"‘7 o 5

. 1. Re-election of Mrs. Margaret Jackson as a Director

2. Re-elaction of Mr. Anthony Froggatt as a Director

3 Adopt the Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 June 2008

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Approve and adopt the Executive Performance and Retention Plan

5. Approve the grant of up to 629,007 options to Mr. Derek O'Neill pursuant to the Billabong International Limited
: Executive Performance and Retention Plan

6. Approve the grant of up to 524,170 oplions to Mr. Paul Naude pursuant to the Billabong International Limited
Executive Performance and Retention Ptan

7. Approve the award of up to 71,704 fully paid ordinary shares to Mr. Derek O'Neill pursuant to the Billabong
: International Limited Executive Performance Share Plan

8. Approve the award of up to 62,020 fully paid ordinary shares 1o Mr. Paul Naude pursuant to the Billabong
International Limited Executiva Performance Share Plan

The Chalrman of the Meeting intends to vote undirected proxies in favour of each item of business.

SIGN Signature of Securityholder{s) nis section must be completed.

Individual or Securityholdaer 1 Securityholder 2 Socurltyholder 3
Sole Director and Sole Company Sacretary Director Director/Company Secretary
Contact
Contact Daytime
Name Teleghona Date / !
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Detailed information on the financial performance of Billabong
International Umited and the remuneration of senlor exacutives
is available in the Full Financial Report 2007-08 located on the
Company's website (www .blliabongbiz.com).
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' The 2007-08 financial year was a period In which the Company continued to experience growth in
sates, margins, profitability and market share. These are, and will continue 1o be, the internal business
mefrics on which monagement is focused and rewarded. However, a number of external factors,
principally the unsettied globat macro economic snvironment and a streng Australian dollar, iInfluenced
the Company’s reporfed performance. Through ali of this, the Company deliverad strong underlying
growth in net profit after tax to cement ifs place as one of the most consistent, leng ferm perforrmers
on the Australion Securities Exchange (ASX). Such growth is testament to the strength of the Group's
products and brands and the performance of its paople.

A range of externol parties recognised
the Group’s performancs  thiough  the
year. The Unied States-based Surf Incustry
Manufaciturars’ Association (SIMA) awarded
Bilabong Girls the tittes of Women's Apparel
Brand of the Yeor and Women's Marketing
Campaign of the Year, while Bllabong
Mens was awarded Environmental Product
of the Year for its recycled boardshorts. The
SiMA owards also recognised the Mixon
51-30 wotch as the Accessoty Procuct of
the Year and the Xcel Infinitl Drylock as the
Wetsuit of the Year. Among other awards,
the Global Hobbo Youth Survey of 58,000
teans in 31 countries identified Bilabong s
cne of the world's top ¢lothing brands, the
International Councll of Shopping Centras
acknowledged Bilabong as one of the
world’s ‘hottest retailers’ and the Austrolion
Surfing Awards recognised Blllabong as the
Inaugural winner of the Surf Industry Award
for its environmental initiatives.

External judgement of performance also
extended io the Group’s monitoring of
third party contracters in Its supply chain
N through  the continued applicatlon  of
i Socicl Accountability International’s
i SABOO0 workploce compliance program.

Similarly, the  Group joinad the Conhnuous
Improvement In  Central Arnardcan
Workplaces Initiotive and  extended Ifs
support of key sociol and envircnmantal
groups and  causes  including  SurfAid
International and its  progressive  schools
program, The Group also confinued to
voluntarlly measure, Independently verify
and publicly disclose Its global corbon
footprint, some delails of which can be
found In this Shareholder Review. This is one
of a suite of measures designed to improve
overall ervironmenial performance.

The 2007-08 year saw some strangthening
of the Group’s Board of Directors with the
appointment of Tony Froggatt as o Non-
Executive Diractor. Tony is o former chiaf
executive officer of brewer Scottish and
Newcastle PLC and a current board member
of o number of prominent Australlon public
companigs. His vast international business
and brand management experience s
o valuable and welcome addition fo the
Billabong Group.

After the close of the financial year, tha
Board approved the introduction of a
dividend seinvestment ptan ahead of the

payment of the final dividend on 24 October
2008. $hareholders should note that ongoing
dividends are likely to be partially unfranked.
This follows the growing intermnationallsation
of the Group's businass and the consequent
reduction In its Australian tax credits,

This growth of the Group’s Infernational
business, which has seen the revenue
contribution from the Group’s Australian
opearations fall below 20% for the first time
aver, has provided something of a natural
hedge to the Compony by minimising
its exposure to any single territory or
regional  econcmic  fluctuction. It hos
also led to the growth of the Company’s
intarnatiocnal employee numbers and | take
this opportunity to thank all employees i
for their contrlbution to the Groups i
performance. Finally, on behalfl of the Board
of Directars, | thank ail shareholders for thair
continued suppart of the Bilabong Group.

Ted Kunket
Chairman




The strength of Billabong International Limited’s multi-region, mutti-brand business model was apparent in the
2007-08 financial year. Against a backdrop of slowing world economies and declining sentiment, the Company
continued to experience strong underlying growth in all key markets, In constant currency terms, net profit after
tax lifted 12.6% and Group sales revenues lifted 17.6% driven by growth of 16.1% in the Americas, 20.3% in Europe
and 18.1% in Australasia. Other highlights included 192.9% growth in EBITDA on ¢ constant currency basis and 10%
growth in the full-year dividend.

The increased demand for the Group’s products during the 2007-08 financial year saw the Company confinue is
expansion, particularly at an international level. Billabong International remains a leader within the boardsports
sector, with clean boardsports-focused distribution, world class margins and strong product ll key drivers of the
business model. The Company is proud of its operational capabilities which allow it to service the wholesale
customer account base in over 100 countries in which the Group’s products are sold. While Billabong remained
the largest brand within the Group, this year saw continued strong performance from the other brands within
the portfolio, In both established and emerging termritorles.




The Group also Increasec ils owned retait
presence and ol the end of the period owned 242
stores around the world, Billabong International
continues fo look at retail as an option to get
proeduct in front of the end consumer in ragions
that are underdeveloped or under-sarviced by
the available customear account base.

Over past years the Company has followed
a carefully executed strategy of acquiring a
porifolio of brands that are the leader, of have
the potential to be the leader, in ol cotegories
sold within the boardsporis channel. Previously
acquired brands such as MNixon and Element,
for example, are not only the leading bronds
internationally in their respective coctegories,
but alse have strong margins which odd to
the Group. This past financial year has seen a
number of additions to the Group which will agd
to the strength and positicning within both the
wholesale and retalt channels.

At the beginning of the fincnclal year the
Group’s formerly licensed business in South Africa
was convertad fo a Company-owned cperation,
which accounted for much of the growth in
the Australosian  region,  Howolian-based
wetsult brangd Xcel, o multiple winner of the
Surf Indushy Manufacturer's Asseclation wetsult
of the yaar tifle, was acquired in September

2007 and integrated into the Group, This was
followed in December 2007 by the acquisition of
thae Australia-based Tigarlily brand, marking the
Group’s first purchose of a brand focused solely
on the glls market, Towards the close of the
reporting period, the 13-door Quist Flight retail
businass biased on the east coast of the United
States was also acquired. Following the close of
the reporting pericd, the Group dlse acquirad
the California-cased Sector 9 skateboard brand
and condifionclly agreed to acquire the Oregon-
based DakKine technical boardsport accessorles
brand. The acquisltions are part of a longer-
tarm strategy to build a portfolio of seme of the
strongest brands in the industry - brands that not
onty lead their category in their home markst,
but also offer intfernational growth appeal. The
building of this brand portfalio s now lorgely
completa,

Produc! innovation remalned a key driver of
growth and | congrotulate the Group's design
teams for thair commitment, drive and passion for
aach of the brands. it was pleasing to note that
the introduction of a range of boargshorts made
from racycled plastic bottles was well recelved
by consumaers. This resulted in the extension of
the range and heightened Invastment in future
anvironment-friendly projects. Thislsin odditicn to
the Group's engelng commitment to voluntarily
measuring, independeantly verifying and publicly

reporting its global carbon footpdnt. For the 2007-
08 financial year the foofprint was meaasured
against both the Australion Government’s
National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act
2007 and, where cppropriate, the Graanhcuse
Gas Profoceol. The Group remains committed to
roducing lis emilssicns and ramains well under
the threshold for mandatary reporting.

QOverct, the 2007-08 financial year demonstrated
the ongoing demand for the Group's brands,
the commitment and depth of its staff and
the reslience of its global business. The
Group enters the new financial year with
good momentum and remains confident
that It will retaln its place as one of the most
consistent, long term performers on the ASX
and a leader in the glebal boardsports market.

N

Derak O Neill
Chief Executive Officer
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NPAT SALES REVENUE
$176.4 MILLION $1.35 BILLION

SMILLIONS
g

JUN__ JUN__JUN__JUN_JuN
04 05 06 D07 '03

NPAT GRo INET PROFIT ARMU EBITDA EPS
L $292.0 MILLION 45.5%
. ORDINARY FULLY
FRANKED DIVIDEND  55.5 cents (FULL YEAR)$10%

Elitsliers) Isftamrecilier el LIREE) . et o gltae) S5 fume
e AIFRS* AIFRS* AIFRS* AGAAP* AGAAP* AGAAP*
R F¥2007-8 | FY2006-7 | FY2005-6 | FY2004-5 | Fy2003-4 | FY2002-3
Income statement ($miliion)
2 ONS TN CURRENGY Third Party Sales 1,347.6 1.2229 1.018.2 8407 o74.7 6229
EBITDA 2920 2591 2352 197.3 144 1253
) , Depreciation [¢1A)] (21.4) (14.4) 87 {8.1) ®.7)
EBITDA GROWTH I EBITA 2049 2317 2208 1887 136.0 118.4
T ’ Aroiiisolion [R)) 0.4 1.2 (1.3 29 (2.3
AEIAED EBIT 2564.8 2313 219.6 1874 1331 160§ -
Net Interest Expense (19.2) | {15.5) (6.6) Q.7 (5.2) {7 '\
ST SRS Profit Beforelncome Tax 2454 218 212¢ | 183.7 j279 108.9
Income Tax Expense (9.3) (54.2) {413 (58.4) (409 32.7)
. Profit for the Year 174.3 167.6 145.7 125.2 87.0 76.2
EPS GROWTH a Minorlty Interest 0.1 (0.4) 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
Profit Attibutabtle to Members of
REBIRTED] Sillabong International Limited 7.4 167.2 1459 125.2 870 w2
Basic Earnings per Share g57 cents | f.2cents | 70.8cents | &1.0cents | 43.0cents | 38.1 cants
O S A R RRE NG Dividend per Share 55.5cants | S05cents § 44.0cenis | 380cents | 265cents | 23.5¢cents
* Historkeal results of Billabong intemational Limited (8BG) as o listed antity on the Australian Securitles Exchange.

BBG listed on 11/8/2000,




INANCIAL
OVERVI]

Net profit affer tax for the year ended 30 June 2008 was §176.4 million, an increase of 12.6% in constant currency
terms (5.5% in reported terms) over the 2006-07 financial year. Ignoring one-off tax benefits (57.8 milion} in the
prior year, underlying constant currency net profit after tax growth was 18.5%.

Reportad net profit aftar fax was signiflcantly Impacted by a strong appreciation in the AUD agains! the USD, with an avarage full-year rate of USER.6 cents
compared to the prior average full-year rate of US78.4 cents, and to a lesser extent an appreclotion In the AUD agalnst the Euro.

Sales revanue of $1.347.6 million, excluding third party royalties, reprasanted on increase of 17.6% In constont currency ferms ¢(10.2% in reporied terms) over
tha prior yaar, At o segmant teval, in constant currency terms, salas revenue In Australasia increasad 18.1%, the Americos increased 16.1% and Europe
increased 20.3% over the prior yaar,

Consolidated gross margins remaoined strong and strengthened to 54.9% compared 1o the prior year's 53.3%.

EBITDA increased to $292.0 million, an increase of 19.9% in constant currency terms (12.7% in reported terms) over the pricr yeaor, The Europe sagrment was g
highlight, with EBITDA growth of 36.7% In constant currency terms.

The consolidated EBITDA margin of 21.7% Increased by 0.5% comparad to that of the prior year of 21.2%, principally due to segment mix with strong EBITDA
growth and improving margins in Europe, and to a lesser degres Austrolasia. partially offset by slightly lower margins In the Americas.




Australasia

In constant currency terms, Australoslan soles revenue wos up 18,1% to 5412.7 million ond EBITDA increased by 17.5% to $110.1 millon, EBITDA margins ware
slightly higher af 26.7% compared to 26.4% in the pricr year, reflacting the segment’s changing reglanci mix, a full 12 months of the Amazon retall business
and the first fime Inclusion of sales from South Africa.

In AUD terms, sales revenue In Australasia increased 16.7% to $412.7 million and EBITDA increased 18.1% to §110. million,

Sales revenue growth in local currencles was particularly strong in New Zealond, Japan and Asla, with tha latter tarritory dslivering strong EBITDA growth
following a period of investment.

Americas

Sales revenue Increased 16,1% to US$557.1 million (up from US5479.7 million) and EBITDA rose 16.0% to USS100.8 millicn (up from US$84.7 millior). EBITDA
margins were slightly lower at 18.1% compared o 18.5% in the prior year. partlaily due to growing confributions from the lower margin South Amerlcan
business.

In AUD terms, sales revenue in the Americas increased 2.6% to $620.5 milllon and EBITDA of $112.0 million was 0.1% higher than the prior year.
Strong double digit sales revenue growth in constant currency tenms was achigved In all regions of the Ameticas.
Europe

Salas revenue Iincreased 20.3% to €191.0 million (up from €158.8 milllon) and EBITDA rose 36.7% to €41.2 million (up from €30.2 million). EBITDA margins
liftad to 21.6%. up from 19.0% in the prior year, driven by a combination of operational synergles and procuct purchasing benefits due to the stronger
Eure against the USD.

In AUD terms, sales revenue in Europe was $314.4 million, an 18.8% increase, and EBITDA showed strong growth of 35.2% to $68.0 million,
Italy and Germany both recorded strong double digit sales revenue growth, while trading condlitlons in the United Kingdom rermained difficult,

Europe’s strong sales revenue and EBITDA result demonstrates continued strong business performance and positions the reglen well fer the 2008-09

financlal ysar. SAL ES R EVE N U E
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Bitobong remained one of the world’s premier, authentic boardsports brands.

The brand maintained its sponsorship of 4 of the 11 Association of Surfing Professionals World Championship Tour (WCT) events for men
and 2 of the 8 events on the women’s WCT. Billabong-sponsored athletes finlshed in 3 of the tep 6 places on the 2007 men’s WCT and 2
of the fop 8 on the women’s WCT. Former world champion Mark Cechllupo retired from the WCT but retained his long-term association
with Billgbong.

Brand highlights for the year included the signing of junior surfer Tamaroo McComb, who went on to win o world junior tlite in France:
the signing of big wave surfing pioneer Greg Long and US National Scheol Surfing Asseclation champioen Granger Larsen; the launch
of a junior surfing series in Indenasia; snowboarder Wolle Nyvelt winning a rider of the year title; the hosting of the Billabong Air&Style
snowboarding event in innsbruck, Austria; the re-signing of world snowboarding chempion Jomle Anderscn; the engelng hosting of the
Bitlabong Girls Get Cut There surfing series; the launch of the SurfAid International Schools Program supported by Billabong: the tounch
of arange of boardshorts made from recycled plastic bottles; and the winning of a series of product ond environmental awards around
the world including the Surf Industry Manufacturer's Association (SIMA) Women's Apparel Brand of the Year for Blllobong Glrls and
Environment Product of the Year for Billabong's Sonle Recycler boardshorts.

www.billobong.com
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@® element

Element remained a leading youth lifestyle brand, with global sales revenues and EBITDA both rising in the 2007-08 financial year. The
brand, which has skateboarding at Ifs roots and includes the Element men’s range ond the Element Eden girs’ range, experlenced a
stronger second half in it largest market of North Amerlca and achleved double-digit sales growth In Europe and Australasia.

Element retained a strong medla proflle in the US, with athletes Bam Margera and Mike Vallely continuing to host high-rating television
programs. The Element Advocate praogram, which profiles individuals making a positlve impact on the world, expanded glonally with
good success. Element qlso tounched a series of lighter and stronger high-performance skateboard decks utllising advanced new
technology and re-launched its poputar websltes to provide enhanced interaction with its core market.

www.elemeniskateboards.com www.elementeden.com
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Von Zipper continued to evolve as a leading eyewear brand that infuses elements of music, art and fashion to reflect the style, attitude
and individuallty of the boardsports and general actlon sports sectors. At o global level, the brand experienced double-digit sales
growth at Improved margins. Product innovation remalned a driver of the brand. with highlights Including the Introduction of the
premium Feenom snow goggte range, men's ratro surf trunks and a selection of artist-designed t-shirts. Von Zipper continued to recelve
widespread exposure, with its women's swimwear fecturing on several magazine covers, Its sunglasses remaining the eyewear of cheolce
for a host of celebrlties, the Aagship VZ-Air Tahiti surfing trlals at Techupoo gaining internatlonal exposure after being held In 12-15-foot
surf and sponsored athletes and entertainers representing the brand in their chosen fields.

WWW.VONZIpRerncom




NIXON 4

Nixon maintained Its strong growth profile with a double-digit lif$ in soles to cement its place as the leader In the premium watch category
within the boardsports channel. At a marketing level. Nixon signed iconic skateboarder Andrew Reynolds; singer Tristan Prettyrman’s
single Hello had a strong debut on the US Billboard music charts; skateboarder Ryan Sheckler's Life of Ryan TV program was invited back
for a third season on MTV; skateboarder Tony Hawk was named the tavourite male athtete at the Nickelodeon Kids Choice Awards; and
motorsport personality Travls Pastrana was crowned Rally America Champlon for 2007 and winner of the X-DBance Best Fiir for 2008 for
his film 199 Lives, At a product level, Nixon's 51-30 wateh won the Surf Industry Manufacturers Association (SIMA) Best Accessory Product
award ond a National Geographic Adventure magazine Best of Gear award.

www.nixonnow.com
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HONOLUA

SURF Co.—m

Honoiua continued ta bulld lis visibllity In the US and Australion surf channels and achleved strong sales inits home markst of Hawall. At
a product level, Honolua maintained its development of envirenmentally-aware apparel utlising recycled plastic bottles and organic
cottons. Honolua's heritage as a waterman-insplred brand was also supported by events such as ocean paddle races and surfing events
respacting the history of the sport, as well as sponsorad athletes participating in big-wave surf sessions and open-ocean paddling.

www.hanoluasurf.com

HoNoLUA




L KUSTOM

Surf footwear brand Kustorn continued to blld its presence in international markets, with new business established In reglons including
Indonesla and marketing Initiatives being upgraded from regional activities to global events. Within existing markets, including the
US and Australia, Kustem’s open-toe business experienced healthy scles increases.

www.kustomfootwear.com
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Tigerllly Is a premlum girls swimwear and apparel brand acquired in December 2007 and successfully integrated Into the Group following
the appointmant of ¢ general manager. Tigerlily enjoyed strong winter sales and completed development of its summer 2008 collection.
Work Is also close to completion on the development of a Tigerilly range of accessories in anticipation of a November 2008 launch.

www.tigerlilyswimwear.com.au




I XCE

The Hawall-based Xcel wetsuit brand was acquired in September 2007, It has been progressively integrated into the Group, rasulting in
the opening of new accounts in Ausiralia, the establishment of Xcel in South Africa and the completion of preliminary work in preparation
for the Company’s launch of the brand in Europe In the 2008-09 financiat year, Xcel's position as a category leader was acknowladged
through the year with its second consecutive Surf Industry Manufacturers Association (SIMA) award for Wetsult of the Year.

www, xcalwetsuits.com




PALMERS

Palmers Is a surf hardware brand specialising In the manufacturs of surfboard wax and surfing accessories, including deck grips and
legropes. The brand, which falls within the Group's Network Surf accessorles division, remained a leader in the surf hardware category.
particulany in its home market of Australia.

www.palmerssurf.com.au

The Group continues to sell into more than 10,000 doors globally,
Among these is the Group’s own retail presence, which lifted to
242 company-owned doors (from 193 at the close of the 2007-
2008 first halfy and contributed approximately 18% of Group sales
revenues. The growth in store numbers, which was boosted by
acquisitions, provides further opportunity for the Company’s
brands to be presented to consumers in areqas where they are
under-represented ot a retail level. The Group has achieved
good synergles through the central sourcing of store fitouts, thus
lowering overall capital expenditure requirements, The Group'’s
own portfolio of brands is increasingly providing a well rounded,
compeling retall offer and the Company contfinues to review §
further international retail opportunities as they arise. st i —

Amazon - New Zealand




The Group's own retail stores are
operated under a range of bronded
concepts including:

Billabong

Prernlum youth insplred surf, skate and
snow retailer located iniconlc global
destinations. Provides a showcase for
the full range of Bilabong products.

Element

Acretall showplece for the environment-
conscious  youth  lifestyles  brand.
Provides a full vertical range of Element
hardware, apparel and accessorles.

Beachworks

A premier muiti-branded boardsport
retaller founded In Southern California
and now  expanding in varlous
International  destinations,  including
Europe and Japan.

beachculture

A beach-insplred, airport-based retail
concept located In key domestic and
international tarminals in Australia and
New Zealand.

Hoenolua
A multi-branded surf retailer with a
dominant presence in its home market
of Hawait.

Amazon
A multl-branded retailerand the largest
surf chain in New Zealond.

Quiet Flight

A leading US east coost surf retaller
operating both mufti-branded and
single-brand stores.

e
Beachworks - UK

beachculture - Sydney

Honolua - Hawdali
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TED KUNKEL
(Non-Exacutive Choirman)

Praviously the President and Chief Executive Officer of Foster's Group Umited and associated companies. Mr Kunkel has extensive intamational business
axperience. Appointed as a Non-Executive Diractor of Billabong Intarnational Limited on 19 Fabruary 2001 and Non-Executlve Chairman on 14 January
2005. He is also Chalrman of tha Nominations Cormmittes and member of the Hurman Resource and Remuneration and Audit Committeos.

DEREK O'NEILL
(Executive Director)

Derek O’'Neill was appeinted as an Executive Director ont 5 March 2002
and Chlef Executive Officer effective 1 January 2003. Ha has previously
held senlor management positions with Billabong, including Geaneral
Manager of Bitabong’s European operations from 1992-2003. In 2002, Mr
O'Neill was awarded a Chevaller d'Crdre de Mearite Natlonale for services
to business in france,

TONY FROGGATT
(Non-Executive Director)

Tony Froggatt was the CEO of Scoftish ond Newcastle PLC brewing
company based in Edinburgh, UK, until he retired on 31 October 2007 to
retum io Australia. He has extensive marketing and distribution knowledge
in Australio, Western and Cenfral Europe and Asia particulorly In the
international food and beverages sactors. Mr Froggatt was oppointed as
aNon-Exacutive Direcior of Billobong Internatlonal Limited on 21 February
2008 and Is o member of the Nominatlons, Human Resource and
Remuneration and Audit Committees. He is also a Director of Brambles
incdustrios Limited, AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Umited and National Mutual
Life Association of Australasia Ltd.

MARGARET JACKSON AC
(Non-Executive Director)

Margaret Jockson Is a current Director of Austrelia and New Zealand
Banking Group Umited and Chaliman of FlexiGroup Umited. Ms Jackson
was previously a Director of The Broken Hill Proprietary Company Limited,
Pacific Duntop Limlted and Chairman of Qantas Airways Limited. She was
appoinfed as a Non-Executive Director of Billabong International Limitad
on 4 July 2000. Ms Jockson is alse Chairman of the Human Rescurce and
Remuneration Committee and a member of Nominations ond Audit
Committees.

ALLAN MCDONAILD
(Non-Executive Director)

Allan McDonald has extonsive experience In the Investment and
commaercial banking flelds and Is presently the Chalrman of Babeock &
Brown Japon Property Trust, Chairman of Multiplex Property Trust and
Chairman of Ross Human Directions Limited. Mr McDonold is o former
Diractor of Multiplex Umited, BromDes Industrlies Limited and DCA Group
Ltd. He was appolnted as a Non-Executive Director of Biltabong
International Umited on 4 July 2000. He is the Chalrman of Billabong
Internotlonal Limited's Audit Committes and a mernber of the Nominatfions
and Human Resource and Remuneration Committess.

GORDON MERCHANT
(Non-Exacutive Diroctor)

Gordon Merchant foundead Bikabong's business in 1973 ond has been a
maljor stokeholder In the business since Its inception. Mr Merchant has
extensive exparience In promotlon, advertising, sponsorship and design
within the surfwear apparel industry. He was appointed as o Non-
Executive Director on 4 July 2000 and is o member of the Nomingations,
Hurman Resource and Remunaration and Audit Committeas. Mr Marchant
Is also a Director of Plantic Technotogles Limited,

PAUL NAUDE
(Exacutive Diroctor)

Paul Naude was appointed Prasident of Billgbong’s American operations
In 1998 and established Billabong USA as a wholly owned activity In North
America. He has beean involved in the surfing Industry since 1973 with
extensive experence In apparel brond management. Mr Naude was
appointed as an Executive Director of Billabong International Limited on
14 November 2002,

COLETTE PAULL
(Non-Executive Diroctor)

Colette Paull was one of the earliest employees of the Billobong business
In 1973, Since that time, Ms Paull has been broadly Involved in the
development of Billabong‘s business from its Inltial growth within Australla
to its expansion as a global brand. Ms Paull praviously held the positlon of
Company Secretary until 1 October 1999, She was appointed as o Non-
Executive Director an 4 July 2000 and Is also a maember of the Nominatlons,
Human Resource and Rermuneration and Audit Committees.
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Billabong International Limited is cornmitted to achleving and demonstrating the highest standards of corporate governance and recognlses the need to
maintain pclicies and practices which reflect the requirements and expectations of all who deal with the Group. For a full view of the Company’s
corperate governancs initiatives and policies, please see the Full Financial Report on the Company’s webslte,

Composition and Role of the Beard

The Board comprises six Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors.
Each is required to bring independent judgement to bear in all Board
decision making. Directors are responsible to shoreholders for the short
term and long term performance of tha Company. The Company maintains
a mix of Directors on the Board from different business backgrounds with
complementary skllis and axpartlence.

To assist in the execution of Hs responsibliities, the Board has astablished
an Audlt Commiftes, @ Nominations Committee and a Human Resource
and Remuneration Commilttes. These Committees operate under
written charters which set oul helr respective roles and responsibllities,
compaesition, structure, membaership requirements and the manner inwhich
the Committee is to operate.

All Non-Executive Directars are required 1o serve on all Board Committees,
which are chaired by a Non-Executive Director. Matters determined by
Committeas are submitted to the full Board as recormmendations for
decision and ratification. Minutes of Committes meetings are tabled at the
immediatety subsequent Board mesting.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The members of the Committee are all of tha Non-Executivé Directors. The
Chairman of the Committeé must be a Non-Exacutive Direcior other than
the Chairmean of the Board.

The main functions of the Committee are detalled cn the Company’s
website and include overseeing the inftegrity and rellabillty of the
Company's financial stalements, reviewing audits, assessing ongeing legal
and regulatory compliance, assessing rlsk manogement strategies and
reviewing the performance and independance of auditors,

Neminations Commiftae

The members of the Committes are all of the Non-Executiva Directors. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors will be the Chairman of the Commitiae,
The maln functions of the Committee are detalled on the Company’s
wabsite and include the assessment of skills required on the Board, the
composition of tha Board, the identification of future Board cendldates and
the review of Board performance.




Human Resource and Remuneration Commiftee

The members of the Committee are all of the Non-Exacutive Directors, The
Chairman of the Committee must be a Non-Executive Director other than
the Chairman of the Board.

The main functions of the Committae are to assist the Board in establishing
remuneration policies and practices which enable the Company to attract
andretain Directors, assess and reward exacutives and comply with relevant
regulations including the ASX Listing Rules and Corporations Act.

Risk Assessment and Management

The Company has implemented a risk management system based on
AS/NZS 4360:2004; Risk Management standard and the ASX Corporate
Governance Principles and Recommendations. A copy of the risk policy
can be found on the Company's website. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, is responsible for ensuring the adequacy of the Company s risk
management and compliance framework and systam of internal controls
and for reguiarly reviewing its effectiveness.

Continuous Disclosure

The Company Secretary has been nominatad as the person responsible for
communicaticn with the ASX. This role inctudes responsibility for ensuring
complionce with the continuous disclosure requiraments of the ASX Listing
Rules and oversaeing and coordinating informaotion disclosure to the ASX,
analysts, brokers, sharaholders, the media and the public. All information
dlsclosed to the ASX Is posted on the Company's website as soon as i is
dlisclosed to tha ASX,

Securities Trading Policy

The Company has a detailed securities trading policy which regulates
caealings by Directors and employees in shares, opticns and other securities
Issued in the Company. A copy of this policy is available on the Cempany's
werbsite,

External Auditors

PricewatarnouseCoopers were appointed as the Company’s external
auditor in 2000. It is PricewaterhouseCoopers policy 1o rotate audit
engagement partners on listed compeanies at least every five years and,
In accordance with that policy. o new audit engogement partner was
introduced for the year endad 30 June 2007

23
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OVERVIEW

Billabong International Limited is committed to the development and
maintenance of initiatives and activities that support a culture of social
and environmental responsibility.

The Company maintained its commitment to the application of Soctal Accountabllity
International’s SABO00 compliance standard among external factery contractors, SAS000
is a certification standard based on the primary Internatienal werkplacs rights contained
within the Intemational Labour Organisation conventions, the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights and the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child. In the 2007-08 financial
year, factories In the Company’s supply chain were subjected to a total of 295 full SA8000
audits and o further 443 corrective actlon plan audits. The Company Qlso joined the

| Contlnuous Impravernent in Central American Workplaces (CIMCAW), a public-private

aliance designed to encourage improved working conditions In emerging Central
American sconomies.

Billabong International continued its support of varlous environmental initiatives, iIncluding
the voluntary measuremeant ond Independent verification of its global carbon footprint.
The footprint was measured against Australia’s National Greenhouse and Enargy Reporting
Act 2007 and the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Regulations 2008. As
meosured according to the Act, the Company’s independently verifled carbon footprint
for the 2007-08 financial year was 3,780 tonnes of CO2 equivatent. Detailed information on
the Group's carbon inventory Is made available on the Group's webslte.

The Group also maintained its long-running support of orgonisations and groups assecioted
with the boardsports lifestyte. In the 2007-08 finoncial year, the Surfald internatlonal Schools
Program supported by Billabong was formally launched following successful completion of
a pilot scheme. The program’s mission s *to develop global cltizens using the humanitarian
challenges and achievernents of Surf Ald International as an educational example for
action’. It seeks to achieve this through the developmaent of relevant course material in
subjects including geography, science, mathematics, visuat arts, surflng and soclal studies,
and personal health/development/physical education. As of 30 June 2008, 75 schools
had registered as participants and the program began Its rollout into select internctional
i markets.
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Ted Kunksl, Non-Exacutive Chairman

Darek O'Nelll, Chief Executive Officer

Tony Froggatt, Mon-Executive Director
Margaret Jackson, AC, Non-Exacutive Diractor
Allan McDoenald, Non-Exacutive Director
Gordon Marchant, Non-Executive Director
Paul Naude, Exocutive Director

Colette Paull, Non-Exacutive Director

Maria Manning, B Bus (A<c). CPA and FCIS

Derek O*Nalll, Chiaf Executive Officer

Ermest Bendaman, General Monager Billabong South Africa
Franco Fogliato, General Manager, Billabong Europe

Nilan Fonsaeka, General Managsr, Billabong New Zealand
Chris James, General Manager, 8illabong South East Asia
Chris Kypriotis, General Manager, Bilabong South America
Paul Naude, General Manager, Billabong North Amerlca
Shannan North, Ganeral Manager, Billabong Australasia
letoshi Veda, Gansral Manager, Bilabong Jopon

Craig White, Chief Financlat Officer

1 Billabong Place BURLEIGH HEADS QLD 4220 AUSTRALIA
Telephone: +617 5589 9899 Faocsimile: +617 5589 9800

PO Box 283 BURLEIGH HEADS QLD 4220 AUSTRALIA

Corporate: www.billabongbiz.com
Marketing: www.billabong.com

Computershare [nvestar Sarvices Pty Limited
PO Box 523 BRISBANE QLD 4001

Telephone Austrafta: +1 300 552 270
Telephone International: +617 9415 4000
Facsimile: +617 3237 2152

Emall: web.quedes@computershare.com.au

PricewaterhouseCoopers:
Riversicle Centre 123 Eagle St BRISBANE QLD 4000

Clayton Utz: 71 Eagle $ireet BRISBANE QLD 4000

Commaonwealth Bark of Austratio

240 Queen Street, BRISBANE QLD 4000
Westpac Banking Corporation

260 Queen Street, BRISBANE QLD 4000
HSBC Bank Australia Limited

300 Quaen Streat, BRISBANE QLD 4000
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
324 Queen Street, BRISBANE QLD 4000
Société Générale

BAYONNE CEDEX, FRANCE

Bank of America

19-29 Martin Place, SYDNEY NSW 2000

Billabong International Umited shares are listed on the Australion

Securilies Exchonge. The home branch is Brisbane, Ticker: BBG

The Annuat General Meeting of Blilabong International Limited
wlll be held in the Surfers Paradise rooms | & Il at Conrad Jupiters,
Breadbeach island. Broadbeach, @ld, on Tuesday 28 Octeber
2008 commencing at 10.00am, A formal Notice of Meeting and

Proxy Form will be made available 1o all shareholders.
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Ausiralia

GSM (CPERATIONS) PTY LTD
ACN 085 950 803

Head Office & Queensiand
Office

1 Bilobong Ploce

PO Box 283

BURLEIGH HEADS QLD 4220
PH: +6&1 7 5589 9899

FAX: +61 7 5589 9800

Brazil

GSM BRASIL LTDA
Incomperated in Brazi!

Rua Nafividade, 139

SAC PAULO 8P CEP 04513-
020 BRAZIL

PH: +55 11 3418 8600

FAX: +55 11 3618 8636

Canada

BURLEIGH POINT CANADA
INC

Incorporated in Canada
8055 Transcanada Hwy
Viile §t Laurent

QUEBEC H45 154 CANADA
PH; +1 51 4336 6382

FAX: +1 514336 1753

Chile

G5M Chile Limitado
Av. Luis Pasteur 6493,
Comuna de Vitlgocwra,
SANTIAGO DE CHILE
CHILE

PH: +56 2218 7041
FAX: +56 2219 3753

France

G5M (EUROQPE) PTY LTD
ACNRIOOI 171

100 Avenue Des Sabotiers
ZA De Padebert 40150
SOORTS-HOSSEGOR FRANCE
PH: +33 55843 4205

FAX: +33 55843 4089

Hong Kong

GSM (CENTRAL SOURCING)
PTY LTD

ACN 08¢ 138 732

27th Floer Langham Place
Office Tower

8 Argyle Street
MONGKOK, KOWLOON
HONG KONG

FH: +85 2 2439 5676

FAX: +85 2 243% 6067

Indonesic

PT Bilabong Indonesia
Istana Kuta Galleria

Block Tachno 12A-8

Jaian Patih Jelantik

KUTA, BALI INDONESIA 80361
PH: +62 361 769157

FAX: +62 361 769158

Japan

GSM (JAPAN) LIMITED
incorporated in Japan
4-3-2 Ohtsu-Grand Building
3F

Bakuro-Machi, Chuo-Ku
OSAKA JAPAN 541-0069
PH: +81 6 4963 6170

FAX. +81 6 2963 6171

New Zealand

GEM (NZ OPERATIONS)
LIVITED

incorporated in New
Zeatand

44 Arenway Drive, Albany
AUCKLAND 0632 NEW
ZEALAND

PH: +64 2 414 5106

FAX. +64 9 414 5039

Peru

Sanmaree PTY LID
(Sucuwrsal del Perd)
Av. Benavides 1744,
Miraflores,

LIMA 18,

PERU

PH: +51 1 243 3157
FAX: +81 1243 3159

Singapore
GSM Trading (Singapore}
Pty Lid

8 Jalan Kilang Tirmor, #03-05

Kewalram House
SINGAPORE 159305
FH +65 6270 9181
FAX +65 62700127

South Afiica

GSM South Africa Trading
Py Limited

2A Da Gama Road,

JEFFREYS BAY, Eastern Capse

SOUTH AFRICA, 6330
PH: +27 42 200 2600
FAX: +27 42 293 2478

Tre Group’s Malaysian operations are coordinated through the Sngapore office.

USA

BURLEIGH POINT LTD
Incorporated in California
117 Waterworks Way
IRVINE CA 92418 USA

PH: +1 949 753 7222

FAX: +1 949 753 7223
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Directors’ report : :

Your Directors present their report on the consolidated entity {referred to hereafter as the Group) consisting of Billabong
International Limited (the Company) and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2008.

Directors

The following persons were Directors of Billabong International Limited during the whole of the financial year and up to the
date of this report:

E.T. Kunkel

D. O'Neill
M.A. Jackson
F.A. McDonald
G.S. Merchant
P. Naude

C, Paull

A.G. Froggatt was appointed a Director on 21 February 2008 and continues in office at the date of this report.

Principal activities

During the year the principal continuing activities of the Group consisted of the wholesaling and retailing of surf, skate and
snow apparel and accessories, and the licensing of the Group trademarks to specified regions of the world.

Dividends - Billabong International Limited
Dividends paid to members during the financial year were as follows:

$'000
+  Final ordinary fully franked dividend for the year ended 30 June 2007 of 27.0 cents per fully
paid share paid on 16 October 2007 56,007
s Interim ordinary fully franked dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008 of 27.0 cents per fully
paid share paid on 11 April 2008 56,007
112,014

In addition to the above dividends, since the end of the financia! year the Directors have recommended the payment of a
final ordinary fully franked dividend of $59.1 million (28.5 cents per fully paid share) to be paid on 24 October 2008 out of
retained profits at 30 June 2008. Given the strong growth of the Group's international business, combined with likely
increased dividends in the future, it is expected that future dividends beyond the final dividend for the year ended 30
June 2008 will be partially unfranked.

The Directors have alsc approved the introduction of a dividend reinvestment plan to be implemented ahead of the final
dividend to be paid on 24 October 2008. The Company is providing this facility as an additional option available to
shareholders and in response to requests from the Company's shareholders. Further details in relation to the dividend
reinvestment plan will be communicated to shareholders shortly.

Review of operations
A summary of consolidated revenues and results by significant geographical segments is set out below:

Segment Segment revenues Segment EBITDA*
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Australasia 412,693 353,628 110,081 93,223

Americas 620,487 604,567 112,013 111,948

Eurcpe 314,438 264,716 68,004 50,310

Third party royalties 1,853 3.601 1,853 3,601

1,349,471 1,226,512 291,951 259,082

Less:  Netinterest expense (19,174) (15,4900

Depraciation and amortisation (27,215) (21,778)

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 245,562 221,814

Income tax expense (69,293) (54,207)

Profit from continuing operations after income tax expense 176,269 167,607

Loss/(Profit) attributable to minority interest 111 {359)

Profit attributable to members of Billabong International Limited 176,380 167,248

Billabong Intermnational Limited 2007-08 Full Financial Report Page 2




Directors’ report : :

Review of operations {continued)

* Segment Eamings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) excludes inter-company royalties
and sourcing fees and includes an allocation of head office corporate overhead costs (including interational advertising
and promotion costs).

Comments on the aperations and the results of those operations are set out below:

Consolidated Rasuit

Profit after tax for the year ended 30 June 2008 was $176.4 million, an increase of 12.6% in constant currency terms
(5.5% in reported terms} over the 2006-07 year {the pricr year). Ignoring certain one-off tax benefits ($7.8 million) in the
prior year, underlying constant currency profit after tax growth was strong at 18.5%.

Reported profit after tax was significantly impacted by a strong appreciation in the AUD against the USD, with an average
full-year rate of US89.6 cents compared to the prior average full-year rate of US78.4 cents, and to a lesser extent an
appreciation in the AUD against the Euro.

Sales revenue of $1,347.6 million, excluding third party royalties, represented an increase of 17.6% in constant currency
terms (10.2% in reported terms) over the prior year. At a segment level, in constant currency terms, sales revenue in
Australasia increased 18.1%, the Americas increased 16.1% and Europe increased 20.3% over the prior year.

Consolidated gross margins remained strong and strengthened to 54.9% compared to the prior year's 53.3%.

EBITDA increased to $292.0 million, an increase of 19.9% in constant currency terms (12.7% in reported terms) over the
prior year. The Europe segment was a highlight, with EBITDA growth of 36.7%, in constant currency terms.

The censelidated EBITDA margin of 21.7% increased by 0.5% compared to that of the prior year of 21.2%, principally due
to segment mix with strong EBITDA growth and improving margins in Europe, and to a lesser degree Australasia, partially
offset by slightly lower margins in the Americas.

Australasia

Compared with the prior year in constant currency temms, Australasian sales revenue was up 18.1% to $412.7 million and
EBITDA increased by 17.5% to $110.1 miltion. EBITDA margins were slightly higher at 26.7% compared to 26.4% in the
prior year, reflecting the segment's changing regional mix, a full twelve months of the Amazon retail business and the first
time inclusion of sales from South Africa.

In AUD terms, sales revenue in Australasia increased 16.7% to $412.7 million and EBITDA increased 18.1% to $110.1
million.

Sales revenue growth in local currencies was particularly strong in New Zealand, Japan and Asia, with the fatter territory
delivering strong EBITDA growth following a period of investment.

Americas
Compared with the prior year, sales revenue increased 16.1% to US$557.1 million (up from US$479.7 million) and
EBITDA rose 16.0% to US$100.8 million (up from US$86.7 million). EBITDA margins were slightly lower at 18.1%
compared to 18.5% in the prior year, partialty due to growing contributions from the lower margin South American
business.

In AUD terms, sales revenue in the Americas increased 2.6% to $620.5 million and EBITDA of $112.0 million was 0.1%
higher than the prior year,

Strong double digit sales revenue growth in constant currency terms was achieved in all regions of the Americas.

Europe

Compared with the prior year, sales revenue increased 20.3% to €191.0 million (up from €158.8 million) and EBITDA rose
36.7% to €41.2 million (up from €30.2 million). EBITDA margins lifted 1o 21.6% up from 19.0% in the prior year, driven by
a combination of operational synergies and product purchasing benefits due to the stronger Euro against the USD.

In AUD terms, sales revenue in Europe was $314.4 million, an 18.8% increase and EBITDA showed strong growth of
35.2% to $68.0 miltion,

ltaly and Germany both recorded strong double digit sales revenue growth, while trading conditions in the United Kingdom
remained difficult.

Billabong international Limited 2007-08 Full Financial Report Page 3



Directors’ report : :

Review of operations (continued}

Europe's strong sales revenue and EBITDA result demonstrates continued strong business performance and positions
the region well for 2009.

Net interest Expense
Net interest expense growth of 23.8% was driven by the capital expenditure requirements for acquisitions and organic
retail store expansion, together with increased working capital requirements to support both organic growth as well as
acquired businesses.

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense growth of 25.0% was principally driven by both acquisitions and retail store
expansion.

Income Tax Expense
The income tax expense for the year ended 30 June 2008 is $69.3 million {2007: $54.2 million), an effective rate of tax of
28.2% (2007: 24.4%).

The following one-off items had a significant impact in determining the prior year's income tax expense for the Group:

(a) Intra-group royalties — as part of a continuing comprehensive review the Group has made a number of changes to its
intra-group royalties. In retation to royalties received from the USA a bilateral Advanced Pricing Agreement (APA)
has been entered into with both the Australian Tax Office (ATO) and the United States Internal Revenug Service (US
IRS} covering the period 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2010. A similar process is underway with the French Taxation
Authority (FTA} in France. The total tax benefit that was recognised in the financial year ended 30 June 2007 was
$10.8 million. Of the total tax benefit, $7.5 million retated to the 30 June 2007 financial year ($4.8 million in respect of
North America; $2.7 million in respect of Europe) and $3.3 million (all in respect of North America) related to the 30
June 2006 financial year;

(b) Timing of recognition of royalty income — a revision of the Group's method for recognising royalty income earned for
income tax purposes from a cash to accruals basis resulted in a non-recurring benefit of $4.5 million in the 30 June
2007 financial year. This benefit has been fully recognised in the 30 June 2007 financial year.

Excluding all non-recurring {$4.5 million) and prior year ($3.3 million) taxation benefils mentioned above, the Group's
effective tax rate would have been 28.0% for the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

Consolidated Balance Sheet, Cash Flow items and Capital Expenditure
Working capital (including factored receivables) at $339.7 million increased 19.7% over the prior year compared 1o
revenue growth of 17.6% in constant currency terms, in part reflecting the impact of the acquisitions made by the Group.

Cash flow from operations of $153.2 million represents a 68.0% increase over the prior year period driven by both higher
net cash receipts and the timing of income tax payments in the prior year. Net cash receipts of $231.6 million are 17.2%
higher than the prior year period.

Capital expenditure of $146.9 million was in accordance with expectations and includes the acquisitions of Billabong's
licensee in South Africa, Xcel Wetsuits, Tigerlily and Quiet Flight, together with general investment in owned retail
globatly.

Net debt increased to $354.8 million, but is still relatively low at a debt to debt plus equity ratio of 30.9% and interest cover
of 11.1 times.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year.
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Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

On 2 July 2008, the Group announced the acquisition of Sector 9 Inc., a premium Southern California-based skateboard
brand. The operating results and certain assets and liabilities of the business will be consolidated from 1 July 2008,
therefore the financial effects of the transaction have not been brought to account at 30 June 2008.

As of 17 July 2008 a new $600 million Syndicated Revelving Multi-Currency Facility was entered into by the Group. This
new facility is due for roll-over prior to 1 July 2010 and 1 July 2011. The facility is structured as an unsecured multi-
currency facility with a two year and three year tranche of $300 million each. The facility replaces the Group's previous
secured facilities (refer to note 23 for the Group's secured facilities as at 30 June 2008} and provides additional liquidity to
the Group.

On 22 August 2008, the Group announced the acquisition of DaKine Hawaii, Inc, a leader in the premium accessories
category within the surf, skate, snow and windsurf markets. The operating results and certain assets and liabilities of the
husiness will be consolidated from the time all condilions required for contractual completion have been satisfied,
therefore the financial effects of the transaction have not been brought to account at 30 June 2008. It is anlicipated the
acquisition will be completed by 1 October 2008, subject to the aforementioned conditions being satisfied.

The purchase price comprises initial consideration estimated at US$99.9 million, to be funded from existing borrowing
facilities, and deferred consideration estimated at a minimum of US$33.3 million, subject to an audit of the normalised
EBITDA for the year ending 31 December 2008. The deferred consideration, due in the second half of calendar year
2012, is subject to certain management retention conditions.

The Company's Directors have approved the introduction of a dividend reinvestment plan to be implemented ahead of the
final dividend to be paid on 24 October 2008. The Company is providing this facility as an additional option available to
shareholders and in response to requests from the Company's shareholders. Further details in relation to the dividend
reinvestment plan will be communicated to shareholders shortly.

Other than those items mentioned above, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the
date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of
the Group, to significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Group, in future financial years.

Likely developments and expected results of operations

The Group is well positicned to maintain its growth profile and, in the absence of any significant deterioration in the global
boardsports market and assuming current exchange rates, in particular an AUD/USD exchange rate of approximately
US88 cents and an AUD/Euro exchange rate of approximately €59 cents, the Group expects to deliver full year EPS
growth in the range of 8% to 12% in the 2008-09 financial year.

Further infermation on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of
operations have not been included in this report because the Directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable
prejudice to the consolidated entity.

Environmental regulation
The Group, while not subject to any significant environmental regulation or mandatory emissions reporting, voluntarily
measures its carbon emissions using the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act 2007.
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Directors’ report : :

Information on Directors

TED KUNKEL (Non-Executive Chairman)

Experience and expertise
Previously the President and Chief Executive Officer of Foster's Group Limited and associated companies. Mr Kunke!
has extensive international business experience. Appainted Non-Executive Director on 19 February 2001,

Other current directorships
None.,

Former directorships in last 3 years
None.

Special responsibilities
Chairman of the Board and Nominations Committee and member of Human Resource and Remuneration and Audit
Committees.

interests in shares and options
94,466 ordinary shares in Billabong International Limited.

DEREK O’NEILL (Executive Director)

Experience and expertise

Derek O'Neill was appointed as Chief Executive Officer effective 1 January 2003. He has previously held senior
management positions with Billabong, including General Manager of Billabong's European operations from 1992-2003. In
2002, Mr O'Neill was awarded a Chevalier 'Ordre de Merite Mationale for services to business in France. Appointed
Executive Director on 5 March 2002.

Other current directorships
None.

Former directorships in last 3 years
None.

Special responsibilities
Chief Executive Officer,

Interests in shares and options
1,026,821 ordinary shares in Billabong Intemational Limited.
145,982 share rights in Billabong International Limited.
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Information on Directors (continued)

MARGARET JACKSON AC (Non-Executive Director)

Experience and expertiso

Margaret Jackson was a Partner of KPMG Peat Marwick's Management Consulting Division and National Chairman of the
KPMG Micro Economic Reform Group until 30 June 1992, when she resigned to pursue a full-time career as a company
Director. Ms Jackson was previously a Director of The Broken Hill Proprietary Company Limited, Pacific Dunlop Limited
and Chairman of Qantas Airways Limited. Appointed Non-Executive Director on 4 July 2000,

Cther current directorships
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, since 22 March 1994,
Chairman of FlexiGroup Limited, since 20 November 2006.

Former diractorships in last 3 years

Director of Qantas Airways Limited, from 1 July 1992 to 14 November 2007 and Chairman from 1 August 2000 to 14
November 2007.

Southcorp Limited, from 28 August 2004 to 26 April 2005.

John Fairfax Holdings Limited, from 2 February 2003 to 31 August 2004,

Special responsiblilities
Chairman of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and member of Nominations and Audit Committees.

Interests in shares and options
228,656 ordinary shares in Billabong International Limited.

ALLAN MCDONALD (Non-Executive Director)

Experience and expertise
Allan McDonald has extensive experience in the investment and commercial banking fields and is presently associated
with a number of companies as a consultant and company Director. Appointed Non-Executive Director on 4 July 2000.

Other current directorships

Chairman of Babcock & Brown Japan Property Trust (Director of responsible entity, Babcock & Brown Japan Property
Management Limited), since 19 February 2005.

Chairman of Mulliplex Property Trust (Director of responsible entity, Brookfield Multiplex Funds Management Limited),
since 22 QOctober 2003,

Chairman of Ross Human Directions Limited, since 3 Aprl 2000.

Former directorships in last 3 years

Multiplex Limited, from 22 October 2003 to 31 October 2007.

Brambles Industries Limited, from 26 March 1981 to 11 November 2005.
DCA Group Ltd, from 19 May 1988 {o 13 December 20086,

Special responsibilities
Chairman of Audit Committee and member of Nominations and Human Resource and Remuneration Committees.

Interests in shares and options
129,500 ordinary shares in Billabong Intemational Limited.
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Information on Directors (continued)

GORDON MERCHANT (Non-Executive Director)

Experience and expertise

Gordon Merchant founded Billabong's business in 1973 and has been a major stakehalder in the business since its
inception. Mr Merchant has extensive experience in promotion, advertising, sponsorship and design within the surfwear
apparel industry. Appointed Non-Executive Director on 4 July 2000.

Other current directorships
Plantic Technologies Limited, since 12 April 2005.

Former directorships in last 3 years
None.

Special responsibilities
Member of Nominations, Human Resource and Remuneration and Audit Committees.

interests in shares and options
31,442,183 ordinary shares in Billabong International Limited.

PALUL NAUDE (Executive Director}

Experience and expertise

Paul Naude was appointed President of Biltabong's American operations in 1998 and established Billabong USA as a
wholly owned activity in North America. He has been involved in the surfing industry since 1973 with extensive
experience in apparel brand management. Appointed Executive Director on 14 November 2002.

Other current directorships
None.

Former directorships in last 3 years
None.

Special responsiblilities
General Manager, Billabong USA.

interests in shares and options
1,831,179 ordinary shares in Billabong Internaticnal Limited.
136,158 share rights in Billabong International Limited.

COLETTE PAULL (Non-Executive Director)

Experience and expertise

Colette Paull was one of the earliest employees of the Billabong business in 1973. Since that time, Ms Paull has been
broadly involved in the development of Billabong's business from its initial growth within Australia to its expansion as a
global brand. Ms Paull previcusly held the position of Company Secretary until 1 October 1999. Appeinted Non-Executive
Director on 4 July 2000.

Other current directorships
None.

Former directorships in last 3 years
None.

Special responsibilities
Member of Nominations, Human Resource and Remuneration and Audit Committees.

Interests in shares and options
2,515,867 ordinary shares in Billabong Intemational Limited.
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Information on Directors (continued)

TONY FROGGATT (Non-Executive Director}

Experience and expertise

Tony Froggatt was the CEQ of Scottish and Newcastle PLC brewing company based in Edinburgh, UK until he retired on
31 October 2007 to return to Australia. He has extensive marketing and distribution knowledge in Australia, Western and
Central Europe and Asia particularly in the international food and beverages sectors. Appointed Non-Executive Direclor
on 21 February 2008.

Gther current diractorships

Brambles Industries Limited, since 1 June 20086.

AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Limited, since 16 April 2008.

National Mutual Life Association of Australasia Lid, since 16 Apn! 2008.

Former directorships in last 3 years
Scottish and Newcastle PLC from 12 May 2003 to 31 October 2007.

Special responsibilitias
Member of Nominations, Human Resource and Remuneration and Audit Committees.

Interests in shares and options
None.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Ms Maria Manning B.Bus {Acc), CPA and FCIS. Ms Manning was appointed to the position of
Company Secretary in April 2006. She has over 17 years experience as a Company Secretary of publicly listed
companies in Australia.

Meetings of Diractors
The numbers of meetings of the Company's Board of Directors and of each Board Committee held during the year ended
30 June 2008, and the numbers of meetings attended by each Director were:

Billabong International Limited Board Human

Resource and

Scheduled Unscheduled Audit Nominations Remuneration

Meetings Meoetings Committee Committee Committea

Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended | Held  Attended
E.T. Kunkel g 9 3 3 3 3 1 1 7 7
D. O'Neill 9 a9 2 1 . ¢ . * * ‘
M.A. Jackson g 9 3 2 3 3 1 1 7 7
F.A. McDonald 9 9 3 3 3 3 1 1 7 7
G.S. Merchant g 9 3 3 3 3 1 1 7 7
P. Naude 9 9 2 1 . . * " ' *
C. Paull 9 g 3 3 3 3 1 1 7 7
A.G. Froggatt ** 3 3 0 0 1 1 0 0 3 3

Not a member of the relevant Committee.
" Appointed 21 February 2008.

Remuneration report

The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:

A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration;
B Details of remuneration;

c Service agreements;

D Share-based compensation; and

E Additional information.

The informaticn provided in this remuneration report has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Corporations
Act 2001.
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Directors’ report : :

Remuneration report {continued}
A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

Role of the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee which provides advice on remuneration and
incentive policies and practices and makes specific recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration packages
and other terms of employment for Executive Directors, other senior management and Non-Executive Directors. The
Corporate Governance Statement provides further information on the role of this Committee.

Review of executive remuneration undertaken in the 2008 financial year
During the past 12 months the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee, with external remuneration consultants,
undertock a review of executive remuneration. The key findings from the review were:

e The Executive Performance Share Plan should be kept under on-going review to ensure it is meeting the
commercial needs of Billabong in terms of motivating and retaining executives and is appropriate taking into
consideration the Group's strategic aims, business plan targets and external shareholder expectations; and

* Anidentified need to introduce a new plan for the CEO and his executive team focusing on retention and siretch
performance hurdles.

These two findings and their implications are discussed in more detail later in this Remuneration Report and in the Notice
of Meeting.

Executive remuneration policy and principles

The overall cbjective of the Group's executive remuneration policy and framework is to provide market competitive reward
opportunities to executives through an incentive framework that rewards appropriately for the results delivered and is
aligned to the creation of value for shareholders.

In consultation with external remuneration consultants, the Board has therefore developed an exgculive reward framewark
based on the following key principles:
« _ Provide a market competitive reward opportunity;
+« Apply performance targets that take into consideration the Group's strategic objectives, business plan
performance expectations and deliver rewards commensurate for achieving these objectives and targets;
+ Ensure executives have line of sight to the performance hurdles (i.e. they can impact the achievement of the
targets through their performance);
+  Align executive remuneration with the creation of shareholder value through the selection of performance hurdies
and delivery of part of the reward package as equity;
s Encourage the retention of key executives and senior management who are critical to the future success of the
Group; and
+ Consider market practice and shareholder views in relation to executive remuneration, whitst ensuring that
executive remuneration meets the unique commercial requirements of the Group.

QOverview of the executive remuneration components

The executive remuneration framework provides a mix of fixed and variable pay, and a blend of short and long-term
incentives. As key management personne! gain senicrity within the Group, the balance of this mix shifts to a higher
proportion of "at risk" rewards.

The executive remuneration framework consists of the following components:

Component Purpose
Fixed remuneration (including For the completion of day to day accountabilities and behaving in accordance with
benefits) the Group's culture and values.
Short-term incentive plan To reward executives for meeting personal key performance indicators, achieving

regional budget expectations {if applicable) and the Group’s overall performance
against the annual budget.

Executive Performance Share To provide an equity based reward opportunity to executives based on the Group’s
Plan 3 year Earnings per Share {(EPS) performance.

Proposed Executive Performance | To lock-in and effectively reward the executive team over the next 5 years for

and Retention Plan growing the market value of the Group and delivering retums to shareholders.

Billabong Executive incentive Option Plan — Details of this Plan have been provided in previous Annual Reports. The
Board has no current intention to make any future grants under this Plan.
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Directors’ report : :

Remuneration report (continued)
A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration {continued)
Each of these components are discussed in more detail below,

Fixed remuneration

Executives are offered a competitive remuneration that comprises the components of base pay and benefits. External
remuneration consultants provide analysis and advice to ensure remuneration is set to reflect the market for a comparable
role. Base pay for executives is reviewed annually to ensure the executive's pay is competitive with the market. An
executive's pay is also reviewed on promotion.

Executives receive benefits including health insurance and superannuation as required by the laws in the various
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. In certain circumnstances, additional benefits (e.g. travel, accommodation, etc)
may also be provided.

Short-term incentive plan
The short-term incentive (ST} plan delivers a cash reward based on the following performance hurdies:

Executive Performance hurdles
Chief Executive Officer and Chief The Group EPS performance, the Group working capital as a percentage of sales
Financial Officer and personal performance objectives.
Regiona! General Managers The Group EPS performance, regional profit befere tax, regional working capital as

a percentage of sales and personal performance objectives.

President, Element Skateboards Element USA EBITDA performance.
Inc

The performance hurdles were selected to focus executives on the strategic aims of the business, provide a line of sight
(i.e. performance measures that they can impact through their performance) and ensure variable reward is only achieved
when value has been created for shareholders.

The STI target annual payment is reviewed each year.

in accordance with their charter, subject to the Human Resources and Nomination Committee's review of performance
against each executive's performance {argets, all bonuses are paid in early September of the following financial year. The
short-term bonus payments may be adjusted up or down in line with under or over achievement against the target
performance levels. This is at the discretion of the Human Rescurce and Remuneration Committee.

Executive Performance Share Plan (EPSP)

As discussed earlier in this repont, the purpose of the EPSP is to provide executives with an equity based reward
opportunity that vests based on the Group's 3 year earnings per share (EPS) performance. The establishment of the
EPSP was approved by shareholders at the 2004 Annual General Meeting.

Under the plan the Company awards the following equity based rights (collectively “rights”). The form of the rights is
determined by the tax implications in the relevant jurisdiction.
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Remuneration report (continued)

A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration {continued)

Equity vehicle

Overview

Performance shares

An employee awarded performance shares is not legally entitled to shares in the Company
before the performance shares allocated under the plan vest. However, the employee can vole
and receive dividends in respect of shares allocated to them.

For Australian employees, once the shares have vested they remain in the trust until the earlier
of the employee leaving the consolidated entity, the tenth anniversary of the date the
perforrance shares were awarded or the Board approving an application for their release.

For non-Australian employees, once their performance shares vest their shares are transferred
to them {or sold on their behalf if they choose). However, if the performance shares do not vest,
they are forfeited by the employee (for no consideration).

Conditional rights

An employee awarded conditional rights is not legally entitled to shares in the Company before
the rights allocated under the Plan vest, Once vested, each right entitles the employee to receive
one share in the Company.

For French employees granted rights after 1 July 2005, shares associated with vested rights are
automatically transferred to the employee. These shares cannot be disposed of before the end
of a 24 month Restriction Period following the allocation date, except in the event of death. Until
such time that the righls have vested the employee cannot use the rights to vote or receive
dividends.

For all other employees, from the time of the employee receiving notice of the righls having
vested they have one month to exercise the rights and either sell the shares or transfer them into
their name, If the rights are not exercised by the employee they will autematically exercise and
the shares will be transferred to the employee. Until such time that the rights are exercised the
employee cannot use the rights to vote or receive dividends.

Award, vesting and exercises under the plan are made for no consideration.

Awards under the plan vest on the third anniversary of grant only if the EPS performance hurdles are satisfied in the
relevant performance period. The performance periods are summarised in the table below:

Grant Performance period

FY 2005 FY04 (base year EPS) to FY07
FY 2006 FYQS5 (base year EPS) to FY08
FY 2007 FY06 (base year EPS) to FY(09
FY 2008 FYO07 (base year EPS)to FY10
FY 2009 FY08 {base year EPS) to FY11
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Remuneration report {continued)
A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration {(continued)
The following chart summarises the EPS performance hurdles for outstanding unvested grants and the grants made in

financial years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006 (which vested following the close of the financial years ended 30
June 2007 and 30 June 2008 respectively).

EPSP performance hurdle summary
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Compound EPS growth per annum

The Board selected EPS as the appropriate hurdle for the plan as the plan is intended to focus executives on the long-
term (3 year) earnings performance of the Group.

Each year, prior to awards being granted, the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee considers the market
environment, the Group's business strategy and performance expectations and shareholder expectations and sets the
performance largets for the awards to be granted that year. Due to the continued growth of the Group and the challenges
of maintaining the high growth rate of earnings from a resulting higher EPS base, the EPS targets have been amended as
appropriate over recent years. Significantly, in the financial year ended 30 June 2008 an outperformance component was
added, which rewards executives for exceeding target expectations and meeting a stretch performance hurdle.

At the end of the relevant performance period, in line with its charter, the Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee consider the EPS performance of the Group on both a reported and constant currency basis and determines
to what extent the awards should vest based on the above vesting conditions.

Executive Performance & Retention Plan - Proposed Plan
As mentioned earlier, the review of executive remuneration undertaken resulted in an identified need to introduce a new
plan for the CEQ and his executive team focusing on retention and stretch performance hurdles.

As a result, in the 2009 financial year, the Company proposes to establish the Executive Performance & Retention Plan
(EPRPY), which is designed to facilitate the retention of a select group of senior executives. It is also designed to be in
alignment with the achievement of challenging growth targets set by the Group over the next five-year period.

The EPRP will provide for grants of options over ordinary shares in Billabong !ntemational Limited. The options will be
exercisable after five years, subject to the achievement of challenging absclute and refative Total Shareholder Return
(TSR) hurdles. TSR measures the growth in the price of shares plus dividends notionally reinvested in shares over the
performance period. The options will have an exercise price equal to the market value at the date of grant.
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Remuneration report (continued)
A Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration (continued)

Further details regarding the detail of the proposed EPRP and the rationale for its implementation are set out in the 2008
Notice of Meeting.

Non-Executive Directors

Fees and payments to Non-Executive Directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the
Non-Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors do not receive sharg options or retirement benefits {other than statutory
superannuation payments).

Non-Executive Directors' fees are determined within an aggregate Directors' fee pool limit. The maximum aggregate
remuneration pool was approved by members on 21 QOctober 2005. The maximum currently stands at $1,200,000.

B Details of remuneration

Amounts of remuneration

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the key management personnel (as defined in AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures) of the Group are set out in the following tables. The cash bonuses are dependent on the satisfaction of
performance conditions as set out in the section headed Short-ferm incentive plan above.

Billabong Intemational Limited, the Company, does not remunerate any of the Directors or key management persennel.
Rather, the Directors and key management personnel are remunerated via subsidiaries of the Company, hence separate
remuneration disclosure for Billabong Intemational Limited is not required.

The key management personnel of the Group are the Directors of the Group and certain executives that either report
directly to the Chief Executive Officer or the General Manager of Billabong USA. This includes the five (5) Group
executives who received the highest remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2008. The executives are:

Name Position Employer

P. Casey Group General Manager, Operations GSM (Operations) Pty Ltd
{resigned effective 27 November 2007)

F. Fogliato General Manager, Billabong Europe GSM Europe Pty Ltd

C. Kypriotis General Manager, Billabong South Americas GSM Brasil Ltda

S. North General Manager, Billabong Australasia GSM (Operations} Pty Ltd
J. Schillereff President, Element Skateboards Inc Element Skateboards, Inc
C. White Chief Financia! Officer GSM (Cperations) Pty Ltd
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Remuneration report {continued)
B Details of remuneration (continued)

Koy management personnel of the Group

Post- Long- Share-based
2008 Short-term employee benelits employment term payments
benefits benefits
Non- Long
Cash salary Cash monetary Super- service
Name and fees honus benefits annuation leave Options | Rights Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Executive
Directors
D. O'Neill 1,082 1,100 4 13 9 - 435 2,643
Chief Executive
Officer
P. Naude 930 782 18 3 —_ 420 2,153
General Manager
Billabong USA
Non-Executive
Directors
E.T. Kunkel 325 — 2 13 — — 340
Chairman
M.A. Jackson 145 - 2 13 — — — 160
F.A. McDonald 185 —- 2 13 - - - 170
G.S. Merchant 130 - 2 12 - - - 144
C. Paull 130 -— 2 12 — - - 144
A.G. Froggatt” 45 - - 4 - — — 49
Other Key
Management
Personnel
P. Casey ** 330 — 2 6 - - 12 350
F. Fogliato * 494 281 11 -— - - 157 943
C. Kypriotis *** * 340 458 13 16 - - 103 930
S. North # 533 258 5 13 18 - 203 1,030
J. Schillereff * 476 89 17 2 — - 71 655
C. White 4 627 318 2 13 - 252 1,212

* From 21 February 2008 to 30 June 2008,

**  P. Casey resigned from the consolidated entity effective 27 November 2007. Cash salary and fees include

termination benefits of $119k.

Key management personnel from 1 July 2007. Cash bonus figure includes a one-off retention bonus of US$250k.

4 Denotes one of the 5 highest paid executives of the Group, as required to be disclosed under the Corporations Act
2001.
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Remuneration report (continued)

8 Details of remuneration (continued)
Post- Long- Share-based
2007 Short-term employee benefits employment term payments
benefits benefits
Non- Long
Cash salary Cash monetary Super- service
Name and fees bonus benefits annuation leave Options Rights Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Executive
Directors
D. O'Neill 969 860 3 13 - 5 547 2,397
Chief Executive
Officer
. Naude 876 893 18 4 --- 5 541 2,337
General Manager
Billabong USA
Non-Executive
Directors
E.T. Kunkel 225 — 2 13 — -— -— 240
Chairman
M.A. Jackson 100 -— 2 g — — - 111
F.A. McDonald 125 -— 2 11 — .- - 138
G.S. Merchant 100 - 2 9 .- - - 111
C. Paull 100 - 2 9 — — - 111
G.M. Pemberton * &7 — 1 6 — — -— 74
Other Key
Management
Personnel
P. Casey * 458 260 2 13 19 5 210 967
F. Fogliato "* # 400 325 26 -— -— -— 153 904
S. North # 500 250 4 13 22 - 210 999
J. Schillereff 521 217 18 3 — -— 84 B43
C. White # 571 414 2 13 --- -—- 290 1,290

* From 1 July 2006 to 23 February 2007.

" Key management personnel from 1 July 2006,

A Denctes one of the 5 highest paid executives of the Group, as required to be disclosed under the Corporations Act
2001.
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Remuneration report (continued)
B Details of remuneration {continued)

The relative proportions of remuneration that are linked to performance and those that are fixed are as follows:

Fixed remuneration | Atrisk - Short Term | Atrisk - Long Term
Incentives Incentives

Nama 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Executive Directors
D. O'Neill 42% 41% 42% 36% 16% 23%
Chief Exacutive Officer
P. Naude 44% 38% 36% 38% 20% 24%
General Manager Billabong USA
Non-Executive Directors
E.T. Kunkel 100% 100% - — - -—
Chairman
M.A. Jackson 100% 100% - - —- —
F.A. McDonald 100% 100% -— - -- -
G.S. Merchant 100% 100% -— -- -- -
C. Paull 100% 100% -— - - -
A.G. Froggatt * 100% 100% - — - -
Other Key Management Personnel
P. Casey ** 7% 51% - 27% 3% 22%
F. Fogliato 54% 47% 30% 36% 16% 17%
C. Kypriotis "** 40% —_ 49% — 11% -
S. North 55% 54% 25% 25% 20% 21%
J. Schillereff 75% 684% 14% 26% 11% 10%
C. White 53% 45% 26% 32% 21% 23%

. From 21 February 2008 to 30 June 2008.
**  P. Casey resigned from the consolidated entity effective 27 November 2007.
“**  Key management personnel from 1 July 2007,

c Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and the other
key management personnel are formalised in service agreements. Each of these agreements provide for the provision of
performance-related cash bonuses, other benefits including health insurance, car allowances and tax advisory services,
and participation, when eligible, in equity incentive plans. Other major provisions of the agreements relating to
remuneration are set out below.
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Remuneration report (continued)
c Service agreements (continued)

D. O'Neill, Chief Executive Officer

. Term of agreement — Open, commencing 1 January 2003.

. Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the year ended 30 June 2008 of $1,095k to be reviewed annually by the
Human Resource and Remuneration Committes.

. Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to 2.0
times annual base salary.

. Pericd of notice to be given by employee — twelve months.

Term of agreement — Open, commencing 1 January 2008.
Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the year ended 30 June 2008 of $933k (USD$830k) to be reviewed
annually by the Human Resource and Remuneration Committes.

. Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to 1.5
annual base salary plus the performance bonus for the year of termination.

. Period of notice tc be given by employee — eighteen months.

P. Naude, General Manager, Billabong USA
-
-

F. Fogliato, General Manager, Billabong Europe

. Term of agreement - Open, commencing 1 January 2004.

. Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the year ended 30 June 2008 of $494k (€300k) to be reviewed annually
by the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

. Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to the
annual base salary plus the average of the short term bonus over the previous two years.

. Period of notice to be given by employee — three months.

C. Kypriotis, General Manager, Billabong South Americas

. Term of agreement — Open, commencing 1 January 2004.

. Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the year ended 30 June 2008 of $356k to be reviewed annually by the
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

. Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to the
annual base salary.

. Period of notice to be given by employee — six months,

8. North, General Manager, Billabong Australasia

»  Term of agreement -~ Open, commencing 11 July 2000,

. Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the year ended 30 June 2008 of $546k to be reviewed annually by the
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee,

. Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to the
annual base salary.

. Period of notice to be given by employee — twelve months.

&

Schillereff, President, Element Skateboards Inc
Term of agreement — Open, commencing 7 February 2001.
s Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, for the year ended 30 June 2008 of $478k (LSD$428k) to be reviewed
annually,
. Payment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to
annual base salary plus performance bonus for the year of termination,
. Period of notice to be given by employee — twelve months,

L ]

C. White, Chief Financial Qfficer

. Term of agreement = Open, commencing 29 October 2004.

. Base salary, inclusive of supsrannuation, for the year ended 30 June 2008 of $640k to be reviewed annually by the
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

. FPayment of termination benefit on early termination by the employer, other than for gross misconduct, equal to the
annual base salary.

. Period of notice to be given by employee — six months.
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Remunaeration report (continued)
D Share-based compensation

Billabong Executive Performanice Share Plan
Details of equity instruments, comprising either performance shares or conditional rights (collectively “rights™), provided as
remuneration to each Director of the Cempany and key management persennel of the Group are set out below. When
vested, each instrument will entitle the holder to one ordinary share of the Company. Rights under the plan will only vest
if applicable performance hurdles are satisfied in the relevant performance period. Refer to the chart on page 13 for
details of the applicable performance hurdles.

Number of Number of
rights awarded rights vested
during the year | during the year

Directors of Billabong International Limited

D. O'Neill 56,363 65,000
P. Naude 48,745 65,000
Other koy management personnel of the Group

P. Casey -- 17.715
F. Fogliato 27,670 11,804
C. Kypriotis 14,347 11,804
S. North 28,182 17,715
J. Schillereff 8,389 8,853
C. White 32,568 29,525

The assessed fair value at grant date of rights granted under the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan during the
year ended 30 June 2008 was $15.65 per right (2007: $14.76). The fair value at grant date is determined by reference to
the Biltabong International Limited share price at grant date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
rights were granted.

Policy regarding mitigating the risk of any equity based incentives

Under the Company's Share Trading Policy, executives are prohibited from hedging or otherwise reducing or eliminating
the risk associated with long term incentives such as unvested rights and options offered by the Company to the
executive. Where an executive is in breach of this policy, the unvested rights or options shall be forfeited or lapse as the
case may be.

E Additional information

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration: relationship between remuneration and company
performance

The overall level of executive reward takes into account the performance of the Group over a number of years. Over the
past five years, the Group's profit from ordinary activities after income tax has grown at a compound rate of 18.3% per
annum, and shareholder wealth has grown at a compound rate of 16.6% per annum, assuming all dividends are re-
invested back into Billabong International Limited shares on the payment date. During the same period, executive
remuneration has grown at a compound rata of 8.2% per annum.

A summary of the performance hurdles included in the executive remuneration framework is set out in section A of this
Remuneration Report.

Details of remuneralion: cash bonuses and options

For each cash bonus included in the tables under section B Detlails of remuneration, the percentage of the available
bonus that was earned or paid, in the financiat year, and the percentage that was forfeited because performance criteria
were not met are set out below. There were no options over unissued ordinary shares of Billabong International Limited
granted under any emptloyee incentive plan during or since the end of the financial year to any of the Directors or the other
key management personnel of the Group as part of their remuneration. Refer to section D Share-based compensation for
rights awarded to Directors and key management personnel during the financial year under the Billabong Executive
Performance Share Plan.
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Remuneration report (continued)
£ Additional informaticn (continued)

Details of cash bonuses, options and performance shares and conditional rights

Cash bonus Performance shares and conditional rights
Mintmurm Maximum
Financial total value total value of
Earne_d ] Year ] years in which of grant yet grant yet to
orPaid | Forfeited | granted | Vested | Forfeited may vest 1o vest vest*
Name % % % % $'000 $'000
. O'Neili 100% — 2008 - --- 30 June 2011 Nil 796
2007 - - 30 June 2010 Nil 456
2006 - - 30 June 2009 Nil 107
2005 100% - - - —
P. Naude 100% 2008 -— - 30 June 2011 Nil 688
2007 - —- 30 June 2010 Nil 433
2006 — — 30 June 2009 Nil 107
2005 100% — -—- — —
P. Cagey * Nil -— 2008 - 100% 30 June 2011 Nil Nil
2007 - 100% 30 June 2010 Nil Nil
2006 - 100% 30 June 2009 Nil Nit
2005 100% - — --- .
F. Fogliato 100% - 2008 - - 30 June 2011 Nil KL
2007 - - 30 June 2010 Nil 187
2006 - --- 30 June 2009 Nil 36
2005 100% — - - ---
C. Kypriotis 100% -- 2008 - - 30 June 2011 Nil 203
2007 - - 30 June 2010 Nil 122
2006 - -- 30 June 2009 Nil 25
2005 100% — — — -
3. North 100% - 2008 - - 30 June 2011 Nil 398
2007 -— — 30 June 2010 Nil 216
2006 — - 30 June 2009 Nil 52
2005 100% == — -— —
J. Schillereff 100% - 2008 -— - 30 June 2011 Nil 119
2007 — - 30 June 2010 Nil 74
2006 - --- 30 June 2009 Nil 18
2005 100% - - ---
C. White 100% — 2008 —_— -— 30 June 2011 Nil 460
2007 — — 30 June 2010 Nil 270
2006 - -— 30 June 2009 Nil 64
2005 100% - - — -

*  P. Casey resigned from the consolidated entity effective 27 November 2007,
*  The maximum lotal value of grant yet to vest and yet to be expensed. The figures above are calculated as the amount
of the grant date fair value of the performance shares and conditional rights and assuming 100% of award vesting.

No options, other than conditional rights previously menticned, have been granted, vested or forfeited during the year
ended 30 June 2008.
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Remuneraticn report (continued)
E Additional information {continued)

Tax Exempt Plan and Tax Deferrad Plan
In the 2009 financial year, the Group plans to implement a new Tax Exempt Plan, which provides for grants of ordinary
shares of Billabong International Limited to Australian-based employees with at least 12 months service.

Under the Tax Exempt Plan, eligible employees are able to purchase $1,000 of shares, with a 20% discount on the
market value of the shares, by voluntarily sacrificing either their base salary or bonus on a pre-tax basis. The discount will
be in the form of a 1:4 match, that is, for every four shares the employee acquires under the Tax Exempt Plan, the Group
will match this by providing an additional free share.

In the 2009 financial year, the Group also plans to implement a new Tax Deferred Plan, which provides for grants of
ordinary shares of Billabong International Limited to Australian-based employees with at least 12 months service.

Under the Tax Deferred Plan, eligible employees are able to purchase shares in Billabong, at market value, by voluntarily
sacrificing their base salary and/or bonus on a pre-lax basis. A minimum contribution amount of $2,000 applies to the
purchase of shares under the Tax Deferred Plan, with the Group matching contributions with up to $200 worth of
Billabong International Limited shares.

In accordance with the relevant Australian tax rules, eligible employees are conly able to participate in either the Tax
Exempt Plan or the Tax Deferred Plan, not both. These plans are being implemented to encourage share ownership by
Billabong's Australian employees and allow them te acquire shares in a tax-effective manner.

Shares under option
Unissued ordinary shares of Billabong International Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows:

Number Grant date Issue price of Expiry date
shares
Oplions issued pursuant to an Agreement 11,588 11/08/2005 $13.69 10/08/2009
Total 11,588

The Options issued pursuant 1o an Agreement are exercisable in three tranches. One quarter of the oplions become
exercisable 24 months after the day the options are granted. Another half become exercisable 36 months after the day
the options are granted and the last quarter become exercisable 48 months after the options are granted. These options
were issued in connection with the acquisition of the American based Element Skateboarding brand by the Company's
wholly owned subsidiary, Rocket Trademarks Pty Lid {ACN 097 257 522).

No opticn holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the Company or of any other
entity.

Performance shares and conditional rights
Performance shares and conditional rights awarded under the plan at the date of this report are as follows:

Type of right Balance Grant date Perfermance

determination date
Performance Shares 345,993 1 December 2005 30 June 2008
Conditional Rights 69,835 1 December 2005 30 June 2008
Performance Shares 415,222 1 October 2006 30 June 2009
Conditional Rights 77,271 1 October 2006 30 June 2008
Performance Shares 582,713 1 November 2007 30 June 2010
Conditional Rights 89,842 1 November 2007 30 June 2010
Total 1,580,876
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Insurance of officers

During the financial year Billabong Intemational Limited paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring the Directors of
the Company, the Company Secretary and all executive ofiicers against a liability incurred as such a Director, Secretary
ar executive officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of
the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or eriminal proceedings that may be brought
against the officers in their capacity as officers of entities in the Group, and any other payments arising from liabilities
incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings. This does not include such liabilities that arise from conduct
involving a willful breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of information to gain
advantage for themselves or someone else or to cause detriment to the Group. It is not possible to apportion the premium
between amounts relating to the insurance against legal costs and those relating to other liabilities.

Non-audit services
The Company may decide to employ the auditors on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where the
auditor's expertise and experience with the Company andfor the Group are important.

Details of the amount paid or payable to the auditors {PricewaterhouseCoopers) fer non-audit services provided during
the year are set out below.

The Board of Directors has considered the position and, in accordance with the advice received from the Audit
Committee, is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of
independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-
audit services by the audilors, as set out below, did not compromise the auditor’s independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

+ all non-audit services have been reviewed by the Audit Committee to ensura they do not impact the impartiality
and objectivity of the auditors;

« none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 110
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditors of the parent entity, its
related practices and non-related audit firms in relation to non-audit services:

Consolidated

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm;
International tax consulting together with separate tax advice on acquisitions 1,638 1,328
General accounting advice B8 30
Due diligence services 66 -
Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm 772 596
Total remuneration for non-audit services 2,566 1,955

Auditor’'s independence declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out
on page 24.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100, issued by the Australian Securities & Investments
Commission, relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the Directors' Report. Amounts in the Directors’ Report have
been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars.
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Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers conlinues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001,

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

s s

Ted Kunkel
Chairman

Gold Coast, 22 August 2008
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 780 433 757

Riverside Centre

123 Eagle Street
BRISBANE QLD 4000
GPO Box 150

BRISBANE QLD 4001

DX 77 Brisbane

Australia

www.pwc.com/au
Telephone +61 7 3257 5000
Facsimile +61 7 3257 5999

Auditor’s independence declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Billabong Intemational Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008, | declare that, to the best
of my knowtedge and belief, there have been:

(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit;
and
(b} no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Billabong International Limited and the entities it controlled during the period.

L AL

Robert Hubbard
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Brisbane, 22 August 2008

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Corporate governance statement : :

8Billabong International Limited {referred to hereafter as the Company) is committed to achieving and demonstrating the
highest standards of corporate governance and recognises the need to maintain policies and practices which reflect the
requirements and expectations of all who deal with the Group. These policies and practices remain under constant review
by the Board and many of them can be accessed on the Company's corporate website. This statement outlines the
Group's main corporate govermnance practices during the year ended 30 June 2008. Your Directors are pleased to advise
that substantial complhiance with the recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council has been achieved.

The Board of Directors
The composition and role of the Board is detailed in the corporate govemance section of the Company's website
www.billabongbiz.com. The Directors in office at the date of this statement are:

Name Position

Ted Kunkel Non-Executive Chairman

Derek O'Neill Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Tony Froggatt Non-Executive Director

Margaret Jackson Non-Executive Director

Allan McDonald Non-Executive Director

Gordon Merchant Non-Executive Director

Paul Naude Exgcutive Director and General Manager, Billabong USA
Colette Paull Non-Executive Director

During the year Mr. Tony Froggatt was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company effective 21 February
2008. Further details on the members of the Board, including their experience and expertise, is sel out on pages 6 to 9 of
this report.

Composition of the Board

During the year the number of Directors of the Company was increased from seven (7) to eight (8) Directors. The
vacancy was filled by the appointment of Mr. Tony Froggatt. The Board is currently compromised of a majority of
independent Non-Executive Directors with six (6) Non-Execufive Direclors and two (2) Executive Directors. All Directors
are required to bring independent judgement to bear in their Board decision making. Non-Executive Directors meet
independently of Executive Directors and management at each Board meeting to discuss performance issues and a range
of other matters. The Chairman is a Non-Executive Director appointed by the full Board and is required to meet regulary
with the CEOQ. The Company maintains a mix of Directors on the Board from different business backgrounds with
complementary skills and experience.

Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to any bonuses, or incentive payments and do not participate in option-based or
other incentive schemes which are available to employees. Non-Executive Directors do not receive retirement benefits
(other than statutory superannuation payments).

Role of the Board
Directors are responsible to shareholders for the short term and long term performance of the Company and their focus is
to enhance the interests of shareholders and other key stakeholders and to ensure the Company is properly managed.

The primary functions of the Board include responsibility for:

* selling objectives, goals and strategic direction for each of the major business units;

« monitoring financial performance including approving business plans, the annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets and financial statements;

« establishing, monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and compliance
systems;

+ appointing and reviewing the performance of the CEQ and senior management;

+ approving and monitoring major capital expenditure, capitai management, acquisitions, divestments and
identified business drivers;

+ monitoring areas of significant business risk and ensuring arrangements are in place to manage those risks;

* ensuring conformance to environmental, social and occupational health and safety requirements; and

s reporting to sharehclders on performance.

Beyond those matters, the Board has delegated all authority to achieve the objectives of the Company to the CEQ having
regard to agreed authority limits. The CEO remains accountable to the Board for the authority that is delegated to him
and the performance of the Group.
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The full Board currently holds nine (9) scheduled meetings each year, plus strategy meetings and any extraordinary
meetings which may be necessary to address any specific matters that may arise. During the financial year the Board
met twelve (12) times. Members of senior management atiend meetings of the Board by invitation.

Non-Executive Directors meet regularly at scheduled meetings without management present.

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has established an Audit Committee, a Nominations Committee
and a Human Resource and Remuneration Commitltee. These Committees operate under written charters which set out
their respective roles and responsibilities, composition, structure, membership requirements and the manner in which the
Committee is to operate. Charters of the three Commillees are reviewed annually. All Non-Executive Directors are
required to serve on all Board Committees and are chaired by a Non-Executive Director.

Matters determined by Committees are submitted to the full Board as recommendations for decision and ratification.
Minutes of Committee meetings are tabled at the immediately subsequent Board meeting.

Independent professional advice

Directors and Board Commiltees have the right, in connection with their duties and responsibilities to seek independent
professional advice at the Company's expense. Prior approval of the Chairman is required, but this will not be
unreasonably withheld. The advice obtained must be made available to all Board members in due course,

Performance assessment

The Board undertakes an annual self assessment of the performance of the Board as a whole, its Committees, the
Chairman, individual Directors and govemance processes that support Board work. Performance of individual Directors is
assessed against a range of dimensions including the ability of the Director to consistently create shareholder value, to
contribute to the development of strategies and risk identification, to provide clarity of direction to senior management, to
listen to the views of fellow Directors, members of management and key third party stakeholders and to provide the time
commitment to ensure the discharge of duties and obligations to the Company. The Chairman meets privately with each
Director to discuss individual and collective performance of Directors.

Non-Executive Director independence
An assessment of Non-Executive Director’s independence is carried out annually or at any other time where the
circumstances of a Director change such as 1o warrant recansideration. When determining the independence of Non-
Executive Directors consideration is given to whether the Direclor;
¢ is a substantial shareholder of the Company or an officer of, or otherwise associated directly with, a substantial
shareholder of the Company;
» is employed, or has previously been employed in an executive capacity by the Company, and there has not been
a period of at least three (3) years between ceasing such employment and serving on the Board;
* has within the last three (3) years been a principal of a material professional advisor or a material consultant to
the Company, or an employee materially associated with the service provided;
¢ is a material supplier or customer of the Company, or an officer of or otherwise associated directly or indirectly
with a rmaterial supplier or customer;
« has a material contractual refationship with the Company other than as a Director.

Mr. Gordon Merchant is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, he is not considered to be independent of
the Company based on the ASX guidelines. Mr. Merchant is a founder of the Billabong Group and the Board considers
that it is in the best interests of all shareholders to have a Director with Mr. Merchant’s industry and business expertise
and Company history as a member of the Board.

All other Non-Executive Directors do not have any business interest or other relationship that could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgement and their ability to act in the best interests of the Company.

Conflicts of interest

Directors are required to keep the Board advised, on an ongoing basis, of any interest that could potentially conflict with
those of the Company. Where the Board believes that a significant conflict may exist, the Direclor concemed does not
receive the relevant board papers and is not present at the meeting while the item is considered. Additionally Directors
are required lo advise the Board of any executive appointments to other companies and any related party transactions
including financial transactions with the Group.

Entities associated with Mr. Paul Naude had business dealings with the Company during the year, details of which are
disclosed in the financial statements.
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Tenure of office
"Non-Executive Directors have open-ended contracts and tenure is subject to the individual performance of the Director
and shareholder approval.

Financial reporting
The CEQ and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have made the following certifications to the Board:

» that the Company’s financial reports are complete and present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the
financial position and performance of the Company and Group and are in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and the Corporations Act 2001; and

+ that the above statement is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and control
systems which implements the policies adopted by the Board and that the Company’s risk management and
internal compliance and control systems are operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects in relation
to financial reporting risks.

The Board receives monthly reports from management on the financial and operational performance of the Group.
Board committees
Audit Committee

Committee Members;

Allan McDonald (Chairman)
Tony Froggatt

Margaret Jackson

Ted Kunkel

Gordon Merchant

Colette Paull

A majority of the members of the Committee are independent Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Committee
must be a Non-Executive Director other than the Chairman of the Board. The Committee may extend an invitation to any
person to attend all or part of any meeting of the Committee which it considers appropriate,

The main functions of the Committee are to:
*» ensure the integrity and reliability of the Company's financial statements and all other financial information
published by the Company or released to the market;
review the scope and results of external and compliance audits;
assess compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;
assess the effectiveness of the systems of internal control and risk management;
review the appointment, remuneration, qualifications, independence and performance of the extemnal auditors
and the integrity of the audit process as a whole; and
« monitor and review the nature of non-audit services of external auditors and related fees and ensure it does not
adversely impact on auditor independence.

The Audit Committee will report to, and make recommendations to the full Board in relation to each of its functions.
Nominations Committee

Committee Members:
Ted Kunkel (Chairman)
Tony Froggatt
Margaret Jackson
Allan McDonald
Gordon Merchant
Colette Paull

The members of the Committee are all of the Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors will be the
Chairman of the Committee.
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The main functions of the Committee are to:

« assess periodically the skill set required to discharge competently the Board's duties, having regard to the
strategic direction of the Group, and assess the skills currently represented on the Board;

« regularly review and make recommendations to the Board regarding the structure, size and composition of the
Board and keep under review the leadership needs of the Company, both executive and non-executive;

« Identify suitable candidates to fill Board vacancles as and when they arise and nominating candidates for the
approval of the Board;

+ ensure that, on appointment, all Directors receive a formal letter of appointment, setting out the time commitment
and responsibility envisaged in the appointment including any responsibilities with respect to Board Commitiees;

+ oversee appropriate Board succession planning; and '

« establish a process for the review of the performance of individual Directors and the Board as a whole.

When a new Director is to be appointed the Committee reviews the range of skills, experience and expertise on the
Board, identifies its needs and prepares a short-list of candidates with appropriate skills and experience. Where
necessary, advice is sought from independent search consultants. The full Board then appoints the most suitable
candidate who must submit themselves to shareholders for election at the first Annual General Meeting following their
appointment.

New Dirgctors are provided with a latter of appointment setting out the Company's expectations including involvement
with commillee work, their responsibilities, remuneration including superannuation and expenses, requirement to disclose
their interests and any matters which affect the Director’s independence. New Directors are also provided with all relevant
policies including the Company's share trading policy, 2 copy of the Company's Constitution, organizational chart and
details of indemnity and insurance arrangements. A formal induction program which covers the operation of the Board
and its Committees and financial, strategic, operations and risk management issues is also provided to ensure that
Directors have significant knowledge about the Company and the industry within which it operates.

Mew Directors are advised of the time commitment required of them in order to appropriately discharge their
responsibilities as a Director of the Company. Directors are required to confirm that they have sufficient time to meet this
requirement. These processes were undertaken with the appointment during the financial year of Mr. Froggatt as a Non-
Executive Director to the Company.

The Nominations Committee will report to, and make recommendations to the full Board in relation to each of its functions.
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Committee Members:
Margaret Jackson {Chairman)
Tony Froggatt

Ted Kunkel

Allan McDonald

Gordon Merchant

Colette Paull

The members of the Committee are all of the Non-Executive Directars. The Chairman of the Committee must be a Non-
Executive Director other than the Chairman of the Board. The Committee may extend an invitation to any person to
attend all or part of any meeting of the Committee which it considers appropriate.

The main functions of the Committee are to assist the Board in establishing remuneration policies and practices which:

« egnable the Group to attract and retain Executives and Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) who will create
sustainable value for shareholders and other stakeholders;

+ fairly and responsibly reward Executives and Directors having regard to the Group's overall strategy and
objectives, the performance of the Group, the performance of the Execulive and the general market environment;
and

« comply with all relevant legislation and regulations including the ASX Listing Rules and Corporations Act 2001.

In particular to:

« review the remuneration for each Executive Director (including base pay, incentive payments, equity awards and
retirement or severance benefits), having regard to the Executive remuneration policy and whether in respect of
any elements of remuneration any shareholder approvals are required,
annually appraise the performance of the CEQ and provide appropriate Executive development programs;

s review the remuneration (including incentive awards, equity awards and service employment contracts) for the
CEO and senior management, to ensure they are consistent with the Executive remuneration policy;
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review Non-Executive Director remuneration with the assistance of external consultants as appropriate;

review all equity based plans and all cash-based Executive incentive plans;

review the appropriateness of management succession plans,

review annually the remuneration trends (including major changes in employee benefit structures, philosophies
and practices) across the Group in its various regions; and

ensure that the Board is aware of all relevant legal requirements regarding disclosure of remuneration.

* ® & @

The Committee reviews and sets key performance indicators (KP1's) relating to financial and personal targets for senior
management at the commencement of each financial year. These KPI's are evaluated at the end of each reporting period
and impact on the discretionary element of the executive’s remunaration,

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee reports to, and makes recommendations to the full Board in relation
to each of its functions.,

Risk assessment and management
The Board, through the Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring the adequacy of the Company's risk management
and compliance framework and system of internal controls and for regularly reviewing its effectiveness.

The Company has implemented a risk management system based on AS/INZS 4360:2004; Risk Management standard
and the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations, The framework is based around the following risk
activities:
* Risk Identification: Identify all significant foreseeable risks associated with business activities in a timely and
consistent manner;
+ Risk Evaluation: Evaluate risks using an agreed risk assessment criteria;
« Risk Treatment/Mitigation: Develop miligation plans for risk areas where the residual risk is greater than
tolerable risk levels;
* Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Report risk management activities and risk specific information to appropriate
levels of management in a timely manner.

A copy of the risk policy can be found on the Company's website.

The Board through the Audit Committee will review the risk management policy and framework on a regular basis and will
salisfy itself that management has in place appropriate systems for managing risk and maintaining interna controls.

The CEO and management team are responsible for identifying, evaluating and monitoring risk in accardance with the risk
management framewark. Management are responsible for the accuracy and validity of risk information reported to the
Board and also for ensuring clear communication of the Board and senior management’s position on risk throughout the
Company.

In particular, at the Board and senior management strategy planning sessions held throughout the year, the CEQ and
management team reviews and identifies key business and financial risks which could prevent the Company from
achieving its objectives.

Additionally a formal risk assessment process is part of each major capital acquisition with a post acquisition review
undertaken after eighteen to twenty-four months of major business acquisitions, major capital expenditures or significant
business initiatives.

Code of Conduct

The Company currently has in place Regional Codes of Conduct. These Regional Codes are currently being consolidated
into a uniform Group Cede of Conduct which is expected to be finalised and placed on the Company's website when
finalised.

Communications with shareholders

The Company communicates to shareholders through the Company's annual report, Annual General Meeting, half year
and full year results, and the Company's website. Financial information for the past four years, and all other
announcements are made available on the website.

During periods of particular sensitivity, the Company’s policy is lo avoid any discussion with shareholders, media, analysts
or other market operatars for thirty days prior to the close of the half and full year accounting periods to the time of the half
and full year profit announcements. This policy is subordinate to the ASX requirements of continuous disclosure.
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Continuous disclosure and shareholder communication

The Company has a written policy on information disclosure that focuses on continuous disclosure of any information
concerning the Company that a reasonable person would expect to have a material effect on the price of the Company's
securities,

The Company Secretary has been nominated as the person responsible for communication with the Australian Stock
Exchange (ASX). This role includes responsibility for ensuring compliance with the continucus disclosure requirements
in the ASX Listing Rules and overseeing and co-ordinating information disclosure to the ASX, analysts, brokers,
shareholders, the media and the public. All information disclosed to the ASX is posted on the Company’s website as soon
as it is disclosed to the ASX. When analysts are briefed following half year and full year results announcements, the
material used in the presentations are released to the ASX prior to the commencement of the briefing. This information is
also posted on the Company's website. The Company ensures that if any price sensitive information is inadvertently
disclosed, this information is also immediately released to the market. The Company is committed to ensuring that all
stakeholders and the market are provided with relevant and accurate information regarding its activities in a timely
manner,

Trading in Company securities by Directors and employees

The Company has a detailed securities trading policy which regulates dealings by Directors and employees in shares,
oplicns and other securities issued in the Company. A copy of this policy is available on the Company's corporate
website. A summary of the policy is as follows:

« dealings by senior managers, Directors and nominated employees are confined to three trading windows which
begin after two clear trading days have elapsed from the date of the half and full year profit announcements and
date of the Annual General Meeting and continues for a period of thirty calendar days;

« Directors have entered into agreements to notify the Company within three days of any dealings in the Company
securities;

+ where a trade by a Director or associated Company is in excess of one million shares or represents more than
10% of that Director's then current securities holding, the Director has the responsibility to notify the Chairperson
at least 48 hours prior to engaging in any transaction;

+« guidance is given to Directors that transactions in excess of one million shares should not be sold through
normal day trading in order to minimize risk to the market price; and

+ Executives are prohibited from hedging or otherwise reducing or eliminating the risk assoctated with long term
incentives such as unvested performance shares and options offered by the Company to the Executive.

External auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed as the external auditor in 2000. Itis PricewaterhouseCoopers policy to rotate
audit engagement partners on listed companies at least every five years, and in accordance with that policy a new audit
engagement partner was introduced for the year ended 30 June 2007.

The performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually. An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors, inctuding
a break-down of fees for non-audit services, is provided in the Directors’ report and in the notes to the financial
statements.

Itis the policy of the external auditors to provide an annual declaration of their independence to the Audit Committee. The
external auditor is requested to attend the Annual General Meeting and be available to answer shareholder questions
about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the audit report,

Corporate responsibility

The Group maintained its commitment to the application of Social Accountability intemnational's SA8000 compliance
standard among external factory contractors. SA8000 is a certification standard based on the primary international
workplace rights contained within the International Labour Organisation conventions, the Universal Declaration of Human
Rights and the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child. For the year ended 30 June 2008, factories in the Group's
supply chain were subjected to a total of 295 full SAB000 audits and a further 443 corrective action plan audits. The
majority of factories subjected to multiple audits showed consistent improvement, while those that failed to commit to
SA800¢ were expelled from the supply chain. The Group also joined the Continuous Improvement in Central American
Workplaces (CIMCAW), a public-private alliance designed to encourage improved working conditions in emerging Central
American economies.

Billabong International continued its support of various environmental initiatives, including the veluntary measurement and
independent review of its globa! carbon footprint. Our statement, which is currently being independently reviewed, shows
that the Company remains well under the Austratian Government thresholds for mandatory carbon reporting. However,
Billabong tntemationa! continues to voluntarily disclose its footprint and implement initiatives to reduce its environmental
impact.
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.. FINANCIAL REPORT
30 JUNE 2008

This financial report covers both Billabong International Limited as an individual entity and the
consolidated entity consisting of Billabong Intemational Limited and its subsidiaries. The financial
report is presented in Australian currency.

Billahong International Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
Australia. Its registered office and principal place of business is:

Billabong International Limited
1 Billabong Place
Burleigh Heads QLD 4220

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity's operations and its principal actlvities is
included in the Directors’ report on pages 2 = 5, which is not part of this financial report.

The financial repert was authorised for issue by the Directors on 22 August 2008. The Company has
the power to amend and reissue the financial report.

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our corporate reporting Is timely, complete,
and available globally at minimum cost to the Company. All press releases, financial reports and
other information are available on our Corporate website: www. billabopgbiz.com




Income statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008 : :

Consclidated Parent enlity
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Revenue from continuing operations 5 1,354,419 1,230,513 64,453 208,833
Cost of goods sold 7 (608,040) (570,979) — —
Other income & -— 671 - 443
Selling, general and administrative expenses 7 (399,411) (355,483) {1,733) (763)
Other expenses 7 (76,420} {63,422) (15,888) —
Finance costs 7 {24,9886) {19,486) (21,208) (9,893}
Profit before income tax 245,562 221,814 25,534 198,620
Income tax (expense ybenefit 8 (69,293) {54,207) 3,151 5,980
Profit for the year 176,269 167,607 28,685 204,600
Loss/(Profit} attributable to minority interest 111 (359) — -
Profit attributable to members of
Billabong International Limited 176,380 167,248 28,685 204,600
Earnings per share for profit attributable
to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company Cents Cents
Basic eamings per share 41 85.7 81.2
Diluted eamings per share 41 85.1 80.7

The above income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance sheets
As at 30 June 2008 : :
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 128,477 113,212 43 160
Trade and other receivables 10 302,680 274,369 23,673 12,853
Inventories 1 209,701 171,833 - -
Current tax receivables 8,106 — 268 -
Other 12 18,559 14,104 506 275
Total curent assets 667 523 573,518 24,490 13,288
Non-current assets
Receivables 13 7,677 12,875 274,962 192,572
Other financial assels 14 - —_— 414,264 410,678
Property, plant and equipment 15 134,120 106,991 -— -
Intangible assets 16 800,897 660,104 -— —
Deferred tax assets 17 12,608 35,371 4,401 292
Other 18 3,236 1,719 589 BO7
Total non-current assets 957,938 817,060 694,216 604,439
Total agsets 1,625,461 1,390,578 718,706 617,727
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 19 193,922 152,226 518 788
Borrowings 20 11,895 6,791 - —
Current tax liabilities 21 —_ 2,420 — 2,015
Provisions 22 11,285 10,836 -— —
Total current liabilities 217,102 172,273 518 2,803
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 23 471,411 360,565 315,992 132,737
Deferred tax liabilities 24 55,223 78,727 - -—
Provisions and other payables 25 10,475 4,575 .- -
Deferred payment 35 76,147 14,755 - -
Total non-current liabilities 613,256 458,622 315,992 132,737
Total liabilities 830,358 630,895 316,510 135,540
Net assets 795,103 759,683 402,196 482,187
EQUITY
Contributed equity 26 316,317 316,174 316,317 316,174
Treasury shares 27{a) (24,896) (19,708) .- -
QOption reserve 27(b) 6,095 9,363 12,558 9,363
Other reserves 27(b) (41,441) (21,940) —- —
Retained profits 27(c) 538,128 473,762 73,321 156,650
Parent entity interest . 795,103 757,651 402,196 482,187
Minority interest - 2,032 -— —
Total equity 795,103 759,683 402,196 482,187
The above baiance sheets should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes.
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Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2008 : :

Consuolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Total equity at the beginning of the
financial year 759,683 712,123 482 187 367,349
Cash flow hedge reserve movement, net of
tax 27(b) (1,240) (2.341) — -
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 27(b) (7.931) (21,476) - an
Net investment hedge 27(b) {10,330) 1,258 - -
Net (expense)/income recognised
directly in equity {18,501) {22,559) - -
Profit for the year 176,269 167,607 28,685 204,600
Total recognised income for the year 156,768 145,048 28,685 204,600
Transactions with equity holders in their
capacity as equity holders:
Contributions of equity, net of transaction
costs 26 143 2,646 143 2,646
Dividends paid 28 {112,014) (97,435) (112,014) (97.435)
Treasury shares purchased by employee
share plan trusts 27(a) (10,751} {7,726) — -
Option reserve in respect of employee
share plan 27(b) 3,195 5,027 3,195 5,027
Acquisition of subsidiary minerity interest {1,921} o - -
{121,348} (97.488) {108,676} (89,762)
Total equity at the end of the financial
year 795,103 759,683 402,196 482,187
Total recognised income and expense for
the year is attributable to:
Members of Billabong International
Limited 156,879 144,689 28,685 204,600
Minority interest (111) 359 e -
156,768 145,048 28,685 204,600

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash flow statements
For the year ended 30 June 2008 : .

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 T 2007 2008 2007
Notes $'000 5000 $'000 $°000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
{(inclusive of GST) 1,340,297 1,185,739 - —
Payments to suppliers and employees
(inclusive of GST) {1,108,720) {988,119) (18) —

231,577 197,620 {16) —--
Dividends received - - 876 51,046
Interest received 4,310 3,547 4,184 16,111
Other revenue 3,727 3,137 - 6
Finance costs {25,305) (17,087} {1,430) {10,460)
Income taxes (paid)/refunded {61,102) {96,008) 4 2,560
Net cash inflow from operating
activities 39 153,207 91,209 3,618 59,263
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of subsidiaries and
businesses, net of cash acquired 35 {90,688) (22,604) (391) (1,349)
Payments for property, plant and
equipment (54,688) (39,179) - -
Loans to related parties — — (42,260) {59,577)
Loans from related parties —_— — 146,238 178,466
Repayment of loans by related parties - - - 14,060
Repayment of loans to related parties - - - {150,183)
Payments for intangible assets {3,221) (12,061} - .-
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment 1,730 382 - —
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
investing activities (146,867) {73,462) 103,587 {18,583)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares and other
equity securities 143 2,646 143 2,646
Payments for treasury shares held by
employee share plan trusts (10,751) (7.726) {10,751} -
Proceeds from borrowings 338,327 285,416 128,300 106,035
Repayment of borrowings (197,079) (148,587} (111,000) {52,035)
Dividends paid 28 {112,014) {97,435} {112,014} _{97.435)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities 18,626 34,314 {107,322} (40,789)
Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 24,966 52,061 {117) (109)
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 113,212 67,855 160 269
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents (12,326) (6,704) -— —
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 9 125,852 113,212 43 160
Financing arrangements 23

Non-cash investing and financing activities 40

The above cash flow statements shouwld be read in conjunciion with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :
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Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have
been consistenlly applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial report includes separate
financial statements for Billabong International Limited as an individua! entity {the “Company” or “parent entity™) and the
consolidated entity consisting of Billabong Intemational Limited and its subsidiaries {the “Group” or “consolidated entity”).

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, cther
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Boeard, Urgent Issues Group Interpretations
and the Corporations Act 2001.

Compliance with IFRS

Australian Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(AIFRS). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the consolidated and parent entity financial statements and notes of
Billabong International Limited comply with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Early adoption of standards
The Group has elected not to early apply accounting standards that are not applicable to the accounting period
ended 30 June 2008.

Histarical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss and certain
classes of property, plant and equipment.

Critical accounting astimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial stalements, are disclosed in note 3.

Principals of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Billabong
international Limited as at 30 June 2008 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended.

Subsidiaries are all those entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than cne half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group (refer to note

1{h)).

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority interests as transactions with parties external te the
Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and losses for the Group that are recorded in the income
statement. Purchases from minority interests result in goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of identifiable net assets of the subsidiary.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

CH

Minority interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consclidated income statement
and balance sheet respectively.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the individual financial statements of Billabong International
Limited. Such investments include both investments in shares issued by the subsidiaries and other parent entity
interests that in substance form part of the parent entity's investment in the subsidiaries. These include investments
in the form of interest-bearing loans which have been provided to subsidiaries as an additional source of long term
capital. Other amounts advanced on commercial terms and conditions are included in receivables.,

(i) Employee Share Trust
The Group has formed trusts to administer the Group's Executive Performance Share Plan. The trusts are
consolidated, as the substance of the relationship is that the trusts are controlled by the Group.

Shares held by the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan - Australia trust and the Billabong Executive
Performance Share Plan trust are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from equity.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segmenis. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic environment and is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

Foraign currency translation

(7] Functional and presentation currency
Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates {(‘the functional currency'’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

{if) Transactions and balances
Foreign curmrency transactions are translated into the funclional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges.

(iif} Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency difierent from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each income statement are transtated at average exchange rates (untess this
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions}; and

o allresulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, or borrowings repaid, a proportionate share of such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale where applicable.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

n

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of returns, trade allowances and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is recognised for the
major business activities as follows:

{f Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when it can be reliably measured, the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to, and the goods been accepted by, the customer and collectibility of
the related receivable is probable.

Sales terms determine when risks and rewards are considerad to have passed to the custormer. Given that
sales terms vary between regions and custorners the Group recognises some wholesale sales on shipment
and others on delivery of goods to the customer, whichever is appropriate, The Group recognises retail
sales at the time of sale of the goods to the customer.

{ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the criginal effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income over the discounted period.

{iii) Royalty income
Royalty income is recognised as it accrues.

(v Agent commissions
Revenue eamed from sourcing of product on behalf of licensees is recognised net of the cost of the goods,
reflecting the sourcing commission only. Sourcing commission is recognised when the goods are provided.

Income tax

The income tax expense or revenue for the pericd is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consofidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly
in equity.
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Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :

Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

A deferred tax liability is recognised in relation to a proportion of the Group’s indefinite life intangibles. The tax base
assurmed in determining the magnitude of the deferred tax liability is the capital cost base of the assels. As the
assets are indefinite life in nature it was determined the assets would not be recovered through use but rather
through sale.

Tax consolidation legisiation
Billabong International Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax
consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2002.

The head entity, Biflabong International Limited, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to
account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax
consolidated group continues to be a stand alone taxpayer in its own right.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Billabong Intemational Limited also recognises the current
tax liabilities {or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed
from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consclidated entities are recognised as
amounts receivable or payable to other entities in the group. Details about the tax funding agreement are disclosed
in note 8.

Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding agreement
are recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated entities.

Leasas

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periedic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group as
lessee are classified as operating leases {note 33). Payments made under operating leases {net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Business combinations

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, including business
combinations involving entities or businesses under common control, regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given, shares issued or liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Where equity
instruments are issued in an acquisition, the fair value of the instruments is their published market price as at the
date of exchange unless, in rare circumstances, it can be demonstrated that the published price at the date of
exchange is an unreliable indicator of fair value and that other evidence and valuation methods provide a more
refiable measure of fair value. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in
aquity.

Identifiable assets acquired and fiabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill (refer to note 1(q)(1)). If the cost of acquisition is iess than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement, but only alter a reassessment of the
identification and measurement of the net assets acquired.
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{k)

"

Deferred consideralion

When deferred contingent consideration payable becomes probable and the amount can be reliably measured the
Group brings it to account. Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred and recognised as a
non-current liability, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assels or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents incfudes cash on hand, deposits held at
call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafls. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade receivables

All trade receivables are recognised at the date they are invoiced, initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, and are principally on 30 day terms.

Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account {provision for impairment of trade
receivables} is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the impairment allowance is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-terrn receivables are not discounted if the eflect of discounting is
immaterial.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement within other expenses. When a trade
receivable for which an impairment allowance had been recognised becermes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against other expenses in the income statement.

Other receivables is comprised of amounts receivable under a factoring arrangement and amounts due as a result of
transactions outside the normal course of trading.

Inventories
Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(i) Raw materials
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) methed and standard costs approximating actual costs.

(i) Work in progress end finished goods
Cost is standard costs approximating actual costs including direct materials, direct labour and an allocation
of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latler being allccated on the basis of normal operating
capacity. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selfing
expenses. Cost also includes the transfer from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to
purchases.

{m) Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit and loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity, re-evaluates this
designation at each reporting date.

] Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in receivables
in the balance sheet.

(i) Held-to-malurity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group's management has the positive intention and an ability to hold to maturity. If the Group were
to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would be tainted and
reclassified as available-for-sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-current assets, except for
those with maturities less than 12 months from the reporting date, which are classified as current assets.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for ail financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit and loss' category, including interest
and dividend income, are presented in the income statement within other income or other expenses in the peried in
which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. The translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and cother changes in carrying amount are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair
value of other monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sate are recognised in equity.

Impairment

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securnities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered in determining whether the security is impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit and loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through
the income statement.
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{n) Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair vatue on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either:

— hedges of the cash flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast transactions
{cash flow hedges), or
- hedges of net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions have been and will continue tc be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 29.
Movements in the hedging reserve in shareholders' equity are shown in note 27(b). The full fair value of a hedging
derivalive is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than
12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12
months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or fiability.

{i) Cash flow hedgo

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in equity in the cash flow hedge reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement within other income or other expenses.

Amounts accumulated in equily are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the hedged item will affect
profit or loss (for instance when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the effective
portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in the income statement within ‘finance
costs’. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for
example, inventory) the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the
initial measurerment of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit or loss as cost
of goods sold in the case of inventory.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income
staterment.

(i) Netinvestment hedges
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges.

Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement within other income
or other expenses.

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income statement when the foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold.

it Denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement and are
included in other income or other expenses.
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(o} Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date. These techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward exchange
contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the cumrent market interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

{p) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are shown at cost. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the itern can be measured reliably, Al repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income staternent during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

= Buildings 20 years
- Owned and leased plant & equipment 3-20 years
— Fumiture, fittings and equipment 3-20 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet dats.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 1(i}).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
the income statement.

{q) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised. Instead goodwill is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

(i) Brands
Expenditure incurred in developing or enhancing brands is written off against operating profit in the year in
which it is incurred. Brands are shown at historical cost.

Brands have a limited legal life, however the Group monitors global expiry dales and renews registrations
where required. Brands recorded in the financial statements are not currently associated with products
which are likely to become commercially or technically obsolete. Accordingly, the Directors are of the view
that brands have an indefinite life.

Brands are tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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(s)

(t)

(w)

W

{ifi) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated contractual lives (three to five
years). Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as
an expense as incurred.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the
financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities, which are not an incremental cost relating to the actual draw-down
of the facility, are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the facility.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the camrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in other income or other expenses.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 menths after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

Provisions

Provisions for restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operaling losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihcod that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employes benefits

{i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick
leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in
respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled.

{ii) Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefils and measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage
and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are
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{w)

(x)

(v}

()

discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national govemment bonds with terms to maturity
and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(iii} Termination banefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal, or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage veluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

(iv) Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for benuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation.

Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options for the
acquisition of a business, are not included in the cost of the acquisition as part of the purchase consideration.

Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at balance date.

Earnings per share

(i} Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year.

{ii} Diluted earnings per share
Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no
consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Employee and executive share plans

Equity-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Billabong Executive Incentive Option Plan,
an employee share scheme and the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan.

No options have been granted to employees under the Billabong Executive Incentive Option Plan since August 2002
and, as it is intended that the Executive Performance Share Pian replace the Billabong Executive Incentive Option
Plan, it is not envisaged that any further options will be granted under this plan. For options already granted under
the plan, no expense is recognised in respect of these options. The shares are recognised when the oplicns are
exercised and the proceeds received allocated to share capital.

The market value of shares issued to employees for no cash consideration under the employee share scheme is
recognised as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity when the employees become
entitled to the shares.

The fair value of equity instruments granted under the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan is recognised as
an employee benefit expense over the pericd during which the employees become unconditionally entitied to the
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instruments. There is a corresponding increase in equity, being recognition of an option reserve. Once the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the instruments the option reserve is set-off against the treasury
shares vested. The fair value of equity instruments granted is measured at grant date and is determined by
reference to the Biltabong Internationatl Limiled share price at grant date, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the rights were granted.

To facilitate the operation of the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan third party trustees are used to
administer the trusts which hold shares allocated under the plan. CPU Share Plans Pty Ltd and CRS Nominees Ltd
are third party trustees for the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan — Australia trust (for Australian
employees} and the Billabeng Executive Performance Share Plan trust (for non-Australian employees) respectively.
As the trusts were established by the Company for the benefit of the consclidated entity, through the provision of a
component of the consclidated entities executive remuneration, the trusts are consclidated in the consolidated entity.

Current equity based instruments granted under the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan include
performance shares and conditional rights. Both performance shares and conditional rights are subject to
performance hurdles. Through contributions to the trusts the consolidated entity purchases shares of the Company
on market to underpin performance shares and conditional rights issued. The shares are recognised in the balance
sheet as treasury shares. Treasury shares are excluded from the weighted average number of shares used as the
denominator for determining basic eamings per share and net tangible asset backing per share. The performance
shares and conditional rights of the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan are treated as potential ordinary
shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share.

The Company incurs expenses cn behalf of both trusts. These expenses are in relation to administration costs of
the trusts and are recorded in the income statement as incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with AASB
137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation, where appropriate.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between
the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where gquarantees in relation to loans or other payables of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.

Change in accounting policy in the prior year
This represents a new accounting policy in the prior year following the change to AASB 139, however there was no
impact on the parent enlity or consolidated entity financial statements or the eamings per share disclosed in note 41.

(bb} Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is
not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flow.
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(cc)

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class order 98/0100, issued by the Australian Securities and investments
Commission, refating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the financial report. Amounts in the financial report have
been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars.

(dd) Change in accounting policy

The policy of accounting for employee and executive share plans for the parent entity was adopted for the first time
in the current financial year. In previous reporting periods, the full amount of the employee and executive share plan
was only recognised on the consclidated option reserve, as the parent entity has no employees but grants rights to
its equity instruments directly to its subsidiary's employees.

.The policy was changed following the release of AASB Interpretation 11 Group and Treasury Share Transaclions.

The new policy has been applied retrospectively and comparative information in relation to the 2007 financial year
has been restated accordingly. The following adjustments were made as at 3¢ June 2007 and 1 July 2006:

Parent entity

1 July 2006 Increase/ 30 June 2007
Restated 30 June 2007 * (Decrease) Restated
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000

Balance sheet (extract)
Other financial assets — shares in controlled entities at cost 4,336 4,336 5,027 9,363
Net assets 367,349 477,160 5,027 482,187
QOptlion reserve 4,336 4,336 5,027 9,363
Total equity 367,349 477,160 5,027 482,187

{ee)

* The 2007 amounts are after correction of the 1 July 2006 balance.

There was no impact en the consolidated financial statements of the Group or the earnings per share disclosed in
note 41.

New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2008
reporting periods. The Group's assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out
below:

(i} AASB 8 Operating Segments and AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
AASB 8

AASB 8 and AASB 2007-3 are effective for annual reporting pericds commencing on or after 1 January 2009. AASB
8 will result in a significant change in the approach to segment reporting for companies generally, as it requires
adoption of a 'management approach’ to reporting on financial performance. The information being reported will be
based on what the key decision makers use internally for evaluating segment performance and deciding how to
allocate resources to operating segments. The Group has not yet decided when o adopt AASB 8. Application of
AASB 8 may result in different segments, segment resufts and different types of information being reported in the
segment note of the financial report. However, at this stage, it is not expected to affect any of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

{ii) Revised AASB 123 Borrowing Costs and AASB 2007-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 123 [AASB 1, AASB 101, AASB 107, AASB 111, AASB 116 & AASB 138 and Interpretations 1 & 12}
The revised AASB 123 is applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2008. It has
removed the option to expense all borrowing costs and - when adopted - will require the capitalisation of all
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. There will be
no impact on the financial report of the Group, as the Group already capitalises borrowing costs relating to qualifying
assets.
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(i} Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB 2007-8 Amendmenls to Australian
Accounting Standards arnising from AASB 101

A revised AASB 101 was issued in September 2007 and is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. It requires the presentation of a statement of comprehensive income and makes changes to
the statement of changes in equity, but will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements. If an
entlity has made a prior period adjustment or has reclassified items in the financial statements, it will need to disclose
a third balance sheet {statement of financial position), this one being as at the beginning of the comparative period.
The Group intends to apply the revised standard from 1 July 2009.

{iv) Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations, AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and
AASB 2008-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 3 and AASB 127

Revised accounting standards for business combinations and consoclidated financial statements were issued in
March 2008 and are operative for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 July 2009, but may be applied
earlier. The Group will apply the revised standards from 1 July 2009. The new rules generally apply only
prospectively to transactions that occur after the application date of the standard. Their impact will therefore depend
on whether the Group will enter into any business combinations or other transactions that affact the level of
ownership held in the controlled entities in the year of initial application. For example, under the new rules:

« all payments {including contingent consideration} to purchase a business are to be recorded at fair
value at the acquisition date, with contingent payments subsequently remeasured at fair value through
the income statement;

» ali transaction costs will be expensed.

(v} AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard - Share-based Payments: Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

AASB 2008-1 was issued in February 2008 and will become applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. The revised standard clarifies that vesting conditions are service conditions and performance
conditions only and that other features of a share-based payment are not vesting conditions. [t also specifies that all
cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties, should receive the same accounting treatment. The Group
will apply the revised standard from 1 July 2009. The Group is still evaluating the impact of this amendment.

{vi) AASB 2008-2 Amendments lo Australian Accounting Standards — Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation fAASB 7, AASB 101, AASB 132, AASB 139 and interpretation 2]

The amendments made by AASB 2008-2 in March 2008 relate to puttable financial instruments and instruments that
require the entity to pay the holder a pro-rata share of the entity's net assets on liquidation. The revised standards
have to be applied from 1 January 2008, Under the revised rules, the relevant instruments will be classified as
equity if certain conditions are satisfied. As the Group has not issued any such instruments, the amendments will
not have any effect on the Group's or the parent entity's financial statements.

(vii) Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
In May 2008, the IASB made amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Interational Financial Reporting
Standards and |AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The new rules will apply to financial
reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009. Amendments to the corresponding Australian Accounting
Standards are expected to be issued shorlly. The Group will apply the revised rules from 1 July 2009. After that
date, all dividends received from investments in subsidiaries, joinlly controlled entities or associates will be
recognised as revenue, even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, but the investments may need to be tested
for impairment as a result of the dividend payment. Furthermore, when a new intermediate parent entily is created in
internal reorganisations it will measure its investment in subsidiaries at the carrying amounts of the net assets of the
subsidiary rather than the subsidiary's fair value.

{viii) improvements to IFRSs

In May 2008, the IASB issued a number of improvements to existing Intermational Financial Reporting Standards.
The amendments will generally apply to financial reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009, except
for some changes to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations regarding the sale of the
contrelling interest in a subsidiary which will apply from 1 July 2009. We expect the AASB to make the same
changes to Australian Accounting Standards shortly. The Group will apply the revised standards from the relevant
application dates.
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Note 1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(ix) IFRIC Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Qperation

IFRIC Interpretation 16 was issued in July 2008 and applies to repeorting periods commencing on or after 1 October
2008. The interpretation clarifies which foreign currency risks qualify as hedged risk in the hedge of a net investment
in a foreign operation and that hedging instruments may be held by any entity or entities within the group. It also
provides guidance on how an entity should determine the amounts to be reclassified from equity to profit or loss for
both the hedging instrument and the hedged item. The Group is still evaluating the impact of this interpretation.

(x) Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

On 31 July 2008 the |ASB issued an amendment to IAS 39, Eligible Hedged ftems. It is effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and must be applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. The amendment makes two significant changes. It prohibits
designating inflation as a hedgeable component of a fixed rate debt. It also prohibits including time value in the one-
sided hedged risk when designating options as hedges. The Group is currently reviewing its hedging transactions to
determine whether there will be an impact on the financial report when the standard is first applied.
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Note 2. Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk {including currency risk and cash flow interest
rate risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contracts and interest rale swaps to hedge certain risk
exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not for trading or specutative purposes.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates interationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to United States Dollars.

Foreign currency transaction risk arises when assets and liabilities, and forecasted purchases and sales are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the respective entities. As sales are mainly denominated in the
respective local currency which is the functional cumrency, the major transactional exposure is in relation to inventory
purchases which are typically denominated in United States Dollars. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis and
cash flow forecasting. ‘

Forward contracts are used to manage foreign exchange risk. The Group's risk management policy is for each region to
hedge grealer than 80% of forecast foreign denominated inventory purchases for the upcoming season. Further hedges
can be executed following receipt of customer orders. All hedges of projected purchases qualify as “highly probable”
forecast transactions for hedge accounting purposes. The Group has, as outlined in note 29, forward exchange contracts
designated as cash flow hedges.

The carrying amounts of the Group's and parent entity's financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in Australian
Dollars and significant foreign currency (figures in Australian Dollars), are set out below:

Consclidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Australian Dollars
Cash and cash equivalents 9 19,866 8,662 43 160
Trade and other receivables 10,13 46,758 45,546 225373 172,551
Borrowings 20,23 {115,907) (101,060) (315,992) (132,737}
Trade and other payables 19 (24,498) {21,214) {518) {788)
{73,781) {68,066) {91,094) 39,186
United States Dollars
Cash and cash equivalents g 68,169 70,841 -— -
Trade and other receivables 10,13 99,027 114,433 —_ -
Borrowings 20,23 (248,223) (191,082) — -
Trade and other payables 19 {94,176) (79,472} — —
{175,203) {85,280) — -
European Euros
Cash and cash equivalents 9 11,975 8,277 — -
Trade and other receivables 10,13 71,481 54,539 - -
Borrowings 20,23 (81,735) (46,339) — -
Trade and other payables 19 (42,270) {31,692) — —
(40,549) {15,215) — —
Other
Cash and cash equivalenis 9 28,467 25,432 - -
Trade and other receivables 1¢, 13 93,091 72,726 73,262 32,874
Borrowings 20,23 (37.441) {28,875) - -
Trade and other payables 19 {32,978) (19,848} - —
51,139 49,435 73,262 32874
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Note 2. Financial risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The majority of the carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant subsidiary and thus there is no foreign exchange exposure. The majority of foreign exchange
exposure as at 30 June 2008 relates to intragroup monetary assets or liabilities, which whilst these intragroup assets or
liabilities are eliminated on group consolidation there is an exposure at balance date which is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as unrealised foreign exchange gains or losses. This is because the monetary item
represents a commitment to convert one currency into another and exposes the Group to & gain or loss through currency
fluctuations.

At 30 June 2008 had the Australian Dollar as at 30 June 2008 weakened / strengthened by 10% against the United States
Dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been $0.5 million higher / $0.4 million
lower {2007: $5.3 million higher / $4.3 million lower), mainly as a result of intragroup monetary assets or liabilities as at 30
June 2008. Profit is less sensitive to movements in the Australian Dollar / United States Dollar in 2008 than 2007 because
of decreased amounts of intragroup monetary assets or liabilities and decreased amounts of United States Dollar assels
or liabilities in non-United States Dollar functional currency entities as at 30 June 2008 compared to as at 30 June 2007.
Equity (excluding the effect to the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve of translating the United States of America
operations' net assets/equity to Australian Dollars) would have been $6.6 million higher / $6.6 million lower (2007: $9.8
million higher / $8.8 million lower). The Group's exposure to other foreign exchange movements as at 30 June 2008 is not
material,

The parent entity does not have any exposure to the United States Dollar as at 30 June 2008 or 30 June 2007. At 30 June
2008 the parent entity had exposure to the South African Rand. At 30 June 2008 had the Australian Dollar as at 30 June
2008 weakened / strengthened by 10% against the South African Rand with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been $3.3 million higher / $2.7 million lower {2007: $nil higher / $nil lower). Profit is more
sensilive to moverments in the Australian Dollar / South African Rand in 2008 than 2007 because of the creation of
intragroup monetary assels due to the acquisition of the South African {icensee in the year ended 30 June 2008 compared
to as at 30 June 2007. Equity would have been $3.3 million higher / $2.7 million lower {2007: $nil higher / $nil lower). The
parent entity's exposure to other foreign exchange movements as at 30 June 2008 is not material.

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

Other than cash deposits at call the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, therefore the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk
arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. In
certain circumstances the Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps.
Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Hedging
aclivities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite; ensuring optimal hedging
strategies are applied, by either positioning the balance sheet or protecting interest expense through different interest rate
cycles,

As at the reporting date, the Group had the following variable rate borrowings and interest rate swap contracts
cutstanding:

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
Bank loans and cash advance facilities 477,087 358,355
Interest rate swaps (notional principal amount} {182,368) {17,739)
Net exposure to interest rate risk 294,719 340,616

An analysis by maturities is provided in (c) below and a summary of the terms and conditions is in note 23.

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2008 if interest rates had changed by - / + 50 basis points from the year-end rates with all other variables held
constant, post-lax profit for the year would not have been affected (2007: $nil). Equity would have been $1.4 million
lowerfhigher (2007: $0.1 million lower/higher) mainly as a result of an increase / decrease in the fair value of the cash flow
hedges as at 30 June 2008.
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Note 2. Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if a counterparty failed to perform as contracted. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions,

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Derivative counterparties and cash deposits are limited to high credit quality financial institutions. The Group has policies
that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution,

It is the Group's policy that alt customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures
including an assessment of their financial position, past experience and other factors. Credit limits are set for each
individual customer in accordance with parameters set by the Board. These credit limits are regularly monitored. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debls is
not significant. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards, miligating credit risk.

Credit risk further arises in relation to financial guarantees given to certain parties. Such guarantees are only provided in
exceptional circumstances and are subject to specific Board approval.

The credit quality of financia! assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference lo external
credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty defauilt rates. The vast majority of cash at bank
and short-term bank deposits are held with banks with at least a credit rating of 'A’. Derivative counterparties have a credit
rating of at least ‘A’. The vast majority of trade receivables are with existing customers (who have been customers for at
least six months) with no defaults in the past (for further information about impaired trade receivabies and past due but not
impaired receivables refer to note 10).
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Note 2. Financial risk management {continued)
{c) Liquidity risk

Due to the financial liabilities within the Group and parent entity, the Group and parent entity are exposed to liquidity risk,
being the risk of encountering difficulties in meeling such obligations. Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to closeout market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available. Refer 1o note
23(e) for information in regards to the Group's and parent entity's financing arrangements. Refer to note 26(h) for
information in regards to the Group's and parent entity’s capital management strategy.

The tables below analyse the Group’s and the parent entity's financial liabilities, net and gross settled derivative financial
instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For net settled and gross
setiled derivatives the cash flows have been estimated using spot interest rates applicable at the reporting date.

. Less than Between 6 Between1 Between 2 Qver s Total Carryin
Consolidated - 2008 & months and 12 and 2 and 5 years contractual Amg{un?
months years years cash flows  (assets}/
liabilities
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-interest bearing 189,942 - - - - 189,942 189,942
Fixed rate debt 1,198 1,021 1,625 2,995 64 6,903 6,219
Variable rate debt 18,708 12,998 478,442 —— - 510,148 477,087
Net settled (interest rate
swaps) derivatives 999 947 1,893 1,405 - 5,244 1,564
Net variable rate debt 210,847 14,966 481,960 4,400 64 712,237 674,812
Gross settled derivatives
- (inflow) {96,633) {27,434) - - —  {124,067) —
- outflow 99,832 28,177 — -—- -— 128,009 3,071
3,199 743 - - — 3,942 3,071

As of 17 July 2008 a new $600 million Syndicated Revolving Multi-Currency Facility was entered into by the Group. This
new facility is due for roll-over prior to 1 July 2010 and 1 July 2011. The facility is structured as an unsecured muilti-
currency facility with a two year and three year tranche of $300 million each. The facility replaces the Group's previous
secured facilities (refer to note 23 for the Group's secured facilities as at 30 June 2008) and provides additional liquidity to
the Group.

, Less than Between 6 Between1 Between?2 Qver 5 Total Carryin,
Consofidated - 2007 6 months and 12 and 2 and 5 years contractual Am"c?un?
months years years cash flows  (assets)/
liabilities
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-interest bearing 149,169 -— - — - 149,169 149,169
Fixed rate debt 1,454 1,454 2,289 4,803 84 10,084 9,001
Variable rate debt 12,558 12,615 367,442 -— -— 392,615 358,355
Net settled (interest rate
swaps) derivatives (162) _(162) {193} — — (517) {503)
Net variable rate debt 163,018 13,907 369,538 4,803 B4 551,351 516,022
)
Gross settled derivatives
- {inflow) (86,137) (19,007) - -— -—  {105,144) —
- outflow 88,433 19,231 - -—- — 107,664 2,766
2,296 224 - -— -— 2,520 2,766
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Note 2. Financial risk management {continued)
p t entity - 2008 Lessthan Between6 Between1 Between 2 Over § Total Carrying
arent entity - 6months  and 12 and 2 and 5 years  contractual  Amount
months years years cash flows  (assets)/
liabilities
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-interest bearing 518 - - - -— 518 518
Variable rate debt 12,634 12,825 135,547 48,166 200,692 409,864 315,892
N Lessthan Between& Between4 Between2 Over 5 Total Carrying
Parent entity - 2007 6 months and 12 and 2 and 5 years contractual  Amount
months years years cash flows  (assets}/
liabilities
$'000 $'000 $°000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-interest bearing 788 - - - - 788 788
Variable rate debt 4,655 4,388 106,813 7,857 32,7137 156,550 132,737

(d} Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes.

Certain financial instruments such as derivatives are valued using valuation technigues. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date. The fair value of
interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward
exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of borrowings is based upon market prices where a market exists or
by discounting the expected future cash flows by the cument interest rates that are available to the Group for similar
financial instruments. Refer to note 13(b) and 23(g) for further information.

Note 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and ijudgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and cther factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumplions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the refated actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and indafinite life intangibles

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and indefinite life intangibles have suffered any impairment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 1{(i). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and judgements. Assumptions used in
impairment testing are detailed in note 16.

Deferrad contingent consideration

In relation to certain acquisitions that have been made by the Group, deferred contingent consideration may be payable in
cash if certain specific conditions are achieved. When the deferred contingent consideration payable becomes probable
and the amount can be reliably measured the Group brings it to account {refer note 35). The calculation of the payable for
each acquisition requires the use of estimates and judgements which are reviewed at each reporting period.
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Note 4. Segment information
(a) Daescription of segments

The Group is organised on a global basis into the following geographical segments. Each segment’s areas of
operation are the wholesaling and retailing of surf, skate and snow apparet and accessories.

Australasia
This segment includes Australia, New Zealand, Japan, South Africa, Singapore, Malaysia and Indonesia.

Amaricas
This segment includes the United States of America, Canada, Brazil, Peru and Chile.

Europe
This segment includes France, Germany, England, Spain, italy, the Netherlands, Belgium and Austria.

Rest of the World
This segment relates to royalty receipts from third party operations.

(b) Primary reporting format — geographical segments

2008 Rest of
Australasia  Americas Europe the World Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Sales to extermal customers 412,693 620,487 314,438 - 1,347,618
QOther revenue, including interest revenue 2,963 1,653 332 1,853 6,801
Total segment revenue 415,656 622,140 314,770 1,853 1,354,419
Segment result 110,081 112,013 68,004 1,853 291,951
Add/{Less): inter-company royalties and
sourcing fees 130,983 (82,749) (48,234} - —
Less: depreciation and amortisation (8,360) (10,653) (8,202) - (27,215)
Less: interest (expensa)/income (net) (5.378) {9,539) {4,257) - {19,174}
Profit before income tax 227,326 3,072 7,311 1,853 245,562
Consolidated profit before income tax 245,562
Less: income lax expense (69,293)
Consolidated profit for the year 176,269
Segment assets 1,159,499 681,758 234,760 — 2,076,017
Elimination {450,556}
Total assets 1,625,461
Segment liabilities 68,333 86,331 68,424 -- 223,088
Elimination (278,693)
Unallocated liabilities 885,963
Total liabilities 830,358
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment,
intangibles and cther non-current segment
assets 77,348 114,714 19,862 - 211,924
Impairment of inventories 157 244 6,062 - 6,463
Impairment of trade receivables 123 853 2817 e 3,793
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Note 4. Segment information (continued)
2007 Rest of
Australasia  Americas Europe the World Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Sales to external customers 353,628 604,567 264,716 - 1,222,911
Cther revenue, including interest revenue 2,696 1,305 - 3.601 7,602
Total segment revenue 356,324 605,872 264,716 3,601 1,230,513
Segment result 93,223 111,948 50,310 3.601 258,082
Add/(Less): inter-company royaities and
sourcing fees 108,409 (74.371) (34,038) -— -
Less: depreciation and amortisation (5,920) {9,226) (6.632) - (21,778)
Less: interest (expense)/income {net) {3,970} {9,428) (2,092) —- {15,490}
Profit before income tax 191,742 18,923 7,548 3,601 221,814
Consolidated profit before income tax 221,814
Less: income tax expense {54,207)
Consolidated profit for the year 167,607
Segment assets 1,031,315 602,760 183,263 - 1,817,338
Elimination (426,760)
Total assets 1,390,578
Segment liabilities 43,845 117,946 59,408 - 221,200
Elimination (252,358)
Unallocated liabilities 662,053
Total liabilities 630,895
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment,
intangibles and other non-current segment
assets 34,293 29,705 16,836 -— 80,834
impairment of inventories 54 1,250 2,707 - 4,011
Impairment of trade receivables 134 356 2,518 --- 3,008

{c) Secondary reporting format - business segments

The consolidated entity operates predominately in one business segment being the surf, skate and snow apparel
and accessories market.

Note 5. Revenue
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
From continuing operations
Sales revenue
Sale of goods 1,347,618 1,222,911 - —
Rovyalties 1,853 3,601 — —
1,349,471 1,226,512 -—- --
Other revenue
Interest 4,699 3,432 23,577 17,079
Dividends —_— -— 40,876 51,046
Cther 249 563 — -—-
Gain on transfer of subsidiaries to consolidated entity o - — 140,708
4,948 4,001 64,453 208,833
Total revenue 1,354,419 1,230,513 64,453 208,833
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Note 6. Other income

Foreign exchange gains
Other

Note 7. Expenses

Profit before income tax includes the following

spacific expenses:

Expenses
Cost of goods soid

Selling, generat and administrative expenses

Empiloyee benefits expense (included in the
amournts above)

Depreciation

Buildings

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment under finance lease
Total depreciation

Amortisation of finite life intangible assets

interest and finance charges
Interest expense
Cther borrowing costs

Total interest and finance charges

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Foreign exchange losses

Rental expense relating to operating leases
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rentals

Total rental expense relating to operating leases

impairment of other assets
Inventories
Trade receivables

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
— — — 443
- 671 - -
-—- 671 --- 443
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
608,040 570,979 - -
399,411 355,483 1,733 763
173,278 141,834 —- —
472 448 - -
25,360 19,738 - —
1,278 1,209 —- -—-
27,110 21,385 - -—
105 383 - —
23,873 18,922 20,185 9,329
1,113 564 1,113 564
24,986 19,486 21,298 9,893
21 72 - —_
1,020 2,987 15,888 -
43,296 30,500 - -
885 1,066 o —
44 181 31,566 - —
6,463 4,011 — —
3,793 3,008 - ---

Billabong International Limited

2007-08 Full Financial Report

Page 58



Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : ;

Note 8. Income tax expense
Consoclidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(a) Income tax expense/{benefit}
Current tax 62,073 83,930 (3,042) 787
Deferred tax 3017 (22,314) (4,109) (292)
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 4,203 (7,409) 4,000 (6,475)
69,293 54,207 (3,151} (5,980}
Deferred income tax (revenue)/expense included
in income tax expense/(benefit) comprises:
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets (note 17) 791 {15,842) (4,468) (292)
(Becrease)increase in deferred tax fiabilities (note 24) - 2,226 (6,472) 359 —
3,017 {22,314) (4,109) {292)
{b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax
expensef/(benefit) to prima facie tax
payable
Profit from continuing operations before income
tax expense 245,562 221,814 25,534 198,620
Tax al the Australian tax rate of 30% (2007 -
30%) 73.669 66,544 7,660 59,586
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/
{taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Net exempt income (12,647) (4.912) {2.548) (42,542)
Non-taxable dividends -—- - (12,263} (15,314)
Entertainment 368 274 - -
Sundry items (665) {1.659) -— {1,235)
Non-deductible/(taxable) permanent
differences . 3,079 701 -— —-
63,804 60,948 (7.151) 495
Difference in overseas tax rates 1,795 1,366 — -
Under/{over) provision in prior years 4,203 (7,409} 4,000 {6.475)
Prior year tax losses previously not recognised {509) (698) — -
Income tax expense/(benefit) 69,293 54,207 (3,151) {5,980)

{c) Amounts recognised directly in equity
Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the
reporting period and not recognised in net profit
but directly debited/{credited} to equity
Net deferred tax - credited (note 17, 24) 1.827  {(1,249) - -—

1,827 (1,249) — =

(d) Tax losses
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset
has been recognised 1,543 — — —

Potential tax benefit @ 30% 463 a— - —

All unused tax losses were incurred by entities that are not part of the Australian tax consolidated group.
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Note 8. Income tax expense (continued)
(e) Tax consolidation legislation

Billabong Internationa! Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation
legislation as of 1 July 2002, The accounting policy in relation to this legislation is set out in note 1(f).

On adoption of the tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the tax consolidated group entered into a tax sharing
agreement which, in the opinion of the Directors, limits the jeint and several liability of the wholly-owned entities in the
case of a default by the head entity, Billabong International Limited.

The entities have also entered into a tax funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities fully compensate
Billabong Inlernational Limited for any current tax payable assumed and are compensated by Billabong International
Limited for any current tax receivable and deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses or unused tax credits that are
transferred to Billabong Intemational Limited under the tax consolidation legislation. The funding amounts are determined
by reference to the amounts recognised in the wholty-owned entities’ financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the tax funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advice from the
head entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of each financial year. The head entity may also require
payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay tax instalments. The funding amounts are
recognised as current intercompany receivables or payables (note 34).

The income tax expense for the financial year is $69.3 million {2007: $54.2 million}, an effective tax rate of 28.2% (2007:
24.4%).

The following one-off items had a significant impact in determining the prior year’s income tax expense for the Group:

(a) Intra-group royalties — as part of a continuing comprehensive review the Group has made a number of changes to its
intra-group royalties. In relation to royalties received from the USA a bilateral Advanced Pricing Agreement (APA)
has been entered into with both the Australian Tax Office (ATO) and the United States Internal Revenue Service (US
IRS) covering the period 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2010. A similar process is underway with the French Taxation
Authority (FTA) in France. The total tax benefit that was recognised in the financial year ended 30 June 2007 was
$10.8 miliion. Of the total tax benefit, $7.5 million related to the 30 June 2007 financial year ($4.8 million in respect of
North America; $2.7 million in respect of Europe) and $3.3 million (all in respect of North America) related to the 30
June 2006 financial year,

(b} Timing of recognition of royalty income — a revision of the Group's method for recognising royalty income earned for
income tax purposes from a cash to accruals basis resulted in a non-recurring benefit of $4.5 million in the 30 June
2007 financial year. This benefit has been fully recognised in the 30 June 2007 financial year. :

Excluding all non-recurring {$4.5 million} and prior year {$3.3 million) taxation benefits mentioned above, the Group's
effective tax rate would have been 28.0% for the financial year ended 30 June 2007,
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Note 9. Current assets - Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash at bank and in hand 89,969 70,660 43 180
Deposits at call 38,508 42,552 — —
128,477 113,212 43 160

{a) Reconciliation to cash at the end of the year

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the consolidated cash flow

statement as follows:

Balances as above 128,477 113,212 43 160
Bank overdrafts {note 20) {2,625} - == ==
125,852 113,212 43 160
(b) Interestrate risk exposure
The Group's and parent entity’s exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note 2.
Note 10. Current assets — Trade and other receivables
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tradé receivables 300,313 252,023 - -
Provision for impairment of receivables (16,033} {16,127} - -
284,280 235,896 — —
Recoverables from controlled entity — tax related - - 19,318 11,093
Receivables from controlled entities - -— 4,355 1,760
Other receivables 18,400 38,473 — -
302,680 274,369 23,673 12,853

(a) Impaired trade receivables

As at 30 June 2008 current trade receivables of the Group with a nominal value of $17.3 million {2007: $16.8 million)
were impaired. Tha amount of the provision was $16.0 million (2007: $16.1 million}). The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to retailers, which are in unexpectedly difficult economic siluations. [t was assessed that a

portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

Consoclidated

2008 2007

$'000 3000
Up to 3 months 4,882 4,925
3 1o 6 months 2,306 2710
Over 6 months 10,151 9,147
17,339 16,782

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

Consolidated

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
At 1 July 16,127 12,964
Provision for impairment recognised during the year 4,237 7.728
Receivables written off during the year (3.793) (3,008)
Exchange differences (538) (1,557)
At 30 June 16,033 16,127
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Note 10. Current assets — Trade and other receivables (continued)

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in ‘other expenses’ in the income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

There were no impaired trade receivables for the parent entity in 2008 or 2007.

(b) Past due but not impaired

As of 30 June 2008, trade receivables of $55.6 million (2007: $46.6 million) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables is as follows:

Consolidated

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
Up to 3 months 30,039 31,479
3 to 6 months 14,672 9,012
Qver 6 months 10,899 6,091
55,610 46,582

The other classes within trade and cther receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. Based on the
credit history of these other classes, il is expected that these amounts will be received when due.

{c) Other receivables

This amount includes $13.2 million (2007: $30.7 million) relating to amounts recoverable under a debtor factoring
arrangement. Other amounts generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the consolidated
entity. Collateral is not normalfy obtained.

North American subsidiaries of the parent entity assign a portion of their accounts receivable to a factor under an
agreement which continues on an annual basis. All credit risk passes to the factor at the time of assignment, such that
the North American subsidiaries of the parent entity have no further exposure to default by the trade debtors. The
subsidiaries may request advances on the net sales factored at any time before their maturity date which reduces the
amounts owed by the factor to the North American subsidiaries per the agreement. The factor charges a commission on
the net sales factored, and interest on any advances at prime rate.

Maximum advances under the factoring agreement are not to exceed 90% of eligible accounts receivable. Obligations due
to the factor under the factoring agreement are collateralised by a confinuing security interest in the factored receivables
of the subsidiaries. At 30 June 2008 management believes all financial covenants had been met.

(d} Foreign exchange and interest rate risk
Information about the Group's and the parent entity's exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in relation to
trade and other receivables is provided in note 2.

(e} Fair value and credit
Due to the short-term nature of these receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to approximate their fair value.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. Refer to note 2 for more information on the risk management
policy of the Group and the credit quality of the entity’s trade receivables.
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Note 11. Current assets — Inventories

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Raw materials and stores - at cost 2,720 1,781 - —
Work in progress — at cost 6,245 7,321 - -
Finished goods
- at cost 179,365 150,528 - —
- at net realisable value 21,371 12,203 — -
208,701 171,833 —- -

(a) Inventory expense

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended 30 June 2008 amounted to $601.5 million (2007: $567.0
millicn). Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year ended 30 June
2008 amounted to $6.5 million (2007: $4.0 million). The expense has been included in ‘cost of goods sold' in the income

statement,
Note 12. Current assets - Other
- Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Prepayments 17,724 13,813 506 275
Derivative financial assets (note 29) 835 23 wmn -
18,559 14,104 506 275

{a) Risk exposure
Information about the Group’s and the parent entity's exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange and interest rate risk is
provided in note 2.
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Note 13. Non-current assets - Receivables
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Receivables from controlled entities - loans - - 272,007 189,617
Receivables from controlled entities - other -— - 2,951 2,951
Other receivables from other related parties —_ 5,607 — —
Other receivables . 7,677 7,268 4 4
7,677 12,875 274,962 192 572

Non-current assets pledged as security
Refer to note 23 for information on non-current assets pledged as security by the parent entity or its controlled entities.

{a) Impaired receivables and receivables past due
None of the non-current receivables are impaired or past due but not impaired.

{b) Fair values
The fair values and carrying values of non-current receivables are as follows:

2008 2007
Carrying Camying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
Consolidated
Other receivables 7,677 7.677 12,875 12,277

Parent entity
The fair values equal the carrying values of non-current receivables.

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate.
{c) Risk exposure

Information about the Group's and the parent entity's exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange and interest rate risk is
provided in note 2.

Note 14. Non-current assets — Other financial assets

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'600
Shares in controlted entities at cost (note 36) - - 259,377 255,71
Other investments — loans to subsidiaries - - 154,887 154,887
— — 414,264 410,678

Non-current assets pledged as security
Refer to note 23 for information on non-current assets ptedged as security by the parent entity or its controlled entities.

Other investments
Represents parent entity interest in subsidiaries as described in note 1{b)(i).
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Note 15. Non-current assets — Property, plant and equipment
Consolidated Land and Furniture, fittings  Leased plant & Total
buildings and equipment eguipment

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 July 2006
Cost 29,020 91,775 13,365 134,160
Accumulated depreciation {1,084) {38,142) (2,273) {41,489)
Net book amount 27,936 53,633 11,092 92,661
Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount 27,936 53,633 11,092 92,661
Additions e 43,050 297 43,347
Disposals - (1.674) - (1,674)
Depreciation charge (448) (19,738} {1,209) (21,395}
Exchange differences (843) (4,070} {1,035) {5,948)
Closing net book amount 26,645 71,201 9,145 106,991
At 30 June 2007
Cost 28,067 125,352 12,384 165,803
Accumulated depreciation (1,422} (54,151) (3,239} (58,812)
Net book amount 26,645 71,201 9,145 106,991
Consolidated Land and Furniture, fittings  Leased plant & Total

buildings and aquipmant equipment

$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Year ended 30 June 2008
Opening net book amount 26,645 71,201 9,145 106,991
Additions 1,363 58,187 18 59,568
Disposals - (1,788} (153) {1,841)
Depreciation charge (472) (25,360) (1,278) (27,110}
Exchange differences (452) (3.211) 275 (3,368)
Closing net book amount 27,084 99,029 8,007 134,120
At 30 June 2008
Cost 29,007 173,250 12,254 214 511
Accumulated depreciation {1,923) (74,221) (4,247) {80,391)
Net book amount 27,084 99,029 8,007 134,120
Parent entity

Billabong International Limited does not hold any property, plant and equipment.

Non-current assets pledged as security
Refer to note 23 for information on non-current assets pledged as security by the parent entity or its controlled entities.
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Note 16. Non-current assets — Intangible assets
Consolidated Goodwill Indefinite life Finite life Total
Brands Other

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 July 2006
Cost 102,666 557,754 2,653 3,961 667,034
Accumulated amortisation {10,207) -— - {2,572) {12,778)
Net book amount 92,453 557,754 2,653 1,389 654,255
Year ended 30 June 2007
Opening net book amount 92,459 557,754 2,653 1,389 654,255
Additions 19,752 1,260 2,686 —-— 23,698
Amortisation charge - - - {383} (383)
Exchange differences {6,487} (10,404} {283} {292) (17,466)
Closing net book amount 105,724 548,610 5,056 714 660,104
At 30 June 2007
Cost 115,939 548,610 5,056 3,613 673,218
Accumulated amortisation {10,215} — — {2,899) {13,114)
Net book amount 105,724 548,610 5,036 714 660,104
Consolidated Goodwill Indefinite life Finite life Total

Brands Other

$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $000
Year ended 30 June 2008 .
Opening net book amount 105,724 548,610 5,056 714 660,104
Additions 144,895 7.143 3,185 110 155,333
Amortisation charge —_ - - {105) (105)
Exchange differences (6,840) (7,856) 256 5 {14,435)
Closing net book amount 243,779 547,897 8,497 724 800,897
At 30 June 2008
Cost 253,877 547,897 8,497 3467 813,738
Accumulated amortisation ‘ (10,098) - - {2,743) (12,841)
Net book amount 243,779 547 897 8,487 724 800,887

Amortisation charge of $0.1 million (2007: $0.4 million) has been included in ‘other expenses' in the income statement.

Parent entity
Billabong International Limited does not hold any intangible assets.

{a) Impairment tests for Goodwill

Goodwill is altocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to geographical regions where
operations existed at the lime goodwill arose.

2008 Australasia Americas Europe Total
$'000 3000 $'000 $'000
Goodwill
- Billabong £9,752 63,253 8,878 141,883
- Element -—- as0 - 850
- Honolua - 5,456 - 5,456
- Kustom/Palmers 3,746 -— 3,746
- Nixon - 63,190 20,488 83,678
- Xcel - 6,277 — 6,277
- Tigerlily 1,889 —- - 1,889
75,387 139,026 29,366 243,779
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Note 16. Non-current assets — Intangible assets (continued)

(a) Impairment tests for Goodwilt {continued)

2007 Australasia Americas Europe Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Goodwill
- Billabong 27,004 28,487 8,878 64,369
- Element — 850 - B50
- Honolua - 6,380 — 6,380
- Kustom/Paimers 3,746 — —— 3,746
- Nixon - 23,283 7,096 30,379
30,750 59,000 15,974 105,724

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the Board of Directors covering a four year period and include a
terminal value based upon maintainable EBITDA.

(b} Impairment tests for brands

Brands are allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to individual brands.

Consolidated

Brands 2008 2007

$'000 $'000
Billabong 434,533 434,497
Element 25,733 25,733
Von Zipper 1,187 1,187
Kustom 10,540 10,540
Palmers 5113 5,113
Honolua 4,385 4,385
Beachculture 853 853
Nixon 57,316 65,042
Amazon 1,094 1,260
Xcel 3,543 —
Tigerlily 3,600 -
547 897 548,610

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use catculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the Board of Directors covering a four year period and include a
terminal value based upon maintainable EBITDA.

(c}) Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

Pre-tax cash flow projections for CGUs with allocated goodwill are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 13.0%
{2007: 11.0%).

Pre-tax cash flow projections for brand CGUs are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate range between 12.5% and
15.0% {2007: 12.0% and 15.0%).

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU. The discount rates used reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant region of operation or the brand and are derived from the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

(d) Indefinite useful life for brands

No amortisation is provided against the carrying value of purchased brands on the basis that these assets are considered
to have an indefinite useful ife.

Koy factors taken into account in assessing the useful iife of brands were:
« The brands are well established and have experienced strong sales growth over time; and
« There are currently no legal, technical or commercial obsolescence factors applying to the brands or the
products to which they attach which indicate that the life should be considered limited.
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Note 17. Non-current assets — Deferred tax assets
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $000 $°000 $'000

The deferred tax assets balance comprises
temporary differences attributable to:

Trade and other receivables 2,898 3,820 - —

Employee benefits 3,301 2175 - -

Inventories 6,698 2,409 -- —

Trade and other payables 1,405 1,221 - —

Inter-company royalties 1,633 15,169 - —

Other 9,151 9,548 4,760 292

Tax losses . 7,077 - - —

Finance lease liabilities 3,023 - —- -

Cash flow hedges {note 27) 1,807 1,029 - -

Total deferred tax assets 36,993 35,371 4,760 292

Set-off of deferred tax assets against deferred tax

liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions (note 24) (24,985} — (359) —

Net deferred tax assets 12,008 35,371 4,401 292

Movements:

Opening balance at 1 July 35,371 22,645 292 —
Credited to the income statement (note 8) {791) 15,842 4,468 292
Credited to equity 2,063 592 —- --
Exchange differences 326 (3,708) --- —_
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 35) 24 - - —

Closing balance at 30 June 36,993 35,371 4,760 292

Deferred tax assets o be recovered after more

than 12 months 16,928 2,449 4,760 —

Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12

months 20,065 32,922 — 292

36,993 35,371 4,760 292

Note 18. Non-current assets - Other

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Prepayments 3,236 1,216 589 897
Derivative financial assets (note 29) - 503 — -—
3,236 1,719 589 897
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Note 19. Current liabilities — Trade and other payables
Consolidated Parent entity

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade payables 181,568 136,461 - -
Other payables 28,374 12,708 518 788
Derivative financial liabilities (note 29) 3,880 3.057 — —

193,922 152,226 518 788
{a) Risk exposure
information about the Group’s and the parent entity's exposure to foreign exchange risk is provided in note 2.
Note 20. Current liabilities — Borrowings
Consclidated Parent entity

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Secured
Bank overdrafts 2,625 -— — -
Bank lcans 67 4,456 - —
Lease liabilities {note 33) 1,731 2,058 - -—
Other loans . 19 111 - —
Total secured current borrowings 4,442 6,625 — —
Unsecured
Bank loans 7,453 166 — —_
Total unsecured current borrowings 7,453 166 === -—
Total current borrowings 11,895 6,791 - -

(a) Bankloans
Bank loans represent term loans with fixed and variable interest rates.

(b) Other loans
Other loans represent term loans with fixed interest rates.

(¢} Security and fair value disclosures

Details of the security relating to each of the secured liabilities, the fair value of each of the borrowings and further

information on the bank loans are set out in note 23.

{d) Risk exposure
Details of the Group's exposures to risks arising from current and non-current borrowings are set out in note 2.

Note 21. Current liabilities — Current tax liabilities

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Income tax - 2,420 - 2,015

The current year income tax balance is a receivable totalling $8.1 million and $0.3 million as shown on the consolidated

balance sheet and parent entity balance sheet respectively.
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Note 22, Current liabilities — Provisions
Consolidated Parent entity

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee benefits 11,285 10,836 — —-
Note 23. Non-current liabilities — Borrowings

Consclidated Parent entity

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $'o00 $'000 $'000
Secured
Bank loans - 27 - -
Cash advance facilities 467,104 354,028 115,300 100,000
Lease liabilities (note 33) 4,307 6,407 - -
Other loans — 20 —- —
Total secured non-current borrowings 471,411 360,482 115,300 100,000
Unsecured
Bank loans - 83 - -
Payables to controlled entities - - 200,692 32,737
Total unsecured non-current borrowings — 83 200,692 32,737
Total non-current borrowings 471,411 360,565 315,992 132,737

(a} Bank loans - Sacured
Bank loans represent term loans with fixed and variable interest rates.

(b) Cash advance facilities

Cash advance faciliies comprise multi-currency cash advance facilities and a USD cash advance facility, the former
utilised by the Group’s major regions and the latter by the North American operation only. The multi-currency facilities
enable the Group to borrow in Australian dollars (AUD), either as a cash advance or a bank bill, United States dollars
{USD), Euro (EUR), Great Britain pounds (GBP), Japanese Yen (YEN), New Zealand dollars (NZD) and Canadian dollars
{CAD). The multi-currency facilities have funding periods of either 30 days to 185 days or 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 calendar
months, interest is payable in arrears and calculated as the benchmark reference rate plus a margin. Applicable
benchmark reference rates include: London Interhank Offered Rate {LIBOR); Bank Bill Swap Rate (BBSY); and Bank Bill
Mid Market Settlement Rate (BKBM). The multi-currency facilities may he drawn at any time during the term of the
faciliies provided the Company or Group does not trigger an event of default. The USD cash advance facility allows USD
cash advances for rolling 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 calendar month periods with inlerest payable in arrears and calculated as
LIBOR plus a margin. The cash advance facilities are due for periodic review and roll-over prior to 31 July 2009 and 31
December 2009.

(¢} Other loans
Other loans represent term loans with fixed interest rates.

(d) Assets pledged as security

The cash advance facilities and certain overdraft facilities of the Group are secured by an equitable mortgage over all
assets and undertakings of the consolidated entity. Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased
assets recognised in the financial statements revert to the lessor in the event of default, The other loans are provided by
software vendors and are secured against the assets to which the loans relate,
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Note 23. Non-current liabilities — Borrowings (continued)

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Consolidated Parent enlity
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Current
Floaling charge

Cash and cash equivalents 9 128,477 113,212 43 160

Trade and other receivables 10 302,680 274,369 23,673 12,853

Current tax receivables 8,106 - 268 —

Other current assets 11,12 228,260 185,837 506 275
Total current assets pledged as security 867,523 573,518 24,490 13,288
Non-current
Finance lease

Plant and equipment 15 8,007 9,145 - -—
First mortgage

Land and buildings 15 1,198 1,273 o -
Floating charge
Receivables 13 1,677 12,875 274 962 192,572
Other non-current assets 14, 15, 941,056 793,767 419,254 411,867

18, 17,
18
948,733 806,642 694,216 604,439

Total non-current assets pledged as security 957 938 817.060 694,216 604,439
Total assets pledged as security 1,625,461 1,380,578 718,706 617,727

{e) Financing arrangements
Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit:

2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Credit standby arrangements
Total facilities
Bank overdrafts and at-call facilities 27,649 26,221 — -
Trade finance facilities 45,018 45342 — -
Cash advance and other facilities 637,933 438,173 115,300 100,000
710,600 509,736 115,300 100,000
Used at balance date
Bank overdrafts and at-call facilities 2,625 - — —
Trade finance facilities 14,460 23,827 — —
Cash advance and other facilities 467,604 354,028 115,300 100,000
484 689 377,855 115,300 100,000
Unused at balance date
Bank overdrafts and at-call facilities 25,024 26,221 — —_
Trade finance facilities ‘ 30,558 21,515 -— -
Cash advance and other facilities 170,329 84,145 -— -
225,911 131,881 — —
Bank loan facilities
Total facilities 12,644 8,924 .- -
Used at balance date 7,521 4,732 o -
Unused at balance date 5,123 4,192 -— —
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Note 23. Non-current liabilities — Borrowings {(continued)

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank at any time by way of written
notice. Trade finance facilities, utilised by the Group for the provision of letters of credit to suppliers, may be drawn upon
at any time. The trade finance facilities may be terminated by the bank at any time by way of wrilten notice. Subject to no
event of default the Group may draw on the cash advance facilities at any time over the term of the facilities.

() Risk exposure
Infermation about the Group's and parent entity's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency changes is provided in
note 2.

(g} Fair value
The carrying amounts and fair vatues of borrowings at balance date are:

2008 2007
: Carrying Carrying .
Consolidategd amount Fair value amount Fair value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
On-halance sheet
Lease liabilities 6,038 5,429 8,465 7,696
6,038 5,429 8,465 7,696

All other fair values equal the carrying values of borrowings.

Fair value is inclusive of costs which would be incurred on settlement of a liability. The fair value of the borrowings on
balance sheet is based upon market prices where a market exists or by discounting the expected future cash flows by the
current interest rates for liabilities with similar risk profiles. None of the borrowings are traded.

Parent entity
The fair values equal the carrying values of borrowings.
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Note 24. Non-current liabilities — Deferred tax liabilities
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000

The deferred tax liabilities balance comprises
temporary differences attributable to:

Trade and other receivables - 1,140 - -
Depreciation 5,095 644 - -
Other 7,244 5,980 359 -
Intangible assets — brands 67,787 70,857 - —_
Cash flow hedges (note 27) 82 106 - —
Total deferred tax liabilities 80,208 78,727 359 —
Set-off of deferred tax assets pursuant to set-off

provisions {note 17} {24,985} — (359) —

Net deferred tax liabilities 55,223 78,727 — aam

Movements:

Opening balance at 1 July 78,727 90,478 - -
{Credited)/Charged to the income statement {note 8) 2,226 (6,472) 359 —
(Credited)/Charged to equity 236 (657) - —
Exchange differences (1,307) (4,622) .- -
Acquisition of subsidiary {note 35) 326 - - —

Closing balance at 30 June 80,208 78,727 359 —

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than

12 months 77,099 73,117 — -

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months 3,109 5610 359 —

80,208 78,727 359 —-

Note 25. Non-current liabilities — Provisions and other payables

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Employee benefits 2,572 2,280 - -

Derivative financial liabilities {note 29) 1,490 — — —

Other 6,413 2,285 - -

10,475 4,575 — —
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Note 26. Contributed equity

Consolidated and

Consolidated and

Parent entity Parent entity
2008 2008 2007
Notes Shares Shares :
‘000 $'000 $'000
{a) Share capital
Ordinary shares
Fully paid {b}.(d) 207,433 207,419 313,366 313,223
Other equity securities {chie) -—- — 2,951 2,951
Total contributed equity 207,433 207,419 316,317 316,174
{b) Movements in ordinary share capital:
2007 Number of
Date Details Notes shares $°000
1 July 2006 Opening balance 207,091,001 310,577
21 July 2008 Exercise of Element options {e) 825 5
21 July 2006 Exercise of Element options (e) 413 3
21 July 2006 Exercise of Element options {e) 301 2
8 August 2006 Exercise of Element options (e) 13,273 84
8 August 2006 Exercise of Element options (e) 6,643 51
8 August 2006 Exercise of Element options (e) 4,846 39
23 August 2006 Exercise of Element options (e) 451 .3
23 August 2006 Exercise of Element optians (e) 657 5
23 August 2006 Exercise of Element options (e} 180 3
5 September 2006 Exercise of Element options {e) 7,532 48
5 September 2006 Exercise of Element options (e} 11,001 88
5 September 2006 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options (f 7,187 53
18 September 2006  Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options (f) 11,231 83
18 September 2006  Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options f) 60,172 488
13 November 2006 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan opticns f) 1,500 14
13 November 2006 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options (f 41,502 336
24 November 2006 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options (fy 8,836 83
24 November 2006 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options (f) 28,334 230
29 November 2006 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options (f) 7,336 69
22 January 2007 Exercise of Element options {e) 1,142 7
22 January 2007 Exercise of Element options (e) 1,667 13
22 January 2007 Exercise of Element options {e) 454 6
13 March 2007 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan opticns () 32,000 259
23 March 2007 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options (f) 56,168 455
23 March 2007 Exercise of Element options {e) 2,997 41
28 March 2007 Exercise of Executive Incentive Option Plan options {f 6,000 49
26 June 2007 Exercise of Element options {e) 5,494 35
26 June 2007 Exercise of Element options {e) 8,025 64
26 June 2007 Exercise of Element options {e) 2,186 30
30 June 2007 Balance 207,419,354 313,223
2008 Number of
Date Details Notes shares $'000
1 July 2007 Opening balance 207,419,354 313,223
27 July 2007 Exercise of Element options (e) 413 3
27 July 2007 Exercise of Element options (e) 603 5
27 July 2007 Exercise of Element options (e) 164 2
14 August 2007 Exercise of Element options (e) 330 2
14 August 2007 Exercise of Element options {e) 359 5
24 September 2007 Exercise of Element options (e} 5,501 44
24 September 2007 Exercise of Element options (e) 5,993 82
30 June 2008 Balance 207,432,717 313,366
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Note 26. Contributed equity (continued)

{c) Movements in other equity securities:

Date Details Notes $'000
1 July 2006 QOpening balance 2,951
No options issued ---
30 June 2007 Balance 2,951
No options issued .-
30 June 2008 Balance 2,951

{d} Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in proportion
to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote,
and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

(o) Other equity securities

The amount shown for other equity securities is the value of the options issued in relation to tha Element acquisition. Each
option is convertible into one ordinary share. Each option is not enlitled to participate in dividends or the proceeds on
winding up of the Company. Options issued as part of the Element acquisition are as follows:

No. of Options

Date of Issue Issued Exercise price Date of exercise

2006 11 August 2005 5,981 $13.69 10 August 2006
11 August 2005 11,959 $13.69 10 August 2007

11 August 2005 5,981 $13.69 10 August 2008

2005 11 August 2004 10,977 $7.99 10 August 2005
11 August 2004 21,852 $7.99 10 August 2006

11 August 2004 10,977 $7.99 10 August 2007
2004 10 August 2003 15,032 $6.32 9 August 2004
10 August 2003 30,066 $6.32 9 August 2005
10 August 2003 15,032 $6.32 9 August 2006
2003 10 August 2002 15,049 $7.70 9 August 2003
10 August 2002 30,096 $7.70 9 August 2004
10 August 2002 15,048 $7.70 9 August 2005

(f) Options — Executive Incentive Option Plan
Information relating to the Billabong Incentive Cption Plan, including details of options issued, exercised and lapsed
during the financial year and options outstanding at the end of the financial year are set out in note 42.

(g) Employee Share Plan
Information relating to the Billabong Employee Share Plan, including details of shares issued under the scheme, during
the financial year are set out in note 42,
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Note 26. Contributed equity (continued)

{h) Capital Risk Management

The Group's and the parent entity's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistently with others in the industry, the Group and the parent entity monitor capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as 'equity’ as shown in the balance sheet (including minority interest) plus net debt.

During 2008, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2007, was to maintain a conservative gearing ratio for the
Group. The gearing ratios at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007 were as follows:

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
Notes $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Total borrowings 20,23 483,306 367,356 315,992 132,737
Less: cash and cash equivalents 9 {128,477) (113,212) {43) (160)
Net debt 354,829 254,144 315,949 132,577
Total equity 795,103 759,683 402,196 482,187
Total capital 1,149,932 1,013,827 718,145 614,764
Gearing ratio 31% 25% 44% 22%
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Note 27. Treasury shares, reserves and retained profits
Conéolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(a) Treasury shares (24,896) (19,708) - ==
Movement:

Balance 1 July (19,708) (11,982) - -
Treasury shares held by employee share plan (10,751) (7,728) - -
Employee share scheme issue 5,563 — — -

Balance 30 June (24,896) (19,708} — -

Treasury shares are shares in Billabong International Limited that are held by the Billabong Executive Performance
Share Plan — Australia trust and the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan trust for the purpose of issuing shares
under the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan {see note 42 for further information).

Number of
Date Details shares
1 July 2006 Opening balance 980,918
Acquisition of shares by the employee share plan trusts 522,484
30 June 2007 Balance 1,503,402
Acquisition of shares by the employee share plan trusts 681,523
Employee share scheme issue (492,637}
30 June 2008 Balance 1,692,288
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
{b) Reserves
Option reserve 6,995 9,363 12,558 9,363
Other reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve {38,399} (20,138) - -
Cash flow hedge reserve (3,042) {1.802) - =
Total other reserves {41,441} (21,940) - -
Total reserves (34,446) {12,577) 12,558 9,363
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Note 27. Treasury shares, reserves and retained profits (continued)

Movements in reserves:
Option reserve
Balance 1 July
Share-based payment expense
Employee share scheme issue
Balance 30 June

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance 1 July
Net investment hedge
Currency translation differences arising
during the year
Balance 30 June

Cash flow hedge reserve
Balance 1 July
Revaluation - gross
Deferred tax
Transfer to inventory - gross
Deferred tax
Transfer to net profit - gross
Deferred tax
Effect of exchange rate changes
Balance 30 June

(¢} Retained profits

Movements in retained profits were as follows:

Balance 1 July
Net profit for the year
Dividends {note 28)
Balance 30 June

{d) Nature and purpose of reserves

Option reserve

Consclidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
9,363 4,336 9,363 4,336
3,195 5,027 3,195 5,027
(5,563) - - -
6,995 9,363 12,558 9,363
(20,138) 80 --- -
(10,330) 1,258 - -
(7,931) (21,476) — -
(38,399) (20,138} - —
(1,802) 539 — -
{10,474) (7,135) - -
3,518 2,338 - -
8,489 3,300 — -
(2,740} {1,082) - -
(79) 380 - -
3z (151) - -
14 9 — -
(3,042} {1,802) - —
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
473,762 403,949 156,650 49,485
176,380 167,248 28,685 204,600
(112,014} (97,435) (112,014) (97 435)
538,128 473,762 73,321 156,650

The option reserve is used to record the increase in equity which corresponds to the recognition of an employee benefit
expense, relating to the fair value of equity instruments granted under the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan,
over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitied to the instruments. Once the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the instruments the option reserve is set-off against the treasury shares vested.

Foreign currency transiation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign controlled entities are taken to the foreign currency translation

reserve, as described in note 1(d).

Cash flow hedge reserve

The hedging reserve is used to record gains or losses on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that are recognised
directly in equity, as described in note 1{n). Amounts are recognised in profit and loss when the associated hedged

transaction affects profit and loss.
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Note 28. Dividends

Parent entity

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
(a) Ordinary shares
2007 fina! dividend of 27.0 cents per fully paid share paid on 16 October 2007
(2006 final dividend of 23.5 cents per fully paid share paid on 17 October 2006)

Fully franked based on tax paid at 30% 56,007 48,695
2008 interim dividend of 27.0 cents per fully paid share paid on 11 April 2008
(2007 interim dividend of 23.5 cents per fully paid share paid on 10 April 2007}

Fully franked based on tax paid at 30% 56,007 48,740
Total dividends paid 112,014 97,435
{b)} Dividends not recognised at year end
In addition lo the above dividends, since year end the Directors have recommended the
payment of a final dividend of 28.5 cents per fully paid ordinary share {2007: 27.0 cents)
fully franked based on tax paid at 30%. The aggregate amount of the proposed dividend
expected to be paid on 24 October 2008 out of retained profits at 30 June 2008, but not
recognised as a liability at year end, is 59,120 56,003

Given the strong growth of the Group’s international business, combined with likely increased dividends in the future, it is
expected that future dividends beyond the fina! dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008 will be partially unfranked.

{c} Franked dividends

The franked portions of the final dividends recommended after 30 June 2008 will be franked out of existing franking
credits or out of franking credits arising from the payment of income tax in the year ending 30 June 2009.

Parent entity

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Franking credits available for subsequent financial years based on a tax rate of 30%
(2007: 30%) 177 5,053

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financia! year, adjusted for:
(a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax;

(b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date; and
(¢) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date.

The impact on the franking account of the dividend recommended by the Directors since year end, but not recognised as
a liability at year end, will be a reduction in the franking account of $25.3 million (2007 $24.0 million).
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Note 29. Derivative financial instruments

Consolidated

Parent entity

2008 2007
$'000 £000

2008 2007
Notes $'000 $'000
Current assets
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow .
hedges 12 835 201
Total current derivative financial instrument assets 835 291
Non-current assets
Interest rate swap contracts — cash flow hedges 18 - 503
Total non-current derivative financial instrument
assets - 503
Current liabilities
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow
hedges 19 3,906 3,057
Interest rate swap contracts — cash flow hedges 19 74 -
Total current derivative financial instrument
liabilities 3,980 3,057
‘Non-current liabilities
Interest rate swap contracts — cash flow hedges 25 1,490 -
Total current derivative financial instrurment
' liabilities 1,490 —
Net derivative financial instruments {4,635) (2,263}

(a) Instruments used by the Group

The Group is party to derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to
fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates in accordance with the Group's financial risk management policies

(refer to note 2).

() Interest rate swap contracts — cash flow hedges

The Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it is obliged to receive interest at variable rates and
to pay interest at fixed rates. The contracts are settled on a net basis and the net amount receivable or payable at the
reporting date is included in other debtors or other creditors, At balance date the notional principal amount of the interest
rale swap contracts covered 74% of outstanding USD denominated cash advances. The contract requires settlement of
net interest receivable or payable every three months. The settlement dates coincide with the dates on which interest is

payable on the underlying debt.

Details of the interest rate swap contracts outstanding at balance date are set out below:

Notional principal amount Expiry Fixed interest rate 90 day bank bill rate
at 30 June 2008

$15 million USD (2007 : $15 million USD) | February 2009 3.5% 2.8% (2007: 5.4%)

$60 million USD (2007 nil} January 2011 3.9% 2.8%

$100 million USD (2007; nil) January 2011 3.9% 2.8%

The gain or loss from re-measuring the hedging instruments at fair value is deferred to equity in the cash flow hedge
reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective, and reclassified into profit and loss when the hedged interest expense is

recognised. The ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement immediately.

At balance date the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts were USD $1.5 million derivative financial instrument

liabilities (2007: USD $0.4 million derivative financial instrument asset).
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Note 29. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(i) Forward exchange contracts — cash flow hedges

From time to time and in order to protect against exchange rate movements the Group enters into forward exchange
contracts to purchase US dollars, Euro and Australian dollars. The contracts are hedging highly probable forecast
purchases for the upcoming season and are timed to mature when major shipments of inventory are scheduled to arrive.

The cash flows are expecled to occur at various dates within one year from the balance date. At balance date, the details
of outstanding contracts are:

Buy USD Average exchange rate
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000
0 - 6 Months
Sell Euro 39,500 33,124 1.5040 1.3516
Sell AUD 30,000 29,600 0.8911 0.8023
Sell CAD 5,642 4,785 1.0107 0.8604
Sell BRL - 750 - 0.4615
Sell Yen 1,925 1,000 0.0085 0.0088
Sell ZAR 2,500 - 0.1405 —-—
6 - 12 Months
Sell Euro 18,700 15,000 1.5192 1.3379
Sell BRL — 650 - 0.4734
Sell Yen 1,200 - 0.0099 —
Buy Euro Average exchange rate
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000
0 - 6 Months
Selt GBP 4,904 -— 0.7952 -
SellUSD 1,312 - 0.6448 -
6 — 12 Months
Sell GBP 3,758 - 0.7981 -
Buy AUD Average exchange rate
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000
0 - 6 Months
Sell NZD 3.800 4,000 0.8594 0.8849
Sell Yen 196 196 0.0116 0.0111
6-12 Months
Sell NZD 500 500 0.8124 0.8851

Amounts disclosed above represent cumency acquired measured at the contracted rate.

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly
in equity. When the cash flow occurs, the Group adjusts the initiat measurement of the inventory recognised in the
balance sheet by the related amount deferred in equity.

At balance date these contracts were net liabilities of $3.1 million (2007: $2.8 million).

(iii) Hedge of net investment in foreign entity

The foreign exchange loss of $10.3 million (2007: foreign exchange gain $1.3 million) on translation of inter-company
loans to Austratian dollars at reporting date is transferred to the foreign currency translation reserve, in equity {note 27).
There was no ineffectiveness to be recorded from net investments in foreign entity hedges.

{b) Risk exposures
Information about the Group's and the parent entity's exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange and interest rate risk is
provided in note 2.
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Note 30. Key management personnel disclosures

{a} Diroctors
The following persons were Directors of Billabong Intemational Limited during the financial year:

(i) Non-Executive Chairman
E.T. Kunkel

(i) Executive Directors
D. O'Neill, Chief Executive Officer
P. Naude, General Manager, Billabong USA

(i) Non-Executive Direclors
M.A, Jackson

F.A. McDonald

G.S. Merchant

C. Paull

A.G. Froggatt was appointed to the position of Non-Executive Director on 21 February 2008.
(b) Other key management personnel

The following persons also had autherity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Group, directly or indirectly, during the financial year:

Name Position Employer

P. Casey * Group General Manager, Operations GSM {Operations) Pty Ltd
F. Fogliato General Manager, Billabong Europe GSM Europe Pty Lid

C. Kypriotis General Manager, Billabong South Americas GSM Brasil Ltda

S. North General Manager, Billabong Australasia GSM {Operations) Pty Ltd
J. Schilleref{ President, Element Skateboards Inc Element Skateboards, Inc
C. White Chief Financiai Officer GSM (Operations) Pty Ltd

A P. Casey resigned effective 27 November 2007.

(c) Key management personnel compensation

Consoclidated Parent entity

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Short-term employee benefits 9,110 8,315 — -
Long-term employee benefits — tong service leave 27 41 - -
Post-employment benefits 133 116 - -
Share-based payments 1,653 2.050 - -~
10,923 10,522 — —-

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in sections A — C of the remuneration report.
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Note 30.

(d) Equity instrument disclosures relating to key management personnel

(i) Options provided as remuneration and shares issued on exercise of such options
Details of options provided as remuneration and shares issued on the exercise of such options, together with the terms
and conditions of the options, can be found in section D of the remuneration report.

(i) Options holdings

Key management personnel disclosures {(continued)

The number of options over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director of Billabong
International Limited and other key management personnel of the Group, including their personally related parties, are set

out below,

2008

No options have been granted, vested or forfeited during the year ended 30 June 2008. No options are vested and

unexercisable at the end of the year.

2007 Balance at the | Granted during Exercised Balance at Vested and
start of the the year as during the the end of exercisable
Name year compensation year the year at the end of
the year
Directors of Billabong International Limited
D. O'Neilt 8,334 == {8.334) - -—
P. Naude 8,334 — {8,334) — —
Other key management personnel of the Group
P. Casey 8,334 — (8,334) -— —
F. Fogliato - — - -— —
S. North -— — — -— —
J. Schillereff - - - - -—
C. White -— o — — —

No options are vested and unexercisable at the end of the year.
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Note 30.

(iii)  Rights holdings

Details of rights provided as remuneration and shares issued on the vesting of such rights, together with the terms and
conditions of the rights, can be found in section D of the remuneration report. The number of rights over ordinary shares in
the Company held during the financia! year by each Director of Billabong International Limited and other key management

Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

personnel of the Group are set out below.

2008 Balance at | Granted during | Exercised Other Balance at Vested and
Name the start of the year as during the changes the end of exercisable at
the year compensation year during the the year the end of the
year year
Directors of Billabong International Limited
D. O'Neill 154,619 56,363 {65,000) — 145,982 -
P. Naude 152,413 48,745 (65,000) — 136,158 —
Other key management personnel of the Group
P.Casey * 60,864 —_— (17,715) {43,149) — -—
F. Fogliato 45,070 27,670 (11,804) — 60,936 ——
C. Kypriotis A 34,186 14,347 (11,804) — 36,729 -
S. North 60,864 28,182 (17,715) - 71,331 -—
J. Schillereff 23,865 8,399 (8,853) —_ 23,411 —
C. White 82,970 32,568 (29,525) — 86,013 —
* P. Casey resigned effective 27 November 2007.
A4 Key management personnel from 1 July 2007,
2007 Balance at | Granted during | Exercised Other Balance at Vested and
Name the start of the year as during the changes the end of exercisable at
the year compensation year during the the year the end of the
year year
Directors of Billabong International Limited
B. O'Neill 110,496 44,123 -— — 154,619 -
P. Naude 110,496 41 817 — —- 152,413 -
Other key management personnel of the Group
P. Casey 39,857 20,907 - -- 60,864 ==
F. Fogliato 26,969 18,101 — - 45,070 -
5. North 39,957 20,907 -- — 60,864 -
J. Schillereff 16,663 7.202 - - 23,865 -
C. White 56,822 26,148 — — 82,970 -~
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{iv) Share holdings

Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

The numbers of erdinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director of Billabong International
Limited and other key management personnel of the Group, including their personally related entities, are set out below.

2008 Balance at Received on Received on | Other changes | Balance at
Name the start of | the exercise of | the exercise of | during the year | the end of
the year rights holdings options the year

Directors of Billabong International Limited

E.T. Kunkel 94,466 - — - 94,466
D. O'Neilt 926,621 65,000 — 35,200 1,026,821
M.A. Jackson 228,656 - -— — 228,656
F.A. McDonald 122,500 — - 7.000 129,500
G.S. Merchant 31,280,444 - - 161,739 31,442,183
P. Naude 1,866,179 65,000 - {100,000} 1,831,179
C. Paull 2,515,867 — - - 2,515,867
A.G. Froggatt * — — — -— -—
Other key management personnel of the Group

P. Casay A 321,419 17.715 — {339,134) -—
F. Fogliato 118 11,804 — -- 11,922
C. Kyprigtis At 118 11,804 - -- 11,922
S. North 165,295 17,715 - 173,945 356,956
J. Schillereff 66,637 8,853 — 181 75,671
C. White 56,840 29,525 — {29.525) 56,840

A A.G. Froggatt was appeinted to the position of Non-Executive Director on 21 February 2008,
AP, Casey resigned effective 27 November 2007 - details of P. Casey’s share holdings subsequent to his resignation

are not required to be disclosed.

AMA Key management personnel from 1 July 2007.

2007 Batance at Received on Received on | Other changes | Balance at
Narme the start of | the exercise of | the exercise of | during the year | the end of
the year rights holdings options the year

Directors of Billabong International Limited

E.T. Kunkel 44,466 — - 50,000 94,466
D. O'Neill 918,287 - 8,334 - 926,621
M.A. Jackson 228,656 -- - - 228,656
F.A. McBonald 122,500 — - - 122,500
G.S. Merchant 31,280,444 — - -— 31,280,444
P. Naude 1,857,845 —_ 8,334 - 1,866,179
C. Paull 1,733,259 -— - 782,608 2,515,867
G.M. Pemberton A 10,075,966 — -— {10,075,968) —
Other key management parsonnel of the Group

P. Casey 411,218 --- 8,334 {98,133) 321,419
F. Fogliato 118 - —_ - 118
S. North 135,296 - - 30,000 165,296
J. Schillereff 46,998 — - 19,639 66,637
C. White 56,840 o o — 56,840

A7 G.M. Pemberton resigned from the position of Non-Executive Direclar on 23 February 2007 - details of Mr Pemberton's
share holdings subsequent to his resignation are not required to be disclosed.

Biltabong International Limited

2007-08 Full Financial Report

Page 85




Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :

Note 30. Key management personnel disclosures (continued)
(d) Other transactions with Directors and other key management personnel

Directors of Billabong International Limited
During 2008 Burleigh Point Limited utilised property of Director P. Naude for use in certain adverlising and promotional
activities. There was no consideration paid by Burleigh Point Limited to P, Naude for use of the property.

The wife of P, Naude was a 33.3% shareholder of one retail stere which was acquired by the Group on 1 November
2007 when the Group acquired multiple retail stores via the acquisition of 'Country Feeling Shops CC, Magnatubes CC,
Mimosa Surf Shop CC, Woodlands Surf Shop CC, Stellenbosch Surf Shop CC, Garden Route Surf Shop CC and
Stamford Hill Surf Shop CC'. The purchase was based on nomal commercial terms and conditions.

The wife of P, Naude also owns the building in which the above one retail store is located. The rental agreement is
hased on normal commercial terms and conditions.

Key management personnel of the consolidated entity

Mr J. Schillereff was a Director of Element Skate Inc at the time Billabong acquired the assets comprising the “Element”
skate operation. The transaction was effective from 1 July 2002 and as part of the consideration paid by Billabong for
these assets Mr J. Schillereff was granted 423,053 options. Additionally, as part of the acquisition terms, Mr J.
Schillereff was entitled to receive four further iranches of options, granted in August following the first, second, third and
fourth anniversary of the transaction. The terms and conditions of each grant of options under the Element acquisition
agreement to 30 June 2008 are as follows:

Grant Expiry |Exercise| Number | Value Date exercisable
date date price of per
opticns | option
granted at
grant
date

04 Jul 01 | 30 Jun 05 $5.35 | 423,053 | $1.74 | 25% after 30 Jun 02; 50% after 30 Jun 03; 25% after 30 Jun 04
10 Aug 02 | 09 Aug 06 $7.70 8,847 | $1.25 | 25% after 9 Aug 03; 50% after 9 Aug 04; 25% after 9 Aug 05
10 Aug 03 | 09 Aug 07 $6.32 8,836 | $1.42 | 25% after 9 Aug 04; 50% after 9 Aug 05; 25% after  Aug 06
11 Aug 04 | 10 Aug 08 $7.99 6,453 | $1.26 | 25% after 10 Aug 05; 50% after 10 Aug 08; 25% after 10 Aug 07
11Aug 05 [ 10 Aug 09 | $13.69 3,516 $2.22 | 25% after 10 Aug 06; 50% after 10 Aug 07; 25% after 10 Aug 08
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Note 31. Remuneration of auditors

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditors of the parent entity, its
related practices and non-related audit firms:

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
{a} Audit services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm
Audit and review of financial reports 638 496 30 25
Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Australian firm 638 555 — s e
Total remuneration for audit services 1,276 1,051 30 25
(b) Non-audit services
Audit-related services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm
Due diligence services 68 - = ---
General accounting advice 88 30 - -
Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Australian firm
Due diligence services 726 505 — -
General accounting advice — 53 — —
Total remuneration for audit-related services 882 588 - -

Taxation services
PricewaterhouseCoopers Australian firm
Internationat tax consulling together with
separate tax advice on acquisitions 1,638 1,329 - .-
Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Australian firm
International tax consulting together with

separate tax advice on acquisitions 46 38 — -—
Total remuneration for taxation services 1,684 1,367 — -—-
Total remuneration for non-audit services 2,566 1,955 — —-

It is the Group's policy to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties
where PricewaterhouseCoopers' expertise and experience with the Group are important. These assignments are
principally tax advice and due diligence reporting on acquisitions, or where PricewaterhouseCoopers is awarded
assignments on a competitive basis.
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Note 32. Contingencies
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2008 are as follows:

Guarantees
Secured guarantees by the parent entity in respect of bank overdrafts and loans of controlled entities. These guarantees
are secured by registered mortgages over the assets and undertakings of the consolidated entity.

Unsecured guarantees by the parent entity in respect of leases of controlled entities for $1.8 million (2007: $2.3 million).

Contingent Consideration

In the event that certain specific conditions are achieved additional consideration may be payable in cash in relation to
the Xcel, Quiet Flight and South Africa licensee acquisitions. If it becomes probable that additional consideration will be
payable it will be brought to account as a component of the goodwill arising on the acquisition when the amount can be
reliably measured. The Group will review the likelihood of these payments at future reporting dates.

Trade Letters of Credit

The Group had $14.5 million letters of credit in favour of suppliers executed but undrawn as at 30 June 2008 (2007
$23.8 million). The letters of credit related to the purchase of inventory in the 2008-09 financial year and are part of the
ordinary course of business.

No material losses are anticipated in respect of any of the above contingent liabilities.

Note 33. Commitments
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
{a) Lease commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for
at the reporting date but not recognised as
liabilities, payable:
Within one year 45,575 30,376 -— -
Later than one vear but not later than five vears 116,548 79,597 - -
Later than five years 45,649 30,063 --- -—
207,772 140,036 - —-
Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases 207,095 138,994 — -
Future finance charges on finance leases 677 1,042 — -
207,772 140,036 -~ ---

(i) Operating leases
The Group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating leases. The leases have varying
-terms, escalaling clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

Consolidated Parent entity

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Commitments for minimum lease payments in
relation to non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:
Within one year 45276 29,980 — -
Later than one year but not later than five years 116,170 78,952 —_— -
Later than five years 45,649 30,062 -—- -

; 207,095 138,994 — -
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Note 33. Commitments (continued)

(i} Finance leases
The Group leases various plant and equipment with a carrying amount of $8.0 million (2007: $9.1 million).

Consoclidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Commitments in refation to finance leases are
payable as follows:
Within one year 2,032 2,474 - —
Later than one year but not later than five years - 4,619 6,951 - -
Later than five years 64 85 - -—
Minimum lease payments 6,715 9,507 — -
Future finance charges (677) {1,.042) -— —-
Total lease liabilities recognised as a liability 6,038 8,465 — o
Representing lease liabilities:
Current (note 20} 1,731 2,058 - -
Non-current (note 23) 4,307 6,407 — —
6,038 8,465 == il
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
(b} Contests and Athletes
Commitments in relation to sponsorship of
athletes and contests are payable as follows:
Within one year 13,462 13,036 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 16,290 13,450 - ---
Later than five years — == - -
29,752 26,486 — —s

(c) Remuneration commitments
Employment contracts for key management personnel do not have a fixed end date and therefore have not been
included in the above note.

Consoclidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2003 2007
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000

{d) Capital commitments

Commitments in relation to capital commitments
are payable as follows:

Within one year 8,038 - - -
Later than one year but not later than five years —_ -— -
Later than five years

8,038 — o ==
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Note 34. Related party transactions

(a) Parent antitias

The ultimate parent entity within the Group is Billabong International Limited.

(b} Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 36.

{c} Key management personnel
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 30.

{d} Transactions with related parties

Dividend revenue
Subsidiaries

Interest revenue
Subsidiaries

(e) Outstanding balances

Consolidated
2008 2007
$°000 $'000

Parent entity

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
40,876 51,046
23,271 16,551

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

Current receivables (tax funding agreement)
Wholly-owned tax consolidated entities

Current receivables

Receivables from controlled entities

Non-current receivables

Receivables from controlled entities

No provisions for doubtful debls have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances,

Consolidated
2008 2007
£°000 $'000

recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.

Parent entity

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
19,318 11,093
4,355 1,760
2,951 2,951

and no expense has been
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Note 34. Related party transactions (continued)

{f) Loans to/from related parties

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Loans to subsidiaries
Beginning of the year — - 189,617 144,100
Loans advanced — — 62,382 58,577
Loan repayments received — s == (14,060)
Interest charged - — 23,271 16,551
Interest received - — anm {3,263) (16,551)
End of year — o 272,007 189,617
Loans from subsidiaries
Beginning of the year -— —_ 32,737 4,454
Loans advanced -— - 155,418 178,466
Loan repayments received — — - (150,183)
Interest charged - -— 12,537 3,889
Interest received - — — {3,889}
End of year — — 200,692 32,737
Loans to other relaled parties
Beginning of the year 5,607 5,232 - -
Acquisition of minority interest {5,607) - - -
Interest charged — 375 — o
End of year - 5,607 -— —

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has heen
recognised in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.

{g) Terms and conditions
Transactions relating to dividends were on the same terms and conditicns that applied to other shareholders.

The terms and conditions of the tax funding agreement are set cut in note 8(e).

All other transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates, except that there are
no fixed terms for the repayment of loans between the parties. The average interest rate on loans during the year was
8.0% (2007: 8.0%).

Qutstanding balances are unsecured and are repayable in cash.
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Note 35. Business combinations
Purchase consideration
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Qutflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, net of
cash acquired
Cash consideration — — g 1,349
Less: Cash balances acquired — — - -
Total outflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries, net
of cash acquired - et ki) 1,349

Outflow of cash to acquire businesses, net of cash
acquired
Cash consideration 92,59 22,613 - -—
Less: Cash balances acquired (1,903) {9) -— -
Total outflow of cash to acquire businesses, net of
cash acquired 90,688 22,604 — —-
Total outflow of cash to acquire subsidiaries and
businesses, net of cash acquired 90,688 22,604 391 1,349

2008

{a} Summary of acquisitions

On 1 July 2007 GSM Trading (South Africa) Pty Ltd and GSM Manufacturing (South Africa) {Proprietary) Limited acquired
the assels and certain liabilities of Billabong South Africa (Proprietary) Limited, Kustom and Palmers Surf (Proprietary)
Limited, Country Feeling CC, Element Skatehoards South Africa CC and Von Zipper South Africa CC.

On 1 September 2007 Xcel International, Inc and Seal Trademarks Pty Ltd acquired the assets and certain liabilities of
Xcel Hawaii, Inc., KEM Hawaii Incorporated and MKD Wetsuits, Inc.

On 1 November 2007 GSM Trading (South Africa) Pty Ltd acquired the assets and certain liabilities of Country Feeling
Shops CC, Magnatubes CC, Mimosa Surf Shop CC, Woodlands Surf Shop CC, Stellenbosch Surf Shop CC, Garden
Route Surf Shop CC and Stamford Hill Surf Shop CC.

On 11 December 2007 GSM (Operations) Pty Ltd and Pineapple Trademarks Pty Lid acquired the assets and certain
liabilities of Tiger Lily Swimwear Pty Lid.

On 15 May 2008 GSM (Operations) Pty Ltd and Pineapple Trademarks Pty Ltd acquired the assets and certain liabilities
of Kirra Surf Pty Ltd, IP4K Pty Ltd, IP4L Pty Ltd and Local Knowledge (Aust) Pty Ltd.

On 1 June 2008 GSM Investments Ltd and Seal Trademarks Pty Ltd acquired the assets and certain liabilities of Grant
Retail Corporation, BTS Retail, LLC, BHS Retail Associates, LLC, Quiet Flight Surf Shop, Inc, The Leasure Group, Inc.,
N.S.B. Quiet Flight, Inc., Amy Retail, LLC and A.C. Leasure, Inc.

The acquired businesses contributed revenues of $60.1 million and net profit after tax of $7.1 million to the Group for the
period from acguisition to 30 June 2008.

Details of the aggregated fair value of the assets and liabilities related to these acquisitions are as follows:

$'000
Purchase consideration:
Cash paid 90,606
Estimated cash payable 8.851
Estimated deferred payment 18,577

Direct costs paid and payable relating to the acquisitions
Total purchase consideration

2416

120,450

Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 28 133
Goodwill 92,317
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Note 35. Business combinations (continued)

The goodwill is attributable to the high profitability of the acquired businesses and synergies expected to arise after the
acquisition of the businesses.

(b) Assets and liabilities acquired
The aggregated fair value of identifiable assets and certain liabilities acquired are based on discounted cash flow models.
The aggregated identifiable assets and liabilities arising from the acquisitions are as follows:

Acquiree's
carrymg amount Fair value
$£'000 $°000

Cash and cash equivalents 1,903 1,903
Trade receivables 8,565 8,443
inventory 13,079 12,721
Plant and Equipment 6,814 6,814
Prepayments 1,134 1,134
Deferred tax asset -— 24
Employee entitlements (257) (284)
Trade and other payables {10,033) {10,033)
Deferred tax liability - (326)
identifiable intangible assets — 7,737
Net identifiable assets acquired 21,205 28,133

In regards to the 'Billabong South Africa (Proprietary) Limited, Kustom and Palmers Surdf (Proprietary) Limited, Country
Feeling CC, Element Skateboards South Africa CC and Von Zipper South Africa CC’, ‘Xcel Hawaii, In¢c., KEM Hawaii
Incorporated and MKD Wetsuits, Inc’ and ‘Grant Retail Corperation, BTS Retail, LLC, BHS Retail Associates, LLC, Quiet
Flight Surf Shop, Inc, The Leasure Group, Inc., N.S.B. Quiet Flight, Inc., Amy Retail, LLC and A.C. Leasure, In¢'
acquisitions, in the event that certain specific conditions are achieved additional consideration may be payable in cash. (f
it becomes probable that additional consideration will be payable it will be brought to account as a component of the
geodwill arising on the acquisition when the amount can be reliably measured. The Group will review the likelinood of
these payments at future reporting dates.

The ‘Tiger Lily Swimwear Pty Ltd' acquisition was disclosed provisionally in the interim financial report for the half-year
ended 31 December 2007. The one significant adjustment to the provisionat values disclosed in the interim financial report
relates to the recognition of the intangible asset relating to the Tigerlily brand hame which at acquisition date is considered
to have a camrying value of $3.6 million.

If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 July 2007, consolidated revenue and consclidated net profit after tax for the year
ended 30 June 2008 would have been $1,410.0 million and $179.7 million respectively.

Other

The non-current deferred payment payable of $76.1 million relates to the Nixon, Xcel and South Africa licensee
acquisitions {2007: $14.8m relates to Nixon}. Included in note 19 ‘other payables’ is deferred payment payable of $10.4
million relating to Amazon and Quiet Flight {(2007: nil).
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Note 35. Business combinations (continued)

2007

(a} Summary of acquisition

On 1 November 2006 Amazon (New Zealand) Pty Ltd (previously Billabong New Zealand Pty Ltd} acquired the assets
and certain fiabilities of Amazon Group Limited. The acquired business contributed revenues of $19.4 million and net profit
after tax of $1.9 million to the Group for the period from 1 November 2006 to 30 June 2007.

Details of the aggregated fair value of the assets and liabilities related to this acquisition are as follows:

$'000
Purchase consideration:
Cash paid 22,380
Direct costs relating to the acquisition 233
Total purchase consideration 22,613
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired 14,899
Goodwill 7,714

The goodwill is attributable to the high profitability of the acquired business and synergies expected tc arise after the
acquisition of the business.

(b) Assels and liabilities acquired
The aggregated fair value of identifiable assets and certain liabilities acquired are based on discounted cash flow models.
The aggregated identifiable assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Acquiree's
can'ymg amount Fair value
$000 $'000

Cash and cash equivalents 9 9
lnventory 9,874 9,874
Plant and equipment 3,951 3,951
Prepayments 80 80
Employee entitlements (147} (147)
Other liabilities (68) (68)
ldentifiable intangible asset : — 1,200
Net identifiable assets acquired 13,699 14,899

The acquisition was disclosed provisionally in the interim financial report for the half-year ended 31 December 2006. The
one adjustment to the provisional values disclosed in the interim financial report relates to the recognition of the intangible
asset relating to the Amazon brand name which at acquisition date is considered to have a carrying value of NZD$1.38
million or AUD$1.2 million.

In regards to the Amazon Group Limited acquisition, in the event that certain specific condlitions are achieved additional
consideration may be payable in cash. |f it becomes probable that additional consideration will be payable it will be
brought to account as a component of the goodwill arising on the acquisition when the amount can be reliably measured.
The Group will review the likelihood of these payments at future reporting dates.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2006, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit after tax for the year ended
30 June 2007 would have been $1,240.4 million and $167.8 million respectively.

Other
Other additions to goodwnl during the year relate to a number of small acquisitions, including the Group’s Itcensees in
Singapore and Malaysia of $8.1 million.

An additional contingent consideration payment of $3.9 million was made in relation to the ‘Honolua Surf Company’
business combination which occurred on 1 December 2003.

Billabong International Limited 2007-08 Full Financial Report Page 94



Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :

Note 36. Subsidiaries

The consoclidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following significant subsidiaries
in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1(b):

Country of Class of Equity
Name of entity Incorporation shares Holding ™
2008 2007
% %

Amazon {New Zealand) Pty Ltd * Australia Ordinary 100 100
Beach Culture International Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 60
Billabong Retail, Inc USA Ordinary 100 100
Burteigh Point Canada, Inc Canada Ordinary 100 100
Bureigh Point, Lid USA Ordinary 100 100
Element Skateboards, Inc USA Ordinary 100 100
GSM (Central Sourcing) Pty Ltd - Australia Ordinary 100 100
GSM {Duranbah) Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
GSM (Europe) Pty Ltd * Australia Qrdinary 100 100
GSM (Japan) Limited Japan Ordinary 100 100
GSM (NZ Operations) Limited New Zealand Ordinary 100 100
GSM (OQperations) Pty Lid * Australia Ordinary 100 100
G3M (Trademarks) Pty Ltd " Australia Ordinary 100 100
GSM Trading (South Africa) Pty Ltd * Australia Ordinary 100 100 ~
GSM Brasil Lida Brazil QOrdinary 100 100
GSM England Retail Ltd England Ordinary 100 100
GSM Espana Operations Sociedad Limitada Spain Ordinary 100 100
GSM investments Lid USA Ordinary 100 100
GSM Rocket Australia Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
GSM Trading (Singapore) Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Honolua Surf International Ltd UsSA Ordinary 100 100
Nixon Europe SARL France Ordinary 100 100
Nixon Inc USA Ordinary " 100 100
Nixon Pacific Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Pineapple Trademarks Pty Ltd . Australia Ordinary 100 100
Rocket Trademarks Pty Ltd . Australia Ordinary 100 100
VeeZee, Inc USA Ordinary . 100 100

* These subsidiaries have been granted relief from the necessity to prepare financial reports in accordance with Class
Order 98/1418 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. For further information refer to note
37. '

** The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.

A Incorporated on 13 June 2007, began trading on 1 July 2007.
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Note 37. Deed of cross guarantee

Billabong International Limited, GSM (Europe) Pty Ltd, GSM (Operations) Pty Ltd, GSM (Trademarks) Pty Ltd, Pineapple
Trademarks Pty Ltd, Rocket Trademarks Pty Ltd, GSM (Central Sourcing) Pty Lid, Amazon (New Zealand} Pty Ltd and
GSM Trading (South Africa) Pty Ltd are parties to a deed of cross guarantee under which each company guarantees the
debts of the others. By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned entities have been relieved from the requirement to
prepare a financial report and Directors’ report under Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) issued by the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission. GSM Trading (South Africa) Pty Ltd was added to the deed of cross guarantee
on 4 June 2008.

(a) Consolidated income statement and a summary of moevements in consclidated retained profits
The above companies represent a ‘Closed Group’ for the purposes of the Class Order.

Set out below is the condensed consolidated income statement and a summary of movements in consolidated retained
profits for the year ended 30 June 2008 of the Closed Group consisting of Billabong Internationat Limited, GSM (Europe)
Pty Ltd, GSM (Operations) Pty Lid, GSM (Trademarks) Pty Ltd, Pineapple Trademarks Pty Ltd, Rocket Trademarks Pty
Ltd, GSM (Central Sourcing) Pty Ltd, Amazon (New Zealand} Pty Ltd and GSM Trading {South Africa) Pty Ltd.

Prior year figures set out below represent the condensed consolidated income statement and a summary of movements in
consclidated retained profits for the year ended 30 June 2007 of the Closed Group at that time consisting of the entities
Billabong International Limited, GSM (Europe) Pty Ltd, GSM (Operations) Pty Ltd, GSM (Trademarks) Pty Ltd, Pineapple
Trademarks Pty Ltd, Rocket Trademarks Pty Ltd, GSM (Central Sourcing) Pty Ltd and Amazon (New Zealand) Pty Ltd.

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
Income statement
Revenue from continuing operations 707,348 580,674
Cther income 789 140,772
Finance costs {17.,975) (8.266)
Other expenses {458,028) (378,476)
Profit before incoma tax 232,134 334,704
Income tax expense {56,596) {41,730)
Profit for the year 175,538 292,974
Summary of movements in consolidated retained profits
Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year ’ 341,088 145,549
Profit for the year 175,538 292,974
Dividends paid . {112,014) (97,435)
Retained profits at the end of the financial year : 404,612 341,088
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Note 37. Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

{b) Balance sheet
Set out below is a consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2007 of the Closed Group consisting of
the entities as named above al each point in time.

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents : 62,053 59,100
Trade and other receivables 177,971 148,890
Inventories 102,745 73,287
Other 6,102 5,218
Total current assets 348,871 286,495
Non-current assets
Receivables 26,358 25,020
Qther financial assets 369,612 360,390
Property, plant and equipment 44,4714 35,113
Intangible assets 168,265 122,924
Deferred tax assets 7,709 4,516
Other 11,856 7,416
Total non-current assets 628,269 555,379
Total assets 977,140 841,874
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 102,041 68,428
Borrowings 1,773 2,221
Current tax liabilities 396 1,956
Provisions 7,958 6,173
Total current liabilities 112,168 78,778
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 136,964 94,399
Deferred tax liabilities 744 4,644
Provisions ' 2,015 1,933
Other 5877 160
Total non-current liabilities 145,600 101,136
Total liabilities 257,768 179,914
Net assats 719,372 661,960
EQUITY
Contributed equity 316,317 316,174
Reserves {1,557) 4,698
Retained profits 404,612 341,088
Total equity 719,372 661,860
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Note 38. Events occurring after the balance sheet date

On 2 July 2008, the Group announced the acquisition of Sector 9 Inc., a premium Southern California-based skateboard
brand. The operating results and certain assets and liabilities of the business will be consolidated from 1 July 2008,
therefore the financial effects of the transaction have not been brought to account at 30 June 2008,

As of 17 July 2008 a new $600 million Syndicated Revolving Multi-Currency Facility was entered into by the Group. This
new facility is due for roll-over prior to 1 July 2010 and 1 July 2011. The facility is structured as an unsecured multi-
currency facility with a two year and three year tranche of $300 million each. The facility replaces the Group's previous
secured facilities (refer to note 23 for the Group's secured facilities as at 30 June 2008) and provides additional liquidity to
the Group.

On 22 August 2008, the Group announced the acquisition of DaKine Hawaii, Inc, a leader in the premium accessories
category within the surf, skate, snow and windsurf markets. The operating results and certain assets and liabilities of the
business will be consolidated from the time all conditions required for contractual completion have been satisfied,
therefore the financial effects of the transaction have net been brought to account at 30 June 2008. It is anticipated the
acquisition will be completed by 1 October 2008, subject to the aforementioned conditions being satisfied.

The purchase price comprises initial consideration estimated at US$99.9 million, to be funded from existing borrowing
facilities, and deferred consideration estimated at a minimum of US$33.3 million, subject to an audit of the normalised
EBITDA for the year ending 31 December 2008. The deferred consideration, due in the second half of calendar year
2012, is subject to certain management retention conditions.

The Company's Directors have approved the introduction of a dividend reinvestment plan to be implemented ahead of the
fina! dividend to be paid on 24 October 2008. The Company is providing this facility as an additional option available lo
shareholders and in response to requests from the Company's shareholders: Further details in refation to the dividend
reinvestment plan will be communicated to shareholders shortly.

Other than those items mentioned above, there has not arisen in the interval betweaen the end of the financial year and the
date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of
the Group, to significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Group, in future financial years.

Note 39. Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash flow from operating
activities
Consolidated Parent entity

2008 2007 2008 2007

$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Profit for the year 176,269 167,607 28,685 204,600
Depreciation and amortisation 27,215 21,778 - -
Share-based payment amortisation expense 3,195 5.027 - -
Net loss on sale of non-current assets 211 72 -— -
Gain on transfer of subsidiaries to consclidated
entity -— -— — (140,708)
Net exchange differences 499 (2,350} {15,888) -

Change in operating assets and liabilities,
excluding effects from business combinations;

(Increase)/decrease in trade debtors (47,354} (66,681} - -
{Increase)/decrease in inventories (33,130} {16,960} n
(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets (3,188) {15,885) {4,468} (292)
{Increase)/decrease in olher aperating assels (40) (4,062) (2,517) 3,992
Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors and
other operating liabilities 32918 27,505 (270} 781
Increase/(decrease) in provision for income
taxes payable (6,707) (22,769) {2,283) {9,110)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 3,464 {7,009} 359 -—
Increase/{decrease) in other provisions {145) 4,936 o
Net cash inflow from operating activities 153,207 91,209 3,618 59,263
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Note 40. Non-cash investing and financing activities
Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Acquisition of plant and equipment by means of
finance lease 18 297 - -—
18 297 - .

Note 41. Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company

Consolidated

(b) Diluted earrings per share
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company

2008 2007

Cents Cenls
85.7 81.2
85.1 B80.7

(¢) Reconciliations of earnings used in ¢alculating earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations
Loss/(Profit) from continuing operations attributable to minority interests

Consolidated

Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company used in calculating basic earning per share

Diluted earnings per share
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company used in calculating diluted eamings per share

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
176,269 167,607
111 (359)
176,380 167,248
176,380 167,248

{d) Woeighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating
basic earnings per share
Adjustments for calfculation of diluted earnings per share:

Performance shares and conditional rights

Options

Consolidated

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potenlial ordinary shares used as the
denominalor in calculating diluted earnings per share

2008 2007
Number Number
205,753,609 205,859,969

1,564,023 1,414,651
3,048 11,122
207,320,680 207,285,742

(e} Information concerning the classification of securities

Rights

Rights granted to employees under the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan are considered to be potential
ordinary shares and have been included in the determination of diluted earnings per share to the extent to which they
are dilutive. The rights have been excluded in the determination of basic earnings per share. Details relating to the rights

are set out in note 42.
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Note 42. Share-based payments
(a} Billabong Executive Incentive Option Plan

The establishment of the Executive Incentive Option Plan was approved by special resolution in the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 4 July 2000.

Staff eligible to participate in the plan are those of supervisor level and above {including Executive Directors).

Options are granted under the plan for no consideration. Options are granted for a four year period, and 33% of each new
tranche becomes exerciseable after each of Year 2, 3 and 4 anniversaries of the date of grant. The employees’
entittements to the oplions are vested (i.e. they are not conditional on future employment) as soon as they become
exercisable.

Options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights.

When exercisable, each option is convertible into one ordinary share upon receipt of funds.

The exercise price of options is based on the weighted average price at which the Company's shares are traded on the
Australian Stock Exchange during the ten trading days immediately befere the options are granted. Amounts receivable
on the exercise of options are recognised as share capital.

Set out below are summaries of options granted under the plan.

Consolidated and parent entity — 2008
Balance Granted Exercised Expired Balance  Exercisable

Grant Expiry date  Exercise at start of during during the duringthe atendof at end of
date price year the year year year year year
Number Number Number Number Number Number

23 August 23 August

2002 2007 $8.10 15,334 — - (15.334) - ==
15,334 — - (15,334) — —
Weighted average exercise price $8.10 - - . - —

Consolidated and parent entity — 2007

Balance Granted Exercised Expired Balance Exercisable
Grant Expiry date  Exercise at start of during during the during the at end of at end of
date price year the year year year year year
Number Number Number Number Number Number
25 October 25 October
2001 2006 $7.42 18,418 —- {18,418} - - -
28 February 28 February
2002 2007 $9.39 17,672 — (17,672) — -— —
23 August 23 August
2002 2007 $8.10 239,510 — (224 176) — 15,334 15,334
275,600 — (260,266) — 15,334 15,334
Weighted average exercise price $8.14 -— $8.14 — $8.10 $8.10

No options were forfeited during the periods covered by the above tables,

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised regularly during the year ended 30 June
2008 was nil (2007; $15.69).

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding at the end of the period was nil (2007: 0.15
years).

There are no options remaining to be exercised under the Billabong Executive Incentive Option Plan. The Beard has no
current intention to make any future grants under this Plan,
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Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :

Note 42. Share-based payments (continued)

(b) Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan

The establishment of the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan (EPSP) was approved by shareholders at the 2004
Annual General Meeting. The purpose of the EPSP is to provide executives with an equily based reward opportunity that
vests based on the Group’s 3 year Eamings per Share (EPS) performance.

Under the plan the Company awards the following equity based rights (collectively “rights”). The form of the rights is
determined by the tax implications in the relevant jurisdiction.

Equity vehicla Overview

Performance shares | An employee awarded performance shares is not legally entitled to shares in the Company
before the performance shares allocated under the plan vest. However, the employee can vote
and receive dividends in respect of shares allocated to them.

For Australian employees, once the shares have vested they remain in the trust until the earlier
of the employee leaving the consolidated entity, the tenth anniversary of the date the
performance shares were awarded or the Board approving an application for their release.

For non-Australian employees, once their performance shares vest their shares are transferred
to them (or sold on their behalf if they cheose). Howsever, if the performance shares do not vest,
they are forfeited by the employee (for no consideration).

Conditional rights An employee awarded conditional rights is not legally entitled to shares in the Company before
the rights allacated under the Plan vest. Once vested, each right entitles the employee to receive
one share in the Company.

For French employees granted rights after 1 July 2005, shares associated with vested rights are
automatically transferred to the employee. These shares cannot be disposed of before the end
of a 24 month Restriction Period following the allocation date, except in the event of death. Until
such time that the rights have vested the employee cannot use the rights to vole or receive
dividends.

For all other employees, from the time of the employee receiving notice of the rights having
vested they have one month to exercise the rights and either sell the shares or transfer them into
their name. If the rights are not exercised by the employee they will automatically exercise and
the shares will be transferred to the employee. Until such time that the rights are exercised the
employee cannot use the rights to vote or receive dividends.

Award, vesting and exercises under the plan are made for no consideration.

Awards under the plan vest on the third anniversary of grant only if the EPS performance hurdles are satisfied in the
relevant performance period. The performance periods are summarised in the table below:

Grant Performance period

FY 2005 FYQ4 (hase year EPS) o FYO7
FY 2006 FY(5 (base year EPS) to FY0B
FY 2007 FY06 (base year EPS) to FY09
FY 2008 FY07 (base year EPS) to FY10
FY 2009 FY08 (base year EPS) to FY 11
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Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2008 : :

Note 42. Share-based payments (continued)

The following chart summarises the EPS performance hurdles for outstanding unvested grants and the grants made in
financial years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006 {(which vested following the close of the financial years ended 30
June 2007 and 30 June 2008 respectively).

EPSP performance hurdle summary
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At the end of the relevant performance period, in line with its charter, the Human Resources and Remuneration

Committee consider the EPS performance of the Group on both a reported and constant currency basis and determines
to what extént the awards should vest based on the above vesting conditions.

The Company pr.ovides contributions to the trustees to enable them to purchase shares an market to underpin the rights
issued. The fair value of the rights awarded is recognised in the income statement over the period during which the rights
vest,

Set out below is a summary of equity based rights (performance shares and conditional rights) awarded under the plan:

Balance Granted Exercised Expired Balance

Type of right Grant date Performance  at start of during during the duringthe atend of
determination year the year year year year

date Number Number Number Nurmber Number

Consolidated and parent entity — 2008
Performance Shares 1 November 2004 30 June 2010 1,258,651 614,962 (418,862) (106,502) 1,348,249
Conditional Rights 1 November 2004 30 June 2010 220,881 98,241 (73,775) — 245,347

1,479,532 713,203  (492637) (106,502) 1,593,506

Consolidated and parent entity - 2007

Performance Shares 1 November 2004 30 June 2009 828,880 453,641 - (23,870) 1,258,651
Conditional Rights 1 November 2004 30 June 2009 143,610 77,271 —— - 220,881
972,490 530,912 — (23,870) 1,479,532

None of the rights awarded under the plan vested or became exercisable during the year.

The total equity based rights that expired during the year ended 30 June 2008 and have not yel been granted under a
new award was 98,692 (2007: 23.870). These expired equity based rights are held pending in the Plan until further
awards are made.
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Note 42. Share-based payments (continued)

Fair value of rights granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of rights granted under the Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan during the
year ended 30 June 2008 was $15.65 per right (2007: $14.76). The fair value at grant date is determined by reference to
the Billabong International Limited share price at grant date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
rights were granted, the expected dividend yield and the expected price volatility of the underlying share.

(c) Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the period as part of employee benefits
expense were as follows:

Consolidated Parent entity
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Operating costs of the
Billabong Executive Performance Share Plan 28 16 - -
Share-based payment expense 3,195 5.027 — —
3223 5,043 an ---
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Directors’ declaration : :

In the Directors' opinion:

(a)

(0}

()

the financial statements and notes set out on pages 32 to 103 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,

including:

{i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements; and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's and consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June

2008 and of their performance, for the financial year ended on that date; and

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and when they
become due and payable; and

at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the Extended Closed
Group identified in note 37 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become,
subject by virtue of the deed of cross guarantee described in note 37.

The Directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by
section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

e s e

Ted Kunkel
Chairman

Gold Coast
22 August 2008
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PRICEAVATERHOUSE( COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
ABN 52 780 433 757

Riverside Centre

123 Eagle Street
BRISBANE QLD 4000
GPO Box 150

BRISBANE QLD 4001

DX 77 Brisbane

Australia

www.pwc.com/au
Telephone +61 7 3257 5000
Facsimile +61 7 3257 5959

Independent auditor’'s report to the members of Billabong International Limited
Report on the financial report and the AASB 124 remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors' Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Billabong International Limited {the Company), which comprises
the balance sheet as at 30 June 2008, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement
for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the Directors’
Declaration for both Billabong International Limited and the Billabong Group (the consoclidated entity). The consolidated
entity comprises the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

We have also audited the remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors’ Report under the heading “remuneration
report” on pages 9 to 21.

Diractors’ responsibiity for the financial report and the AASB 124 remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors'
Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant 1o the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. In note 1(a), the Directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivalents to Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards
ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Directors of the company are also responsible for the remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors’ Report.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethicat
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement. Our responsibility is to also express an opinion on the remuneration
disclosures contained in the Directors' Report based on our audit.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report and the remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors’ Report. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report and the
remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors’ Report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relavant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
repert and the remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors’ Report in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
interna!l control.  An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial report and the remuneration disclosures contained in the Directors’ Report.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

Independent auditor's report to the members of Billabong International Limited
(continued)

Qur procedures include reading the other information in the Annual Report to determine whether it contains any matertal
inconsistencies with the financial repont.

For further explanation of an audit, visit our website hitp://mww._pwe.com/au/financialstatementaudit
Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by Directors or management.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

independence
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001,

Auditor's opinion on the financial report

In our opinion:
(a) the financial report of Billabong Intemational Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
{i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June
2008 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and
(i} complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations}
and the Corporations Regulations 2001, and
(b} the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 1{a).

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 9 to 21 of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June
2008. The Directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2007. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor's opinion .

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Billabong Intemational Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008, complies with
section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

7 awﬂwé/@——

PricewaterhouseCoopers

L SL

Rabert Hubbard
Partner

Brisbane
22 August 2008

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Shareholder information

The shareholder information set out below was applicable as at 18 August 2008.

Distribution of Equity Securities
Analysis of numbers of equity security holders by size of holding:

Ordinary shares Unquoted options

Number of share Number of Number of option Number of
holders gshares holders options
1 - 1,000 14,550 6,429,458 4 1,561
1,001 - 5,000 5,976 13,525,713 3 4,668
5001 - 10,000 579 4,228,115 1 5,369
10,001 - 100,000 316 8,647,596 - -
100,001 and over 61 174,606,681 - —
21,482 207,437,563 8 11,588

There were 501 holders of less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares.

Equity Security Holders

Twenty largest quoted equity security holders

The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted equity securities are listed below:

Name

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited

Gordon Merchant No 2 Pty Ltd <The Merchant Family A/C>

National Nominees Limited

Jontex Pty Ltd

RBC Dexia Investor Services Austrzlia Nominees Pty Limited <Pipooled A/C>
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

ANZ Nominees Limited <Cash Income A/C>

Australian Reward Investment Alliance

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited

GSM Pty Ltd

ANZ Nominees Limited <SL Cash Income A/C>

Mr Paul Naude

Mr Michae! McAuliffe & Ms Colette Paull

RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited <PIIC A/C>
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited <CFSIL CWLTH AUST SHS 4 A/C>
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited <SMP Accounts>

Argo Investments Limited

Billytoo Pty Ltd <Colette Paull Family Account>

Merrill Lynch (Australia) Nominees Pty Limited

Ordinary sharas

Number Percentage
_ held of issued
shares
31,821,028 15.34%
29,900,433 14.41%
29,011,450 13.99%
20,027,003 9.65%
10,075,966 4.86%
9,297,573 4.48%
7,174,783 3.46%
5,559,458 2.68%
2,489,193 1.20%
2,311,867 1.11%
2,268,994 1.09%
2,192,453 1.06%
1,821,179 0.88%
1,665,216 0.75%
1,328,527 0.64%
1,035,479 0.50%
1.010,424 0.45%
998,908 0.48%
950,651 0.46%
B44,499 0.41%
161,685,084 77.94%
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Unquoted Equity Securities : Number Number
on issue of holders

Options issued pursuant to an agreement in connection with the acquisition of the
American based Element Skateboards Inc. on 4 July 2001:
Class — BBGAY 11,588 8

The options listed above are the only unquoted equity securities on issue.
The following people hold 20% or more of these securities:

Class - BBGAY Paul Schmitt 5,369

Substantial Holders
As at 18 August 2008 the names of substantial holders in the Company who have notified the Company in accordance
with Section 6718 of the Corporalions Act 2001 are set out below:

Ordinary Shares Number Percentage
Gordon Stanley Merchant & Gordon Merchant No. 2 Pty Ltd 33,013,703 15.92%
The Capital Group Companies Inc. 20,198,817 9.74%
Perpetual Investments 19,757,968 9.52%
ING 11,067,785 5.34%
Concord Capital 10,698,157 5.16%

Voting Rights
The voting rights attaching to each class of equity securilies are set out below:

{a) Ordinary shares
On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one
vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

(b) Options
No voting rights.

Stock Exchange Listing
The shares of the Company are listed under the symbol BBG on the Australian Stock Exchange Limited. The Company's
home branch is Brishane,

Shareholder Enquiries
Shareholders with queries about their shareholdings should contact the Company’s Share Registry as follows:

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
GPO Box 523
BRISBANE QLD 4001

Telephone Australia: 1300 552 270

Telephone International:  (+61 3) 9415 4000

Fax: (+61 7) 3237 2152

Email: web . queries@computershare.com.au
Change of Address

Issuer sponsored shareholders should notify the share registry in writing immediately upon any change in their address
quoting their Securityholder Reference Number (SRN). Changes in addresses for broker sponsored holders should be
direcled to the sponsoring brokers with the appropriate Holder Identification Number (HIN).
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Shareholder information : :

Dividends

Dividend payments may be paid directly to a nominated Australian financial institution. Payments are electronically
credited on the dividend payment date and confirmed by payment advices mailed directly to the shareholder’s registered
address. A form for this purpose is available from Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd. Billabong International
Limited also pays dividends by local currency cheque o shareholders who maintain a registered address in the following
jurisdictions:

Hong Kong - $HK, Japan - Yen, Europe - Euro, United States - $US

if a shareholder has not provided direct credit instructions to have their dividend paid direct to an Australian financial
institution or they do not have their shareholding registered in one of the above four countries, then by default they will
receive an Australian dividend cheque.

Annual Report
Due to recent legisiation changes the Company has elected to distribute Annual Reports by making thermn available on the
website. Hard copies of the Annual Reports will only be sent to shareholders requesting one.

Tax File Numbers (TFN})

Billabong International Limited is obliged to deduct tax from unfranked or partially franked dividends paid to shareholders
registered in Australia who have not provided their TFN to the Company. If you wish to provide your TFN, please contact
the Share Registry.

Conscolidation of Multiple Shareholdings
If you have multiple shareholding accounts that you wish to consolidate into a single account, please advise the Share
Registry in writing. If your holdings are broker sponsored, please contact the sponsoring broker directly.

Become an Online Shareholder

Billabong International Limited offers shareholders an electronic service that enables them to be kept up-to-date with
significant Company announcements as they happen. By subscribing for this service, shareholders can aiso elect not lo
receive a printed annual rgport and to view the annual report an line in the future.

To register, shareholders should visit the share registry at www.computershare com/easyupdate/bbg and enter your
personal securityholder information {eg Holder Identification Number (HIN) or Securityholder Reference Number (SRN})
and postcode, then click on ‘Submil’,

After the shareholder has entered their email address and selected which publications they wish to receive via email, an
email will be sent to the shareholder for confirmation purposes. When received, the shareholder should simply click
'‘Reply' to confirm their details, then 'Send".

Shareholders can also visit the Company's website at www.billabongbiz.com, where they can view:

Annual and half-year reports
Stock Exchange announcements
Billabong's share price information
General shareholder information
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GROUP OPERATING
CENTRES

Australia

GSM (OPERATIONS) PTY LID
ACN 085 950 803

Hoad Office & Queensiand
Office

1 Bilabong Place

PO Box 283

BURLENGH HEADS QLD 4220
PH: +61 7 5589 9859

FAX: +61 7 5530 9800

Brazil

GSM BRASIL LTDA
Incerporated in Brazit

Ruer Nathvidads, 139

Sao Paulo SP CEP (4513020
BRAZIL

PH: +55 11 3618 8500

FAX: +55 11.3518 8636

Canada

BURLEIGH POINT CANADA
INC

incomporated in Canada
8055 Transconada Hwy
Ville St Laurent

QUEBEC H45 154 CANADA
PH: +1 51 4335 4382

FAX: +1 51 4336 1753

Chile

GSM Chile Umitaga
Av. Luis Pasteur 6493,
Comuna de Vitacura,
Santicgo de Chiie
CHILE

PH: +56 2 218 7041
FAX: +56 2 219 3753

France

GSM (EUROPE) PTY LID
ACNGIO0I3 121

100 Avenuga Des Sabotiers
Z2A De Padebert 40150
SOORTS-HOSSEGOR FRANCE
PH: +33 55843 4205

FAX: +33 55843 4089

Hong Kong

GSM (CENTRAL SOURCING)
PTY LID

ACN 089 138 732

27t Floer Langham Place
Office Tower

8 Argyie Street

Mongkok. Kowfoon
HONG KONG

PH: +85 2 2439 6676

FAX: +85 2 2439 6007

Indonesia

PT Billcbong indonesia
istana Kula Gofleria
Block Tachno 12A-B
Jalan Patih Jelantik
Kula, BALI 80361

FH: + 62 351 769157
FAX: + 62 361 749158

Japan

GSM (JAPAN) LIMITED
Incorporated in Jopon
4-3-2 Ohtsu-Grand Building
3F

Bakuro-Machi Chuo-Ku
OSAKA JAPAN 541-0059
FH: +81 6 49463 6170

FAX: +81 6 4963 6171

New Zealand

GSM (NZ OPERATIONS)
LIMITED

Incorporated in New
Zealand

44 Arrenway Drive, Albany
AUCKLAND 0632 NEW
ZEALAND

PH: +64 9414 5106

FAX: +64 9 414 5039

Peru

Sanmaree PTY LTD
(Sucursal def Pend)
Av. Banavides 1744,
Miraflorss,

Lima 18

PERY

PH: +&1 1 243 3157
FAX: +51 1243 3159

Singapore

G5M Trading (Singapora)
Pty Ltd

8 Jalan Kilang Timor, #03-05
Kewalram House
SINGAPORE 159305

PH +85 6270 9181

FAX +65 6270 0127

South Africa

GSM South Africa Trading
Pty Umited

2A Da Gama Road,
Jeffroys Bay. Eastern Cope
SOUTH AFRICA, 6330

PH: +27 42 200 2600

FAX: +27 42 293 2478

The Group’s Maiaysian operctions are coordinated through tha Singopore office.

USA

BURLEIGH POINT LTD
incomporated in California
117 Waterworks Way
IRVINE CA 92618 USA

PH: +1 949 753 7222

FAX: +1 949 753 7223
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ASX ANNOUNCEMENT

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN UPDATE

GOLD COAST, 30 September 2008: Billabong International Limited today
announced the shareholder participation levels for its recently introduced dividend
reinvestment plan (DRP).

Of the 207,437,563 ordinary shares on issue, 28,665,535 shares (13.82% of issued
capital) have been registered for participation.

On 22 August 2008 Billabong International Limited announced the introduction of the
DRP, with participation first available to shareholders for the final ordinary fully
franked dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008 of 28.5 cents per fully paid share
which is payable on 24 October 2008.

Shares will be issued to shareholders at a discount of 2.5% to the average of the daily
volume weighted average market price of all Billabong shares sold in the ordinary
course of trading on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) during the 10 ASX
trading days commencing on and including the second ASX trading day after the
dividend record date of 26 September 2008.

The DRP for the final ordinary dividend is 50% underwritten by Goldman Sachs
JBWere.

MARIA MANNING
COMPANY SECRETARY
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ASX ANNOUNCEMENT

BILLABONG COMPLETES PURCHASE OF DAKINE
GOLD COAST, 1 October 2008:; Billabong International Limited today completed the
purchase of the premium boardsports accessories brand DaKine.
The purchase was announced on 22 August 2008 and was subject to several
conditions precedent, including US regulatory approval under the Hart-Scott-Rodino
Anti Trust Improvement Act.
All conditions have been satisfied.

MARIA MANNING
COMPANY SECRETARY




